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THE NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT OF 1992:
What Impact Will This Act Have on California,
and What Opportunities Does it Create for the State?
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TO:

MEMBERS, SENATE ENERGY & PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE

FROM:

COMMITTEE STAFF

SUBJECT: FEBRUARY 23, 1993, COMMITTEE HEARING ON:
THE NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT OF 1992:

What impact will this Act have on california, and
what opportunities does it create for the state?
The National Energy Policy Act of 1992, signed into law on October
24, 1992, dramatically changes the energy landscape across the
nation. Among other things, the Act seeks to modify national
energy policy by:
• improving energy efficiency
• expanding the use of renewable energy resources
• requiring the use of alternative fuel vehicles
• expanding energy research, development and demonstration
programs
• reforming electric utility regulation
• reducing emissions of "greenhouse" gases
• streamlining nuclear power plant licensing
• expanding the Strategic Petroleum Reserve
• providing tax incentives to achieve energy policy
objectives
• authorizing federal appropriations to carry our new energy
programs
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one purpose of this Committee hearing is to explore the potential
impacts this Act will have on California.
For example, what new
federal requirements will apply to California? Are we compelled
by the Act to adopt new state regulations regarding:
e

energy efficiency standards

e

the purchase of clean fuel vehicle fleets

e

electric utility operations.

More importantly, what new opportunities does the Act provide the
state? California already has a national reputation of maintaining
a visionary state energy policy that seeks to meet the energy
demands of our citizens and businesses while protecting our
environment. What benefits does the new federal Act provide that
California can seek in order to maintain this quality energy
strategy? And in particular, are there opportunities to secure
federal financial assistance to carry out state energy programs?
For example, the conference agreement accompanying the federal Act
includes specific FY 1993 and FY 1994 authorization levels for many
of the new U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) programs called for by
the Act, including:
• Energy Efficiency - $177 million in FY 1993 and
$275 million in FY 1994;
• Renewable Energy - $210 million in FY 1993 and
$275 million in FY 1994;
e Reducing Petroleum Use in Transportation - $119
million in FY 1993 and $160 million in FY 1994;

• Electric Vehicles - $65 million in FY 1993 and
$75 million in FY 1994;
• Research and Technology - $966 million in FY 1993
and such sums as may be necessary in FY 1994;
• Fuel Cells - $52 million in FY 1993 and $56 million
in FY 1994;
• Health Effects of Electric and Magnetic Fields $65 million over five years.
While the Act authorizes funding for these and other energy
programs, it does not make any specific appropriations. That means
there will be active lobbying before congressional appropriation
committees this year by states and other interest groups seeking
funding for high priority programs. Representatives from
California's executive and legislative branches, working
hand-in-hand with our congressional delegation, should seek to
participate in these federal appropriation deliberations.
-2-

SUMMARY OF MAJOR NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT PROVISIONS

set forth below is a summary of the major provisions or the :9deral
Act most likely to impact California. The summary focuses 8n:
I.
II.
III.
IV.
V.
VI.

Energy Efficiency
Renewable Energy
Energy Research & Development
Clean Transportation Fuels
Global Climate Change, and
Electricity Regulation
I. ENERGY EFFICIENCY

The federal Act adopts what has long been the energy policy of
California - namely, increased energy efficiency to reduce energy
costs. The Act includes the following initiatives:
Buildings:
•
Requires States to establish a minimum commercial building
energy code based on current voluntary codes, and ~o cons1der
establishing a minimum residential building energy code based on
current voluntary codes.
•
Ties the availability of federal mortgage assistance (FHA, FmHA,
and VA) for new residential buildings to compliance with minimum
energy efficiency codes.
•
Requires the development of voluntary home energy rating
guidelines to assist consumers in purchasing decisions, and to
promote the use of energy efficient mortgages.
•
Requires the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development to
promulgate new energy efficiency standards for manufactured housing
within one year, or States are allowed to establish their own
standards at or above current voluntary standards.
e Establishes a federal energy efficient mortgage pilot program in
five States in order to demonstrate the feasibility of financing
energy efficiency improvements in existing homes.
•
Authorizes the establishment of Energy Efficiency Lighting and
Building Centers in each of the 10 Federal Regions in order to
demonstrate building energy efficiency technologies, and to provide
technical assistance to building professionals.
Utilities:
•
Requires States to consider new regulatory standards that would:
require utilities to undertake integrated resource planning
(IRP)--which requires an evaluation of both new supply as well as
conservation options; allows energy efficiency programs to be at
least as profitable as new energy supply options; and encourages
improvements in supply system efficiency.
Authorizes federal grant
assistance for States to consider these new standards.
-3-

•
Provides protection to small businesses engaged in energy
efficiency activities from unfair competition by utilities.
•
Requires integrated resource planning (IRP) by the electric
utility customers of the Western Area Power Administration.
Commercial Standards:
•
Establishes energy efficiency standards for: commercial heating
and air conditioning equipment; large electric motors; and common
types of fluorescent and incandescent reflector lamps.
•
Requires the Secretary of Energy to establish energy efficiency
standards which are technologically feasible and economically
justified for: small electric motors; utility distribution
transformers; and high-density discharge lamps.
•
Gives the private sector an opportunity to establish voluntary
energy efficiency information/labeling programs for: windows and
commercial office equipment, or the Secretary will establish such
programs in cooperation with the Federal Trade Commission.
•
Establishes maximum flow rates for showerheads, faucets and
other plumbing products.
Industrial:
•
Establishes an industrial energy efficiency grant program to
encourage industrial associations to establish or strengthen their
energy efficiency programs, including energy reporting and
efficiency target requirements.
•
Establishes a program of grants to States to encourage States
and utilities to cooperate with local industries to assess
industrial energy efficiency opportunities, and to finance
cost-effective energy efficiency improvements.
•
Requires the Secretary to develop voluntary guildelines for the
conduct of industrial energy audits and for the proper levels of
insulation in industrial facilities.
state and Local Assistance:
•
Provides grants to states and local governments to finance
energy efficiency improvements in government buildings.
•
Reforms and expands existing federally-financed low income home
weatherization programs.
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II.

RENEWABLE ENERGY

The federal Act also seeks to promote the development of renewable
energy resources, such as solar, wind, biomass and geothermal to
provide energy diversity and security, and to reduce ?Ollution.
New provisions include the following:
Demonstration and Commercial Application Projects:
•
Provides the Secretary of Energy with greater flexibility in
granting federal financing for the demonstration and commercial
application of renewable energy technologies.
Clarifies the
process by which renewable energy projects may be chosen and
removes certain impediments to non-federal participation in the
commercialization of these technologies.
Renewable Energy Tax Incentives:
•
Provides a tax credit of 1.5 cents per kilowatt hour of
electricity produced from qualifying wind and renewable biomass
sources.
e
Permanently extends the energy investment tax credit for solar
and geothermal energy facilities.
Renewable Energy Technology Transfer Program:
•
Establishes a progr,am for facilitating the transfer of U.S.
renewable energy technologies to developing countries.
Projects
would be chosen for s~lection and subsequent funding on a
competitive basis according to criteria specified by DOE.
Renewable Energy Adva1.cement Awards:
•
Establishes an awards program at the Department of Energy, and
in consultation with'Lhe National Academy of Sciences, to recognize
outstanding achievement in the development and utilization of
renewable energy resources and technologies.
Study of Export Promotion Practices:
•
Requires a study of subsidies, incentives, and policies that
other countries use to promote exports of their own renewable
energy and energy efficiency services and technologies.
study of Tax and Rate Treatment of Renewable Energy Projects:
•
Directs the Secretary, in conjunction with State regulatory
commissions, to conduct a study to determine whether conventional
taxation and ratemaking procedures result in an economic bias
against renewable energy power generation facilities in comparison
with conventional power generation facilities.
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III.

ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The federal Act also promotes R&D activities as follows:
•
Restructures and reorients DOE research, development,
demonstration, and commercial application programs for energy
technologies over the next five years.
Places increased emphasis
on activities that will move energy technologies toward commercial
applications.
Establishes an overall set of program goals that
include developing reliable energy sources that will reduce U.S.
dependence on imported oil, reducing adverse environmental effects
from energy production and use, creating markets for cleaner energy
technologies, and enhancing U.S. competitiveness.
•
Gives DOE general authority to provide assistance for projects
being carried out by private industry through joint ventures,
grants, and cooperative agreements.
It establishes cost-sharing
requirements for such efforts, generally requiring private sector
participants to pay at least 20 percent of the cost of research and
development programs, and 50 percent for demonstration and
commercial application programs.
•
Research, development, demonstration, and commercialization
activities may be undertaken in a number of areas including the
following:
natural gas utilization
energy efficiency
high efficiency heat engines
superconductivity
advanced oil recovery

IV.

electric vehicle technology
renewable energy resources
oil shale
fusion
advanced materials

CLEAN TRANSPORTATION FUELS

The Act contains provisions aimed at expanding the availability and
use of alternative transportation fuels--including methanol,
ethanol, natural gas, electricity, liquefied petroleum gas, and
hydrogen. The Act requires increasing purchases of
alternative-fueled vehicles (AFVs) capable of operating on these
fuels, for fleets operated by the federal government, state
government, and companies engaged in supplying alternative fuels.
• Federal Fleets
The Act requires the federal government to purchase at least 5,000
AFVs in 1993, 7,500 in 1994, and 10,000 in 1995. For 1996, the Act
specifies that 25% of the vehicles acquired for federal fleets must
be AFVs, increasing to 33% for 1997, 50% for 1998, and 75% for 1999
and subsequent years.
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The Act
that 10% of the vehicles purchases tor state
fleets must be AFVs
1995. The percentage requlrements gradually
to 75% by the year 2000, and continue at that level
thereafter. The Act permits states to establish their own voluntary
programs to convert their fleets to AFVs, in lieu of these
requirements.
• Alternative Fuel Providers
The Act sets forth AFV purahase requirements for fleets operated by
companies engaged in producing, transporting, or marketing
alternative fuels - such as methanol and ethanol refiners, natural
gas pipeline operators, and electric and gas utilities.
It requires
that 30% of the vehicles purchased by these entities must be AFVs in
1996, and increases the percentage requirements to 90% for 1999 and
thereafter.
• Other Private and Municipal Fleets
The Act also includes provisions establishing AFV purchase goals for
fleets operated by private companies, as well as those operated by
local govern~ents.
It requires that 20% of the vehicles purchases
for these fleets be AFVs in 1999, increasing to 70% in 2006 and
thereafter. The private and municipal fleet requirements would
take effect only if the DOE finds that the program is necessary and
practicable, and there will be available, adequate supplies of AFVs,
alternative fuels, sufficient fueling facilities, and related
infrastructure to achieve the goals.
• Financial Assistance
The Act contains a number of financial provisions relating to
alternative fuels and AFVs, including the following:
• Authorizes $50 million over 10 years for joint ventures with
private industry providing for commercial demonstration of
electric vehicles.
• Authorizes $40 million over 5 years for joint ventures aimed
at developing needed infrastructure and support services for
electric vehicles.
e Provides a tax deduction for the cost of AFVs, and a tax
deduction for certain AFV refueling facilities.
• Provides a tax credit for the cost of electric vehicles.
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V. GLOBAL CLIMATE CHANGE
There are a number of general provisions in the Act which are aimed
at reducing emissions of "greenhouse gases" - such as carbon dioxide
and methane gas - which may result in global warming. These include
energy efficiency and renewable energy programs, research and
development on ways of making more efficient use of coal, provisions
to encourage recovery of coalbed methane gas, and measures to expand
the use of alternative motor fuels.
There are, in addition, provisions which specifically deal with
global climate change including:
• Directing DOE to establish a national baseline inventory
of greenhouse gas emissions.
• A program for the voluntary reporting of greenhouse gas
emissions.
• The appointment of a Director of Climate Protection within
the Department of Energy.
• The preparation of a least-cost energy strategy for reducing
the generation of greenhouse gas emissions.

VI.

ELECTRICITY REGULATION

The Act makes substantial revisions in federal regulation of
electric utilities. These changes are aimed at increasing
competition on the wholesale level by promoting the creation of
independent electric generation companies and by opening up the
electric transmission system.
• Public Utility Holding Company Act
The National Energy Policy Act establishes a new class of "exempt
wholesale generators" (EWGs) that can generate and sell electric
power at wholesale without being subject to restrictions contained
in the Public Utility Holding Company Act.
EWGs can construct, own
or lease, and operate power plants anywhere in the nation, and sell
their electricity to utilities and municipalities.
The federal Act allows power plants already included in a utility's
rate base to be considered as EWGs only if state regulators
determine that doing so is in the public interest and will benefit
consumers.
It requires state regulators to make similar findings in
order for an EWG to be able to sell electricity to an affiliated
utility.
State commissions are provided access to EWG books and
records to help carry out their obligations.
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• Transmission Access
In order to ensure that EWGs and other independent electrlcity
wholesalers can del
the power
generate. ~he Act allows the
Federal
Regulatory Commission (FERC) to order utilities to
"wheel 11 power - that is, to transmit electricity "':.hrouah their
ion lines on behalf of other parties, including EWGs.
FERC may issue a transmission order if doing so lS found to be in
the public interest, and if the price is fair and reasonable.
Among other things, the wheeling price charged to the wholesale
generator must ensure that the transmitt
utility's existing
customers are not unfairly charged for costs associatd with the
transmission. The Act also prohibits a transmission order :f it
would impair a utility's ability to provide reliable power to its
own customers.
The Act also prohibits FERC from ordering utilities to engage in
11
retail" wheeling - the transmission of power, on behalf of others,
to ultimate consumers.
The Act suggests that the authority to
authorize retail wheeling rests with state regulators.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A number of controversial energy issues did not reach resolution
during the congressional debate and, therefore, were excluded from
the federal Act. They include:
e more stringent CORPORATE AVERAGE FUEL ECONOMY (CAFE} standards
to reduce gasoline consumption;
e opening the ARCTIC NATIONAL WILDLIFE REFUGE to oil drilling;
e a moratorium on new OUTER CONTINENTAL SHELF {OCS) OIL AND GAS
leases, including offshore California.
This session Congress may revisit these issues.
In addition, the Congress will be considering the President's recent
proposal to impose a broad-based TAX ON ENERGY in order to reduce
the federal deficit, promote energy conservation and protect the
environment.
This tax will yield the federal government an
estimated $71 billion over the next four years.
The energy tax will apply to all fuels, from gasoline to coal,
natural gas and nuclear power.
There have been varying estimates
that the new energy tax could cost the average household anywhere
between $100 and $250 a year.
That is roughly $10-to-$20 a month
spread across gasoline prices, heating and cooling costs.
When
fully implemented by 1997, the tax may add an estimated 8 cents a
gallon to the price of gasoline and boost energy utility bills
by 3% to 4%.
-9-

ISSUES FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

WHAT ACTION IS THE WILSON ADMINISTRATION (E.G., CEC, PUC, ARB)
TAKING IN RESPONSE TO THE NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT?
ARE THEY PARTICIPATING IN FEDERAL RULEMAKING PROCEEDINGS?
ARE THEY PLANNING TO ADOPT NEW STATE REGULATIONS?
TO WHAT EXTENT DOES CALIFORNIA ALREADY COMPLY WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF THE FEDERAL ACT?
WHAT CHANGES IN STATE ENERGY POLICY OR PROGRAMS WILL MOST
LIKELY RESULT FROM THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE FEDERAL ACT?
HOW WILL THE FEDERAL ACT AFFECT THE COST OF ENERGY TO
CALIFORNIA CONSUMERS?
WILL THE FEDERAL ACT LEAD TO IMPROVED ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
IN CALIFORNIA?
WILL THE FEDERAL ACT STIMULATE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND NEW
JOBS IN THE STATE?
IS THERE A NEED FOR NEW STATE LEGISLATION TO COMPLY WITH OR
OTHERWISE BENEFIT FROM THE FEDERAL ACT?
IS THERE A NEED TO WORK WITH THE CALIFORNIA CONGRESSIONAL
DELEGATION TO HELP ENSURE THAT CALIFORNIA RECEIVES A FAIR
SHARE OF THE BENEFITS PROVIDED BY THE FEDERAL ACT?
TO WHAT EXTENT WILL STATE AND PRIVATE SECTOR FUNDS BE NEEDED
TO ATTRACT FEDERAL FUNDS AVAILABLE UNDER THE FEDERAL ACT?
WILL THE GOVERNOR'S PROPOSED PLAN TO POSSIBLY REORGANIZE STATE
ENERGY FUNCTIONS HELP OR HINDER CALIFORNIA'S ABILITY TO COMPLY
WITH AND BENEFIT FROM THE PROVISIONS OF THE FEDERAL ACT?
IF NEW FEDERAL ENERGY LEGISLATION IS INTRODUCED, SHOULD THE
STATE SUPPORT TOUGHER FEDERAL CAFE STANDARDS AND RES~.RICTIONS
ON OCS OIL AND GAS DEVELOPMENT?
HOW WILL THE PRESIDENT'S PROPOSED BROAD-BASED ENERGY TAX
AFFECT CALIFORNIA?

*

*

*

*
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SUPPLEMENT TO THE BACKGROUND MEMORANDUM FOR THE
SENATE ENERGY AND PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE HEARING ON
THE NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT

EXCERPTS FROM PRESIDENT CLINTON'S ECONOMIC PLAN:
THE IMPACT ON ENERGY PROGRAMS
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Appendix

TABLE 3. PROPOSED CHANGES TO MANDATORY PROGRAMS
(Outlays In m1111ona of dollarS)

1994-·------------------~~--------------------------1997

1994

1997

1995
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-460
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-12
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~
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-116

-116

-116 -··--·---

-348

Charge fee for State SS1 admlni$traSIOn _____.........._.,_ ....

-110

-180

-180

-190

-020

Income Sec:unty:

126

-50

-c.:

El

6
4

106

47
41

22

19

41

14

26

1
28

10

9

28

141

54

26
33

7
7

9

14

. u .. ~~-~~,.,...,_

·•~,...,.~~,.~~

~~-··
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TABLE 5. INVEsTMENT PROPOSALS

-

(In millions a1 dollars•
,9Q,L

1994

1995

1996

1997

1997

1998

Totl!il

R£BUI.D AMERJCA-fNFRASTRUCTURE
~
~nHjd

highway program _________ ,_ _

Sm.11t CII'IIIINWt hlghwayt (pan of federal.&ld highway
obllg81lanl)--Mass trMSit formula

ca-.. Qrants------

Hl;iMipelld rail end

MAGLEV----·---·-----·lllletv and other trlni!)Cftatlon capilli

402

1,136

1,847

1,831

1,402

(70)

(85)
14S
140

(90)

(100)

(100)

(34S)

391

864

1.209

2ZI

839
258

305

37
22

88
44
140

98
47

646
201

99

6S
38
111

38

99

153

181
200

11

20

H11
344
295
18

3.097

8.434
1,328
2,700

23
'0

~ hiQtnnly

11

~ -~ .........,..M_,...,....---·-·-•--•-•
AJr ttatr1c ~ •nodernAzaclun-·--------·-·--·-··
Public land highwayllnd Indian 1'818rvdon roaa. - - - ·
H!Oft-tpMCirall bOncls (tax l n C I U I N e ) - - - - -

5
24

Subtotal,~

5

4H1

...

2.192

2.781

2.964

172

440
900

892

840

1,402

1.868
23
160

5,8UJ

~

Ortnldng W!!31' . . . . ~ tuna. (EPA)--..-·--·-.. -Clean W8W
moMng fundi (EPA)
Safety ol dams Oft lndiM ~ (lntenor) - · - · w. . ,........ -·10~ (Corps ot EnQineers)--·-·--

24
54

W8JIInrhed ,...... I'IIIIIIDfdolt·(EPA>------·--EnW'onmemal ...,allan and wua ~(DOE) .......
~for Ute F'ulln

15

'*'

-----

e

114

3S
4IS
96

14

48

5

1(1

USDA)·----...................- .........--.-......._._..

187

384

National1....-dl lrlltiaiM grams (USDA) · - - · - - · - - Fot'*'Y
Rllllllcft Initiative (USDA) _ _ _ _ _ , _ , . _

:J3
2
18

04
18

(USDA)---·---·--..--...- ............

*-

4

n

344
12
147
34

w.... ...,.....madllt........ (NOAA)-·---·-·-..-·-..·-

Environmental technology (EPA)
Gleen PfOOIIIIII (EPA)____
-Nllural I'8SOUR» prot8Cdon and enwonmentallnfralruc:ture
(ln1lel'ior and
Tl"f!JJt ptanctno lntlladve (USDA) ..............- .................... _, __

$ubtablf. Emrln•••.nt

20
160
43

7D

23
160
47
107

48

59
$44
139

70
84
23

50
127
25

148
50
-18
175
25

509
76
110

538
79
160

1,531
248

58

471
73
60
84

105

122

2S1

527

1,458

2.548

3,483

4,017

8.018

6

42
240

107

178

2!J7

10l5

3M

4154

544

331
1,155

111

282

483

830

751

1,488

18
49

30
152

18
18

83
8

30
270
94
9

48

188

304

420

520

940

S5

11

2S
!50

ms

90
Z43

112
439

9

39

72

eo

ss

420

178

535

950

1,305

1.639

24

so

50

220
170
290
271

69

188

Rural~~

Runll Wlllllr and _... . . . , loans and
Bul!dnrlsllllld earrmunlly lnltladvw

grant~~

(USDA)----

(USDA)·-·---·-·--

Subtotal, Rural Devetopment lnftietlwa

*

Energy:

~ fuela

vehlclel---·-------··----

En«IIVY efflcieney In Federal bulldlnga - " - -..- - · - tncreaae wealtleriZatlon grams (DOE)·-·-..--··--·-·-·-·
Clo-.out c:oeta for DOE teadOt8
Enotgy c:cnser\'IIIOn and nmewable energy programs
(Ener;y Pallc:P/ Act) - · - -..·-·-..- ....·--·-·--·-...............
Nahn.l gaa ~ and d~ Emphaslz.e utillmticn.
Attv8rlcad neutton
Fut:lan I!II'Wt!VY .....,.n:;,, __ ·-··-..-·..--..- .............-·-··-·--

IICUI'at.-·-·-·-·-·--·-.....................- ..

SUbtt:*l. EIWI1IY

s

30

30

329

342

108
BOO

100

100

275
38

3

175

210

2.968

U!

......

-"'-
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TABLE 5. INVESTMENT PROPOSALS-Continued
(ln milliON of dollars)

1996

1997

1998

UFElONG LEA.ANIHG

W1C (~ ~ food PfDQ1'1111'1 for womet1. infants.
ernd ~)- ...............----··-··············-··-··-··-·-·······-··-··

~em Family&!~······-·-··--------·--··-··-··

318
40
932

~- B1ac::1k Gmnt -·-·-··-·-··-··-···-·-··

30

95

Refofm IV'!d ~~ .............................._...................

206

1,043

1,000
000
4,582
250
3,083

~~~~(tax~)--··-··-··

425

1,903

~ ---~-·-·-------·--·---·--··-·-·

458
1,0.U

565

98

~400

6,030

~nQ·-··-·-·-·-··-·- ..-·"·-..--·-··-·-·-·--··--··

60

2,000
344

4,598

H~ Sl:ial't ----·-··-·-··-·····-·-·····--·-···-----··-··-··
Child C<Ue
~

Nlitklmlli

m'ld

532
65

1.886

Workllif Tm!nlng I~
D~ WOltM ~ NJ. (fer NAFTA. o.tense
/AeimmliiiWit Wid T~. Enu!w ConwnRon, anci Traaa

1

Job Corp$:~ "'SS-55 plan"..................................................
Job CorP~: ellmlna ~ ~ ......._ .....................
JTPA. SOO'II'J'I« ytMh emp~oymant llll'ld tminlng ·-·----·-··

On~~~·---·---·----01d« ~ ~-------·-------·

YCJ&J'd1 ~ ·"'-.......-................................................. -·-··-·

w~ ~------·----·--·---·---·
Taru!Jtl!ld

Jobs tax credit (tu ~t~cen~~ve; ·--·-·---·-·

~. W~

Tf81nlng lni~Mt~wn----SUBTOTAL. TAX INCENTIVES ....-. ............_.. _··-·-··-··.. --·
SUBTOTAL. SPENDING INCEN'TIVES ··-.. --··-·-··-··· ..-·

TOTAL. UFB..ONG LEARNING---·-·-·---·--··-··

11
7
247
30

4
32

6

2,634
850
9,284
470
6,152

879
32

1.899

1,960

96

202

20
540

32

45

625
250

625
250

625

2,031

250

34

35

35

700
95

448

485

500

170
22
243

so

3 ···--·-··· ·-··-·..·-· ···------·
400
400
605

110

327

595

785
6.592

341
104

1.218
9
1,399

-----------------------------------3,690
4,108
2.,236
10.501
stil
4,409

2,021

898

1.(124

11.245

14,&64

1,170
11U399

15.688

17,889

3,302
34,522

-----------------------------------31,W
7:J17 12.143
2.818

AEWQDING WORK
Earr!od Income tax audit (tax ~)

·----

~of~~-·--·--·---..·-·

Crime In~. inducilno ~

525
6.228
6,4£5
15,!162
15,927
2.400 - - - · -.. -·--··-· ............- ........_............

Poticlno, Crlminat

~'I Upgl"'!!du, iltld Pob Corps--·-·-··-·--·-·-·· ..··-··
Equal ~ ~ Commitllon .......·--·--·--·-·

521

19,860

2.400
2.298
63
19.880
4,781

SUBTOTAL, TAX INCEN'rn/ES · - - - · - · - · - - · - - · SUBTOTAL. SPENDING INCemvES .......... _____ _

2.620

e.22S
538

72.5
18
6,445
743

TOT;t.L. REWARDING WORK ..- -..... _ ..................... - .. -··-·

3.145

6,7Ba

7,188

348
80
46
54

1,660

98

355

Food~--~-----·---·-··
1.000
I.Dw~ Home ~ ~ Pmonsm - .. - ................... -·-·-·-·..

2.000

9,000
1,947

210
10
525

17

842

918

18

18

6,862

6,927

880

938

7,522

HEALTH CARE
AIOS, vi01Tiftn's ~ ~NIH ~ and o1her

public I'!Nttl'l ~ --··-·-·-·-·-.. -· .....- ................._._.......
AID~ 'Nhlte Act....... ___ ................- •• -·--··-·---·-~ abl..ll'l8 pl"&ll'llntion and tn.atrrlltl"'t ........ ,_.......................
Food ~ ~ (USDA) and em~ food assistance....

*

/

192

8.182
948

201

1,506

316

........
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TABLE 6. REVENUE AND RECEIPTS PROPOSALS

-

(In billioN ot dollarw)

*

1995

1994

1993

Rewnue R.a..ng Pf'QtlDI'IIIII' ·
1.8
Aa!u tndlvldual lnc:ome taxes far upper lnC:OI'riH •
~HI tmcat11e W8Q8 b&M ••-·-·····---·-·· ···-·---·1nc::rease toe:~ Income tax rate on large

1998

1997

19941997
TOial

1998

'0.7

19.9

22.9

28.3

Z1.7

2.8

8.0

6.4

6.8

7.2.

0.4

7.7

/Blood
baled en.r;y tax · - · - · - - - - - · ... - - - CIQ posaualcns ta c:rac11t (sec. 93e) at 85% ot

1.5

5.4
8.9

5.5
16.4

5.7
22.3

22.4

.24.4
48.0

~ tD

38%-·--·---·-·-··-1

W80flll--·-·---··-·-----·-··-··-·-·Sdrlrice lndusay
_____ ·-··-·-, _____ .. _
~

tn~Ciat~Ya,

0..2

o.s

1.8

2.1

0.1

0.8

1.3

•

1.9
0.1

2.2
2.2
0.1

4.8
4..0
0.1

0.3

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

1.6

1.8

3.2
O.B
1.1

3.4

3.7

4.0

12.'1

0.3
0.5

0.8
1.1

0.9

0.9

1.1

0.7

2.7
3.8

0.1

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

1.3

2.6

2.6

2.6

0.6
0.3

0.1

0.8

5.2
2.1

0.3

0.3

Q.9

0.2

0.1

0.9

0.2

0.2
0.1

o.s

2.2

8.5

0.2

1.0

77.9

Tax ldelilll'leaon Nurnbllr (TIN) validation ..........-. - - -

018811ow unrellallllbfe ..,....__· - · - · · - - ___ , ___

5.8

98.8
22.0

AesiJtel daauc:clon far ~ metiAI and

60'li----·-·--··-·-cap·-··-·-·-- --·-··_._.._,_

encert:l!il:tnn'len to
R«fuae pension c:ornpenaatlon

t.tari: to mar1alt for I8CUI1ly ~ .......-·-·--· ·--...........
OleaJlow mavtno ~ for l'1'le8M and ....

-·-··-......._.- --·-·-··

estata~---

:t

/

2.5 cent par QIIIOn oas - - - · -.........___ ................. ___.........
Eldend SS'l6 and ~ - - tax rate_.,_____ ----·o.s
o.s
Dlliny deducliOn far club dUDI.....______...... - - · - 0.2
0.1
0.1
Prohlbl GOubllllodlp l8Jited m FSUC asslatanol-.
0.8
0.8
0.1
0.2
Deny labbylng ~-------·-·E:~aenG

-·

Deny deducltlon for ....,.,.,. pay OYer $1 ~.
I~ tax pt'Oirislolll--·-··..·-·-·-·-·
M~ nMmUe raltJI'Q ~ - - - .................

0.1

•

0..2
0.1
1.9

0.8

0.1
1.6
0.1

-o.2

02
2.1
0.2.

0.8

0.7

SUblotll. nwenue l'llllllng ~
ltnreatrnent,latlmufus ·-·--·-·-··-..- - · - · - ·

48.1
-12.8

50.6
-l7.1

65.9
-14.8

-IS.3

80.3
-t7.0

240.4

~.4

Totlll,.,..,.,..... ~.-.....- ..--·-·-···

-3.8

33.3

33.5

51.1

S2.8

83.3

180.5

0.1
0.1

0.3

0.8

0.6

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1
0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

2.9

-su

Other~~~~~

IRS

Initiative·---------··-.........._....._....... -----"

Commadlly Fulnt Tndng Commlallon fee-·· .........- Harbor~

tax·---·------·-·- ....... ___

tiX---·---......_. ___,__ --·-··-..

•

0.1

.

Inland watwlway
sec~ tee-..-·--·-·-..------·-· ....... ___
Federal pay ,.,. (receipt ellecl:) ----·-..--·- -·--·-..
Fedetal FTC lewtll (~

-(1.1

effect)--·-·-·---.......- .........

-·

_____ , _____ ..............:. ..

0.1

Total. Oti1llf

proyte~ona._.

Addendum:
Total, net nMifMt proposals ..................- - - ·

•

-o.1
-o.1
0.2

-o.1

-o.1
o.s

51.1
33.5
0.2
0.5
0.1
2.7
6.2
~ 8514 of soda~ teQ.Wily bllneflta ........... ~. ·-.............
5.8
Corpan~t~t estlm818d tax n.d88 -·-..- - - - - - · .......... ______ ...................... ·-·-·-·-·-

-3.15
Total, other provtaions ....._, __ ,_.. _..______ ..----··

TOTAL. REVENUE AND RECEIPTS PROPOSAI.S.

-3.8

33.3

38.1

39.3

57.8

0.5

0.5

0.8

*

-o.1
-o.1

0.1

0.2

-o.1

..0.2

1.0

1.0

1.7

62.6

63.3

180.5

1.0

1.0

-o.1

-(1.4

e.s

7.7

3.9

0.8

1.7
2.1.4
3.1

74.4

72.8

2!11.5
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What We Must Now Do

-------------------------------------------------Environment and Energy Initiatives
The Administration's initianves offer certain prooftbat environmental protection
and economic growth can-and must-go hand in band. These proposals
represent a down payment not only on ionger-tei:m investments, but also on
creating a cleaner world for ourselves and our children.
Intmor/N~ YGOUI'Ce prot«tlon lllfd mvil"onmental infr€1S11'Uau.re

initia·

dvtt. This is one pan of an Adm.inistration proposal to protect and rehabilitate
America's inventory of natural and cultural weu, restore the facilities that
protl::ct these resourees. ami improve public access to them. This funding would
complete the inventory of ready-to-go resource protection projects, facility
maimena.nce., rehabilitation and construction and other similar projects that
stimulate economic growth and employment in rural and urban areas. This
investment of $349 million in 1993 would create over 11,000 jobs. Much of the
investment would be earmarked for the National Park Se.Mce alone, including
increased operational funds to keep open areas that were previously scheduled

for closure during 1993.
lnterior/ITmoric pn:rf!TWition funding for rqHiir ad Ufm-ed IMhstlmtUJU
The Administration proposes $23 million to fund a backlog of brick
and mortar rehabilitation projecu, emergency surveys, engineering reports, and
deferred tnaintenance at National Trust for Historic Preservation Museum
properties across the Narion, and other priority projects.

pro}«~&

Enviro111fU!lrtld Protection A.gtncy/W~h«< l'f!SOIU'Ce rmoratioN. The Ad·

ministration proposes $47 miJlion

to

reduce non-point source pollution which

poses a threat to the Nation's water quality.
Environ~U~ftl~J Prot«tion

Agtncy/VollllftQI'y "Green w progrvms. The Administration proposes to expand EPA's voluntary "Green" programs by $23 million

in 1993 over the current S8 million funding level. The program encourages the
Nation's business commtmity to seek ways of increasing energy efficiency.
EnvinurmentJ:d Protection A~ncy/W~ tl't!tltiMnt project The Admini-

stration proposes $845 million in capitalization grams for the construction of
sewage t:rea1mcnt tacilities. This would accelerate completion of an S18 billion
wastewater treatment grant authorization that is scheduled to end in 1994. Th.is
i.nvest~nent creates about 16,000 jobs over the four year period 1993-1997.
Coopmllive Rae/U'Ch tmd Devt*lpwu!:Nt Agreements. CRADA.s are one of the
meclwtisms by which the national laboratories can work with industry to
t:nmsfer Jab-developed technology and know-how to the private sector. Current
funding for non-defense CRADA.s is $9 million in 1993. but there is more
demand from industry for assistance through CRADA.s then can be met with
that funding. This increase will allow additional lab scientist'i to work with
industry. In addition, S4 7 million in 1993 ftmds appropriated for resean:h and
development of nuclear weapons at DOE's defense laboratories will be
redirected to research in dual use technologies.

---~-----------------------------
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What We Must ~ow Do

EnergytWeatheriuaion Assistance Program. The Admutisttation proposes S4 7
million (conditioned on matehes from States or utilities) to encou:rage State
weatherization programs to take advantage of utilities' demand-side management
(rebate and discount) prog:rams. assuring that funds go to States that demonstrate
a serious commitment to low-income weatherization activities. Approximately
62.500 additional homes will be weatherized over the currently projected
number.
Enugy/Bulldlng and industrild conservation. The Administration proposes $19
million in cost-shared funding (50 percent) for "model projectS" that
demonstrate or accelerate the commercial acceptance of advanced energy
conservation technologies and products.

EIU!I'f:Y/Altemative fiU.l vehic/4 The Administration proposes $28 million for
the acquisition of and/or conversion to additional alternative fuel vehicles in the

Federal fleet.

Federtzl buildings energy ejficieney. An additional investment of $19 million is
proposed to improve energy efficiency in facilities throughout the Federal
Government.

Stimulus: Tax Incentives
The plan also contains carefully targeted tax provisions designed to provide an
immediate boost to investment in the short term, and to encourage capital.
spending over the long run.
UlX credit. Small businesses will now be eligible for
a permanent investment taX credit on their equipment. The credit will generally
be 7 percent in 1993 and 1994 and 5 percent thereafter. Small businesses
operate at the margin and need a permanent incentive to invest, grow and
provide new employment opportunities. At the same time, the decrease in the
rate from 7 percent to 5 percent after two years will provide an incentive to
accelerate investment and add support for the current recovery.

Permanent snudl busilu3s

Temporary mtuginal itwesrment tax credit for all business. Businesses will also
be eligible for a tax credit on qualifying investments; the credit will be
temporary and will apply only to ''marginal" investment acquired between
December 3, 1992 and December 31, 1994. The credit will amount to 7 percent
in 1993 and 1994, with somewhat lower rates applicable to shorrer-lived.
property. To ensure that the credit is W'geted to marginal investment by large
companies, the credit each year is applied to investment over an historic base.

SimplifYing and enhancing deprecuuum provisions for companies $ub}ecr to
the alternative minimum tta (A.M1). CUl'l'etltly, property is depreciated for
AMT purposes over a substantially longer period than for regul.ar tax purposes.
(For example, commercial aircraft are depreciated over 7 years for regular tax
purposes and 12 years for AMT purposes.) In addition, a corporation subject to
the AMT must compute three depreciation schedules for federal tax purposes.

·>
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What We Mast Now Do

The proposal substantially enhances the investment mcentives for taxpayers
subject to the AMT and simplifies the AMT hy using the shorter regular tax
depreciable lives for minimum tu. as well as regular tax purposes. Thus, one
depreciation period will be used for computation of both the minimum and
regular tax, although the rate of depreciation will remain less rapid under the
minimum tu. than under the regular tax.
Because they reduce the net cost of acqciring depreciable assets, the investment
tax credit proposals wm stimulate invemmem by both small and l;qe
businesses. The investment tu credit proposals, coupled with the liberalized
depreciation under the minimum tax. will provide a strong and lasting stimulus
to investment, encourage modernization of productive equipment. and help

create good jobs.

What We Must Now Do

funding for drinking water and waste water construction is proposed through
EPA for new drinking water and dean water grants to
revolving funds.
Estilnated RDA outlays: over four years 1994-1997-$331 million; 1997-$176
million.
Community and busintJSS ~ This initiative would provide Federal
assistance to rural communities, businesses. and individuals, by leveraging
Federal invest:ment to allow rural areas to bei:p themselves. Farmers Home
Administration (FmHA) direct loans for community facilities would be increased
by $300 million in 1994. and SSOO million ~ for construction of rural
health care clinics, fire stations and equipment. and other vital facilities. Rural
Development Administration (RDA) ~loans for rural businesses and
indus1ries would be increased by $300 million in 1994 and SSOO million
thereafter to assist rural businesses in securing start-up capital and financing for
expansion, creating jobs and helping diversify the rur.ti economy. Additional
rural business assistance would be provided through the RDA Intermediary
R.elcnding Program that provides one pen::ent loans to State.-sponsored rural
development programs who, in tum, re-lend to rural busim::sses. These funds (an
additional $1 SO million in 1994 loans., and an additional $2.50 million in loam
each year through 1997) would be targeted to small, t:merging "micro-enter..
prises. •• In addition, RDA rural development grants would be increased by $30
million in 1994, and $50 million tberea.tb:L Businesl assistance would be
c~ through RDA's existing Stan: Rural Development Councils, whose
members include representatives from Federal. State and local gov~t
agencies, as well as the private sector.

These investments would provide increased employment opportunities for rural
individuals, and upgrade community infrastt\lCt'Ul"e to improve the quality of life
for all rural residents. The investment proposal also would improve the housing
conditions of low-income. rural individuahs. FmHA direct and guaranteed
homeownership loans would be increased by $300 million each in 1994, and by
S.SOO million each year 1995 through 1998. Rental assistance in rural areas
would also be provided through housing vouchers and grnnts for use in
FmHA·financed rental units. Vouchers would be targeted for areas where rental
units are avai.lable, but not currently affordable for low..income persons. A total
of $1 SO million in additional rental assistance would be provided through these
programs in 1994, and $300 million each year from 1995 to 1998. Estimated
RDA outlays for community and business assistance; over four years
1994-1997-$1,115 million; 1997-$454 million.

~· Energy
Without thoughtful energy~ies, our nation will remain dependent on foreign
oil and special interests. The Administration will launch initiatives to develop
new, clean. renewable energy sources that cost less and preserve the
environment. We will also encourage energy efficiency and conservation to
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lower the energy bill for m1ddle-class A.mencans. and lessen our ·vulnerability to
events outside our controL
DOE/lncrt!tlS~

funding for renewable energy and energy conservation

~sponsibilities for the
Federal government including: (1) establishment of new energy efficiency
standards; (2) authorization for enhanced research programs; and (3) new
demonstration/commercialization programs for renewable energy and energy
conservation. This initiative progressively increase:s funding in these areas,
reaching an increase of $500 million in 1997, for a four-year total increase of
S1.3 billion. The increased funding will be distributed roughly equally among
the four major program areas: solar and renewable energy, and ind.ustri~
transportation, and buildings conservation R&D. The Ia.rgest increases will go to
technology transfer and commercializati~ advanced materials (especially
ceramics), industrial wastes and materials processing. electric and hybrid
vehicles, and modeling of building systems interactions. By making a major
effort to develop and c:ormnercialize these environmentally "clean" technologie$_,
substantial energy cost savings will be rea.l.ized by consutners while creating
enormouos opportunities for economic growth and increased jobs.

programs. The Energy Policy Act of 1992 contains new

DOE/Int.:l'm8e w~n IWisttmce progrt1111. This Department of Energy
program provides funds to States to help pay for home weatheriz.ation
. improvements for low-income citi.zcos. The increase proposed here, $60 million
in 1994, and $100 million per year in 1995-97, would be distributed differently
than the typical "formula grants,.. in order to increase the leverage received on
taxpayer funds. Matching funds (at least 1:1) will be required from States or
utilities. This will encourage State weatherization programs to take advantnge of
utilities' demand-side management (rebate and discount) programs, and will
ensure that the funds go to States that demonstrate a serioas commitment to
low-income weatherization activities. With 1: 1 leveraging of these funds, an

additional 450,000 homes will be weatherized over the currently projected
number for the 1994-97 period.
lltt:I'I!IISe the eiU!I'fY ejficielfcy of F t!dmU buildings and fad/1J:J4. CDI'I'eTlt
Federal investment in energy efficiency improvements is running around SlSO
million per year. This initiative will increase spendirlg to almost $500 million
per year by 1996. The cumulative increase will be S1 billion over four yean.
The four biggest energy-consuming agencies-Defense, Energy, Veterans Affam
and the General Semces Administration--will receive increased ftmding for
their in-howe energy management programs directly. In addition, a fund will be
established at the Department of Energy for energy efficiency improvements
proposed by all of the remaining Federal agencies. Over 700 energy managm
will be trained in 1994, and over 2,000 per year in 1995-98. Outside energy
audit teams will review 600 Federal sites in 1994, swting with the largest
energy consumers, and 1,000 sites per year in 1995-98. By 1997 these
investments should payoff heavily, saving the Government about $350 million

per year.

48

What We Mu.st Now Do

--------------------------------------------ProvU:k incri!IUed funds for acquisi:tion of mLi!J,'JnUilnwo
Fedemi fk~ and fo,. conversion of I!Xi.sting veJddn. This
S18 million in 1994 and S30 million per year frotn 1995 through
for the
'
purchase and/or conversion of petroleum based gasoline powered motor vehicles
to alternatively fueled vehicles. This expands upon the Alternative Motor Fuels

Act (AMFA) pu:rt:hascs cumntly ftmded by appropriations to the Department of

Energy.
DOEIIIICI"et~Stt

Mtlmli gas u:tili:,ation R&D. This initiative will
double
the combined natural-gas spending of the Conservation and Fossil R&D
programs. A critical new fea.tU:re is to involve segments of the natw:al g25
industry in the design and operation of research programs. This will help ensure
that the enhanced R&D is relevant tO the needs of industry and the market p.lace.
It will also provide an opportunity for private sector cost-sharing. thereby
increasing the overall level of gas research. In the combined prog:rams. this
initiative will increase spending on natural gas utilization by $14 million in
1994, increasing to $119 million in 1997, for a total of $263 million in
additional spending over that four-year period.

Bllild 1111 tUINIICI'.d Mlltnln sourc~ uur ftu:iJJI:y for applied I'Gt!IUc.h iUtd
dndopment. This proposal would ftmd the design and consttu.ction of a national
user facility to produce rare isotopes for medical diagnosis, treatment and
n:sea.rch and to perform applied research using neutron scaUering and neutron
irradiation fl:Chniques. The facility, called the Advanced Neutron Source (ANS),
would be used by approximately 1.000 user groups each year. Users would
come from industry, universities, and Fedeml laboratories. The medic:al isotopes
produced couJd help tens of thousands of patients. Neutron scattering is a
relatively new experimental technique with applications for materials science.
meullurgy, crystallography, chemistty, industrial radiography. forensic detection
of trace elemenm, biology, and biotechnology. The heart of the facili.ty would be
a new research reactor that would have the most intense beams of steady-state
neutrons in the world--approximately five to ten times higher than the current
world leader at the Institute La,ue..Langevin in Grenoble, France. The total
projected cost of the facility is about $2.7 billion. The proposal adds $243
million in outlays over the baseline between 1994 and 1997.
DOE/IIIa'I!IISe fiU'Uliltg fo,. fusitm enttr'fU restttlf"Ch.. Fusion offm the promise of
abundant energy from readily available fuels witb low environmental impact.
The centerpiece of the research effort in magnetic fusion energy is a
collaboration among the United Sta~ the European Comman.ity, Japan. and

Russia to build an International Thermonuclear Experimental Reactor (ITER).
Design and constrUction of ITER will be a multi-billion dollar effort, that could
take two decades to complete. The United States must maintain a vital domestic
research program to support our efforts on ITER. Yet. the U.S. bas not
commissioned a major new machine for fusion research sin.ce the early 1970s.
This investment would fund moderate growth in the U.S. fusion energy program
above inflation to allow construction of a new filcility, the Tokamak Physics
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-------------------------------------------------------Experiment tTPX). Estimated additional spending 1994 and
milli.on in outlays; ($90 million in 1997).

l5

10

Community Development and Defense Conversion
If we are going to rebuild our nation, we will have to do it from the bottom
These initiatives will empower the Americans who create jobs and
incomes-small businesses, entu:pteneurs, and the drea.mers wd.h an idea and
the initiative to make it work. They will make sure that the sldlls of our de:ti!:nse
workers are not lost. but harnessed to the peacetime projects our future demands.
And these initiatives will create real oppommity in America's inner
cities-because America will not prosper until our urban areas once again
become engines of economic growth.

DUD/Provide addltioi'Uli funding for Commutdty Developmmt Blodt Grtmts
(CDBG). Community development projects are an important source of jobs
economic development both in the short- and long•term. Smtes and local
governments have a backlog of unfimded "ready to go" projects such as basic
street and bridge work. painting and resmfacin~ building rehabilitation, and
public service projects. However, the State and local needs continue to exceed
the existmg Federal contribution. The Administration's proposal would provide
an additional $690 million between 1994-1998 to continue much-needed
investment in America's communities. This additional ftmding would directly
crearc about 60.000 jobs over the next five years, with even J'l:lOfe jobs being
ctcaD:d indirectly in the local economy. These ftmds are targeted at low- and
moderate-income residents. providing assistance in areas with the greatest need
Because communities can select eligfble activities most appropriate to their local
circumstances. this additional funding will help communities where they need it
most.

Entu:t mropriu zona lqisllztibn ill ol'iie to promots ~~ mui job
Cl't!fltio11 in FedeNlly-datgniiUII :ones. The Ad.ministration's enterp!ise zone
proposal will promote encrepnmeursbip and job creation in distressed urban and
rural communities through a number of employment and investment incentives.
The proposal includes such policies as an employer wage credit and an
expansion of the tmgeted jobs tax credit in order to encourage low-iDcome
inner~ity and rural residents to obtain employment, become self·supporti.ag. :md
leave wel.fare. It ·also includes investment incentives designed to enco'I.U'lge
individuals to invest in zones. Taken together, these incentives will be a critical
factor in helping poorer cities and rural areas become economically more vital.
Estimated outlays reach $2.4 billion over four y~ with 1.2 billion in 1997.
Community Dnelop~nt Btu&b. Many Am.erican communities face problems
of deteriorating housing, loss of jobs, Lack of private enterpxise, and declining
economic and social infrastru.cture. A netWork: of community devcloptJ:lteDt banks
will be created to provide loans for business and housing purposes in dis'l:ressed
conmnmities tbat have previously been underserved by traditional lending
institutions. Government investment and technical assistance would supplement
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----'~--------------------------------------------------------------benefit most from Federal funds.
need·tested, permit schools to select less

Administration proposal reduces spending
programs by S200 million but gives schools corrroJete ..............n.Lu
remaining $1.2 billion for whichever aid approaches best meet stuclent
combination with other budget policie~ tow aid ... , ...ua.u"""
Department's major student aid programs is estimated to
reduction in ca.mpus-bascd funding. Also, the new
efficiency of the camp~-based programs in addressing student
cnabJe more funding to be used for high priority purposes..

additional community service jobs. The estimated savings
$275 million in 1997, $732 million over four years.
EdUCillionllmpact Aid "b" PaymMI& The proposal would
"b" payments to school districts over a three·yar period.
program makes payments to school d:istricts to partially

adverse impact on the school district of the presence of
federally connected children. However., "b" payments,
payments, are
based on children who either do not actually live on Federal property or whose
parents do not work on that property. Most ~" children live
on property that is taxed by the schooJ district and have ..........u..u,.,..
and .local taxes used to finance local education. Estimated <H~V!mo<e
mjtlion in 1997, S404 million over four years.
DOE/Supnconducting Supu Collldu. The Administmrion is
to
development of the superconducting super coUider as a major contribution to
scientific information for the future. The Administration
however, that
in order to ensure that all of the components of this project are technologically
effective, the project schedule should be extended.
Energy/Uranium enrichment. The Department of Energy's uranium enrichment
program will become a government corporation, known as the U.S. Enrichm.ent
Corporation, on July 1, 1993. It will be required to operate as a commcrc:ial

bumess enterprise on a profitable and efficient basis. The Administration is
moving in this direction by proposing sevm.l actions to enhance the cost
effectiveness of Federa.l uranium enrichment-reLated activities while -•·~?
the Administration's nuclear non-proliferation policies. These Administration
initiatives provide for: ( 1) the phase-out by 1996 of one of the operaw:ag
diffusion plants; (2) lower Federal costs for power purchased for Federn.l.
uranium enrichment operations; and (3) speed-up of the pu.rchase of highly
enriched uranium from the republics of the former Soviet Union. This will allow
former weapons grade uranium to be recycled into commercial power reactor
fuel, provide a valuable commercial activity for the former
advance m11tUal nuclear weapons non-proliferation goals. .t.stuna'tea
$386 million in 1997, $1.3 billion over four years.
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EMrgy!StrtJUgic Petroleum Reserve.
contains over 570 million barrels
defusing the impacts of oil disruptions
as
invasion of Kuwait, and
deterring .market U.W..i.UIJ·\.Utluv&~
countries. The U.S. today obtains less t.han ........,"'Uu.o:u
countries, and the rate at which we continue to fill

saving money for the taxpayer. The Adm:in.istration pmposres
rate by one-third, from 20,000 barrels of oil per
to
Tramporflltion/FederaJ Aviation Admini.stl'tlliDn

stn~llillimg.

has occUlTed in the budget of the Federal
upgrade operations following the 1981 firing
controllers. The controller work force bas been reestablished.
traffic growth has slowed. These factors lead the Aru:nm:~strnnon
modest decrease in operational funding. This reflects rellt!Cecl
the agency transitions from a period of rapid growth to one
exi.sting operating levels in the face of slowed aviation traffic ~·rmt\ J:stilwlted
gavings are $62 miUion in 1997, $241 million over four years.
Housittg and Urbtm Devdopmmt/Modify fea for FtdemJ IUJJ.LSm;r.
Administration proposes to reduce gradually to a uniform level
Department of Housing and Urban Development pays to local
administer several Federal housing subsidy programs. Independent st'Wllles
Genernl Accounting Office and a HUD contractor determined that
fee substantially e'Cc~ the costs of services the local adllnm:asttiUl'\re
provide. The plan will reduce Federal housing costs and eiiminate windfall
to administrative agents. Estimated savings are $193
1997,
million over four years.
Housing lll'ld Urbrm Develop!Mnt/Comolidtltl! severtli HUD nll'\llllln'tlmt.li1
HOME. This proposal to consolidate funding for several HUD
programs into the HOME program allows staW and large urban
flexibility and efficiency in providing low-income housing asmwtm!lce...................,.
allows local officials to cietmnine and pay for the housing asS!!stance~1ew
con.struction. tenant based assistance, rehabilitation of ex.tsttt1g hiJUSJlD2---tfilt
best meets the needs of the community. Several current HUD
are very costly: Budget ptesiSUI'eS have continuously rea.uce:d
additional housing subsidies these specific programs can ""''""""'""' LOltlSOil103hOil
will increase the amount of total resources available to ft"'l:I1J'tweaddress their most critical ]ow-income housing needs. The
for states and locals to match 25-30 percent of the Federal funds 1"1'1'nvrn••"'
community. With this leveraging of local resomces. this proposal to shift run«nng
to HOME provides savings for the Federal gov•ernmeJnt Ul"lTnn·•w
amount of public resources dedicated to meeting the
low-income people. Estim.a.red savings over four years:
savings in 1997: $150 million.
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marked improvement in complinnce will result from this mvestment
resources .

.A.nother set of provisions will reduce the tax incentives for tJ.S.
operate abroad. These include encouraging research and
performed in the United States and the related products to be
as well. preventing multinational oil companies from sheltering foreign
by i.nflating their working capital reserves abroad, and compelling multinationals
to pay tax on excessive passive earnings accumulated abroad.
Securities dealers will no longer be permitted inventory accounting
have allowed the recognition of losses. but not ga.in.s and wi.ll !:l'"'""''"''"'-'
required to conform their tax treatment to their accounting practices. This
result in additional revenues of $1.1 billion in 1997. In addition. certain
businesses which have acquired troubled savings and loans will not be
deductions for asset losses subject to Government reimbursement. This proposal
will result in additional revenues of $200 million in 1997.
The tax gaJ>-the difference between what people owe in taxes and
is
acrually paid-is a persistently large number. The lion's share of this
is
attributable to unreported income, often by business. The package includes
several provisions-raising over $2 billion in 1997-to get at this problem and
improve compliance with the tax laws in other ways.

Introducing a broad-based energy tax. The package introduces a broad-based
tax on aU types of energy, based on the energy content of the fuel (measured
British Thermal Units or BTIJs), to be collected at the source. The tax is
designed to promote energy conservation and to reduce harm to
environment Coal and natural gas will be taxed at the rate of $.257 per minion
BTUs, while oil will be taxed at the rate of $.599 per million BTUs. The higher
rate on oil is intended to promote energy security and the use of cleaner burning
fuels. The new taX raises $18.3 billion in 1997 (net of the offsets described
below).
Energy taxes will encourage conservation by making energy more expensive,
reducing pollution. and decreasing the country's dependence on foreign energy
suppliers. Despite a drop in oil prices during the Persian Gulf War, this country
still depends on foreign sources for nearly half of its oil and about one-fifth of
its total energy.
Without some form of adjustment or offset, the broad-based energy tax
impose a particularly heavy burden on low-income households. To avoid such an
ouwome. the energy tax is accompanied by proposed increases in transfers under
the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (LIHEA.P) and Food Stamp Programs.
Since many low-income households are outside of the labor force and
tax
system, these programs are needed to alleviate the' burden of the energy tax.

Other Proviskms. The package includes a number of other miscellaneous

revenue-raising proposals. including extension of the 2.5 cents per gallon
gasoline tax currently scheduled to expire in 1995.
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Impact of energy
Here are estimates
P<'l fllllic,tclluld
of President Clinton's """'"""''~,...
based on
1990
est1mate the annual cost after the tlx to,
in
1, 1996 .
"'l\fL\Y<""}.....,r'\
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ASHINGTON-For most Americans, the only
of the
program that will hit their pocketbooks directly is the
all fuels, from gasoline to coal
to nuclear power.
Administration officials estimate that the new tax will cost the
average household between $100 and $150 a year. At roughly $10 a
month spread across gasoline prices, heating costs and electric
bills, many consumers will barely notice it, the officials hope.
Higher fuel costs to business likely will be passed on to
consumers, but the disguised price increases on a variety of
manufactured goods should not be burdensome, officials said.
When fully implemented by 1997, the tax will add an estimated 8
cents a gallon to the price of gasoline and boost utility bills by 3%
to 4%, mdustry officials said.
The energy tax will yield an estimated $71.4 billion over the next
four years.
The biggest tax burden will be borne by the wealthiest 1.2% of
taxpayers, who would supply $126.3 billion in new revenues for the
federal Treasury through higher income ta.xes.
A new tax bracket of 36% would apply to taxable income over
$115,000 for individuals and $140,000 for couples. A surcharge on
incomes above $250,000 a year would bring rates on those
taxpayers to nearly 40%.
Social Security recipients with incomes above $25,000 for
individuals and $32,000 for couples will pay taxes on 85% of their
benefits, as opposed to the current 50%. The total take from this
new tax is estimated at $21.4 billion over four years.
Families and individuals earning $30,000 a year or less would be
insulated from the new taxes through an expanded federal
earned-income tax credit.
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CHAIRMAN HERSCHEL ROSENTHAL:
known as CAL-SPAN.

We're being televised on the California cable channel

I want to let the camera crew know that we'll start the hearing in

30 seconds.
I want to welcome everyone here today to the first hearing of the newly constituted
Senate Energy and Public Utilities Committee.
session, none of whom are here.
committee assignments.

We have three new committee members this

Maybe they have their bad habits from previous

I look forward to their participation on this committee --

that's Senators Hayden, Hughes, and Torres.
Today we are holding a hearing on the recently enacted National Energy Policy of
1992.

This new law of the land has many goals, including decreasing the nation's

reliance on foreign oil, increasing domestic energy production through conventional
means and the use of renewable energy, promoting greater energy efficiency, and
accelerating the commercialization of clean-fuel vehicles.
California prides itself on maintaining a visionary state energy policy that seeks
to meet the energy demands of our citizens and businesses while protecting our
environment.

To ensure that our energy strategy for the future complements the

National Energy Policy Act, it is essential that California fully understand both the
requirements and of the benefits associated with this new federal act.
This year, I'm serving as Chairman of the Energy Committee of the National
Conference of State Legislatures -- known as NCSL.
at a committee meeting in Washington, D.C.,

r

A few months ago, while presiding

met with

u.s.

Department of Energy

officials and members of the Clinton transition team to discuss this federal act.
I came away from that meeting significantly impressed by the ambitious
implementation tasks that lie ahead.

More importantly, I came away committed to

ensuring that California takes all actions necessary to share in the benefits that the
act offers to states.

Those benefits include federal financial assistance that

translates into improved state energy programs, enhanced environmental quality, and job
development.
Both the federal government and other states often view California as having an
-1-

excellent, far-sighted, comprehensive energy

which we do.

What concerns me is

that this observation may be used to justify directing new federal energy assistance to
other states.

In other words, we may be penalized for our success.

the so-called "ABC" philosophy in Washington, which means

This is

of

But California".

Last week when I attended the California Economic Summit, I was

ied to hear

President Clinton declare his support for helping California move out of its recession.
I believe new California energy programs, such as the development of electric vehicles
and the export of new energy technologies, can help create the jobs of the future that
will revitalize our state's economy.

That's why I believe it is so important for

California to be an active participant in the implementation of the National
Policy Act.
As the Clinton Administration begins to implement the federal act, and as Congress
starts to earmark appropriations for the act, it's my goal that a partnership be formed
among the Wilson Administration, the Legislature, our Congressional delegation, and
interest groups, such as California utilities, energy companies, environmentalists,
consumer groups, and labor organizations to lobby federal officials and Congress on
behalf of California programs.
I want to make certain that we share in the new opportunities to enhance energy
efficiency, promote renewable energy technologies, and commercialize clean fuel
vehicles.

But I believe that in addition to demanding attention for California, we

must show our commitment to help develop and finance new energy programs.
That's why I've introduced Senate Bill 314 which appropriates $1 million in oil
overcharge funds to leverage federal funds available under the National Energy Policy
Act.

I expect private industry, including energy utilities, to contribute to this

effort to attract federal funds.
I've also introduced Senate Bill 215 which seeks to persuade the federal government
to select California to participate in a five-state pilot program to increase the use
of energy-efficient mortgages.

The five selected states will receive federal funding.

In addition, Senate Bill 315 would authorize California to adopt energy-efficiency
-2-

standards for mobile homes in the event federal standards are not issued later this
year.

This bill takes advantage of a National Energy Policy Act provision which

removed a federal pre-emption hurdle barring states from issuing such standards.
I've also introduced legislation promoting the commercialization of electric
vehicles.

Senate Bill 334 provides a $1,500 state sales tax exemption for

zero-emission vehicles.

And Senate Bill 335 authorizes utilities to support the

commercial use of electric vehicles.

I am hoping that these electric vehicle bills

will help leverage federal participation and funding authorized under the National
Energy Policy Act.

I also want to announce this committee will be holding a hearing on

March 23 concerning electric vehicles.
Coming back to today•s hearing, I want to find out what more we can and should do
by way of state legislation, regulation and funding, to ensure that California fully
complies with and benefits from the National Energy Policy Act.
In addition, last week the President announced his proposal to adopt a broad-based
national energy tax.

I believe such a tax is worth supporting if it is fairly applied,

it is used to reduce the federal deficit, and stimulates both energy conservation and
environmental protection.

We need to learn more about this proposal.

To help us explore all of these issues, we have with us an excellent group of
witnesses.

Our opening speaker will be David Meyer from the

u.s.

Department of Energy

who will comment both on the National Energy Policy Act and on the newly proposed
national energy tax.

I'm exceptionally grateful that the Clinton Administration agreed

to send a witness to our hearing.
Additional witnesses include the chairman of the Energy Commission, as well as
representatives from the California Public Utilities Commission, and the California Air
Resources Board.

The state administration witnesses will be followed by a panel of

energy utility officials.

Finally, the last panel includes individuals representing a

broad spectrum of interests affected by the new federal act.
The opening speaker and the stqte administration witnesses are invited to offer
comprehensive remarks.

Following their testimony, I'd ask the remaining witnesses to

-3-

limit their comments to no more than 10 minutes so that we have time for all the
panelists to speak and for questions.
Following the completion of the panel discussions, we will have an open microphone
session to take brief comments from persons whose views were not represented by the
witnesses.

Those wishing to speak at the open microphone period should place their

name on a sign-up sheet which is available from the committee sergeant in the back.
One final comment.

This morning I received from NCSL excerpts from President

Clinton's economic plan that involve energy programs.
members.

I've provided a copy to the

Some additional copies have been set out for the public.

The President's plan not only includes energy program reductions to help cut the
deficit but also targeted investments to reduce our dependence on foreign oil and
promote clean energy technologies.

In particular I noticed that the President has

earmarked almost $1 billion for energy conservation and renewable energy programs
authorized by the National Energy Policy Act.

And to offset the impact of the proposed

national energy tax on the poor, the President has substantially increased the federal
low-income home energy assistance and weatherization programs.
This is interesting and helpful material, and let's begin and hear from the
Department of Energy.

Before I do that, I want to introduce one of the new members of

the committee, Senator Tom Hayden.
Okay.
change.

Mr. Vito Sagliano.

Welcome.

I'm sorry.

I've got the wrong one.

There's been a

I'm sorry.

David Meyer, the Deputy Director, Office of Electricity and Generating Fuels
Policy, U.S. Department of Energy.
MR. DAVID H. MEYER:

Welcome.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and greetings also to other members

of the committee.
It's my distinct pleasure to be here today to talk to you about the National Energy
Policy Act, which we at least in the department now call EPACT.

I've seen other people

calling it, using the acronym, N-E-P-A, NEPA, which obviously has been used already for
the Environmental Protection Bill of 1968.

-4-

So, well, at any rate, my introductory remark is more than just a conventional
introductory remark, that is, I and many others, in the department and others in the
Washington area, have worked intensively on this bill, now this law, for more than
three years.

And with enactment the bill has gone into the implementation stage, and

we are very aware of the extent to which the law depends upon the states for successful
implementation.
I want to say that the Clinton Administration does not look upon EPACT as simply
another inheritance from the earlier team.

This bill received very strong bipartisan

support in both the House and the Senate, and the administration regards the law as
vital to achievement of its energy, economic, and environmental objectives.

And the

administration will therefore implement the bill fully and vigorously.
EPACT sets an energy policy framework without being rigid.

It allows room for the

administration and the states to express and carry forward their sense of priorities in
the energy sector.

EPACT has many elements which respond to California's needs and

concerns, such as increased energy efficiency, development of renewable resources and
technologies, and increased use of alternative-fueled vehicles.
The Department of Energy, as part of the administration's current development of
its budget for fiscal year '93 and '94 and beyond, is significantly reorienting its
priorities.

Many of the decisions that have been made and will be made over the next

several weeks will allocate more resources to areas of particular interest to
California.

The new budget will, of course, be very tight, but there is recognition in

many areas of the need, in many areas covered by this bill, to rely on the states and
to aid the states in carrying out their responsibilities under the act.
The bill addresses a very broad range of energy topics, and I will not attempt to
summarize them for you here.

Other speakers here today will review specific subjects

in some detail, and I note that your staff have already prepared an excellent summary
of the bill for your use.

Accordingly, I will talk about some of the main themes, the

conceptional glue that hold the bill's parts together; and I will talk about the
administration's approach to implementation of the bill.
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CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Let me just break in for just one moment.

I want to welcome

the additional two new members to the committee, Senator Torres and Senator Hughes.
Welcome.
MR. MEYER:

The first major theme of the bill is its comprehensiveness, that is, it

covers virtually the entire spectrum of energy policy concerns, and I want to explain
the importance of this comprehensive approach.
The comprehensiveness was, I think, critical to the enactment of the bill, critical
to the way the bill was able to survive, what appeared repeatedly to be near-fatal
derailments.

This stress on comprehensiveness is necessary when you are dealing with

very complex and interrelated issues.

If you don't take that big-picture approach,

it's very easy to gain ground in some areas while losing it in others for no net
improvement, so that by putting out a complex package and telling people that you're
going to hold the package together and challenging those who want to make changes to
say, "Well, look, if you're going to suggest changes, you're going to have to help us
come up with the offset somewhere else."

This may sound familiar, it may sound like

the same approach that you're hearing with respect to some of the current debates in
Washington.

I think that similarity is there.

It's characteristic of these kinds of

very complex problems.
The key issue in developing the bill then, given its comprehensiveness and its
complexity, was to get the right balance among the issues, among options, and among the
many categories of players in the energy section.
Another major theme in the bill is the recognition that the federal role in the
energy sector is limited.

There is a broad range of other public and private players

that have important roles, and the critical part is to respect that diversity but at
the same time find ways of getting the right signals to the right parties.

EPACT

relies, where practical, on market forces to determine energy prices, quantities
produced, and technology and fuel choices.

However, where regulation is clearly

needed, EPACT relies extensively on the states for appropriate action as in the
regulation of transactions between electric utilities and affiliate power producers or
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in the strengthening of building codes.
Another major theme in the bill is the promotion of new options, that is, we sought
to open new doors for energy producers or energy consumers without foreclosing existing
options.

Some examples include the support for a very wide array of options for

shifting to alternative-fueled vehicles.

Another example is the provisions for reform

of the Public Utility Holding Company Act that enable but do not require increased
competition in wholesale power markets.
And finally, the last example here at any rate, is the support for continued R&D
for a wide range of new energy technologies.

We remain committed to the need to

maintain a very broad, technological menu for the long term.

It's important, with an

economy that is as diversified as ours, it's necessary to have that broad menu to
enable parties to select from the menu to match very carefully and closely the energy
technology to the energy application involved, to get an efficient match.

If you get

an efficient match, that contributes very importantly to economic efficiency over the
long term.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Let me just --that's quite extensive, and if you can, give us

some of the highlights without going through all of •..
MR. MEYER:

All right.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. MEYER:

I'll pick up the pace here.

Thank you.

There's very strong emphasis throughout the bill on environmental

protection, as in measures for increased energy efficiency, alternative-fueled
vehicles, renewables, and clean-coal technologies -- all of those major programs areas
have environmental benefits.

The bill establishes the position in the department of a

director of climate protection.

This individual will be the Secretary's representative

both within the administration and internationally on climate protection issues and
will also have responsibilities for internal -- participating in resource allocation
internally in the department.

DOE's Environmental Information Administration will

inventory emissions of greenhouse gases for a baseline for the period 1987-1990, and
DOE will issue guidelines for voluntary reporting on emissions in subsequent years.
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SENATOR NEWTON RUSSELL:
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Can I ask a question?

Yes.

Senator Russell.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

What will the director of climate protection do?

MR. MEYER:

Let me go back to that.

Yes.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

Sir?

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

You want to repeat the question first.

Oh, I'm sorry.

What will his function be?
MR. MEYER:

What will the director of climate protection do?

Is he a •.•

He will be the Secretary's representative on discussions of global --

climate protection questions within the administration.

There are numerous areas where

this arise -- where it's necessary to convene, say, someone from the Environmental
Protection Agency, from the Department, from Commerce or State.

And those people have

to get together and make a collective decision on behalf of the administration and
reach a collective judgment.

This individual will be the Secretary's representative to

those kinds of -- for those kinds of discussions within the administration who will
also be the Secretary's representative on international discussions of these same
issues.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. MEYER:

That's not provided in the bill.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. MEYER:

Will he have any direct regulatory authority?

So, he's just sort of a facilitator?

A negotiator.

No, I would say he is the person within the department who has the

brief to represent these issues, to carry forward the Secretary's personal view on how
to deal with these questions and participate in the negotiations that will occur, both
within the administration and with other countries.
Let me turn to priorities in terms of implementing the bill.

I said earlier that

the act sets a framework that allows latitude for the administration and DOE to
evaluate priorities and allocate resources.

Congress will participate in the

establishment of these priorities, also through the appropriations process.

The

administration is making many budget decisions now, and it's important to realize that
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these decisions extend through the 1997-1998 period as opposed to the near term only.
In the next two slides, I want to emphasize to you that the budget is still
evolving; it will not be final until the President sends it to the Hill in March.

And

so some of the elements in these next two slides could change.
Programs slated for significant increases include:

low-income weatherization

grants, the Federal Energy Management Program, joint federal/private cooperative R&D,
especially in the efficiency in renewables areas, grants for programs for conversion to
or purchase of alternative fuel vehicles, R&D on new end-use applications for natural
gas.

I did not -- this is not necessarily, by any means, an exhausted list.

These are

some of the major items that •••
SENATOR REBECCA Q. MORGAN:
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR MORGAN:

Mr. Chairman.

Senator Morgan.

On that list of priorities, are those the things that you're

expecting government to start doing or to be funded to do with this billion-plus-dollar
package?
MR. MEYER:

In the case of the low-income weatherization grants, yes.

The primary

infrastructure there that causes that, those events to happen, that we want to happen.
SENATOR MORGAN:
MR. MEYER:

I guess I'm most interested in the R&D.

I see.

SENATOR MORGAN:

And particularly the last one on end-use applications for natural

gas.
Do you see the government becoming the research facility as opposed to private
industry?
MR. MEYER:

I think you'll see a great deal of diversity there.

expect will be done at the -- with the national laboratories.

Part of it I

But there is an acute

awareness of the need to draw upon the private sector, to draw upon -- to be sure that
you're working with market segments where there is a clear marketability of the product
in question.

In part it depends on how advanced the particular technological

development is that you're working on.

Some of them do-- are -- the ones that are
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more aggressive, more ambitious, need to be done more in a laboratory setting.
SENATOR MORGAN:

I guess, Mr. Meyer -- well, I don't know that this President will

listen to this Senator.

I would encourage you to remember the situation in

Massachusetts where in '88 we set up a computer lab, the government was going to do the
research and it's now basically defunct.
And so when I think

We have many private and public utilities.

the capacity to do the R&D and in the free marketplace can

be encouraged do it with the President's R&D tax credits, which I, you know, do very
much support, I'm always very concerned when the government, by itself, gets involved
in more R&D without the influence of the private sector and the bottom line.
MR. MEYER:

Let me call your attention to the middle bullet there which refers to

joint federal/private cooperative R&D.

There is a major emphasize in the new programs

under EPACT on just that sort of arrangement.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

These are all existing programs that we're going to augment;

is that correct?
MR. MEYER:

I wouldn't -- the grants for programs for conversion, the fourth one,

the conversion to or purchase of alternative fuel vehicles, that's -CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. MEYER:

A new one.

-- a new, an innovative one.

The last one I've listed here, end-use

applications for natural gas, that did exist previously but it's going to be very
significantly expanded this time.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. MEYER:

Right.

Let me turn to the other side, that is, many of the planned spending

cuts affect programs not covered by EPACT, e.g., defense-related activities.

They will

help to offset EPACT-related increases and expenditures, and these cuts include:

major

reductions in DOE's defense related activities, but not, I want to emphasize, not
reductions in the environmental clean up activities at defense plants; phaseout of
advanced nuclear reactor programs, but this does not include phasing out R&D for
light-water reactors; shutdown of one of the nation's two gaseous-diffusion plants for
uranium enrichment; and most of the department's other programs are capped at the FY
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'93 level without inflation adjustments; and DOE will bear a proportionate share of a
government-wide cut in federal employees.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Senator Hayden.

SENATOR TOM HAYDEN:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I don't know if this the appropriate

place to ask, but would this gentleman be able to supply us with the proposed daily
budget for the Livermore and Los Alamos labs that are operated by the university?
MR. MEYER:

Frankly, I couldn't tell you when those budgets will be available in

terms of the evolution of the budget itself.
SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. MEYER:

Wouldn't they be proposed in March or sometime?

Well, the whole budget will be resolved and sent forward in March.

SENATOR HAYDEN:

With the DOE.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

We will make a request for that information when it becomes

available.
SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. MEYER:

All right.

Thank you.

Well, I have some other slides, Mr. Chairman, but in the interest of

time I will skip to the very last one.
This one lists out the grants that are available under the Act to the states.
Grants are authorized for regional energy-efficient lighting and building sectors.
These are regional centers, and they do require 50 percent matching support from the
states and other sources to establish these centers.
Secondly, consideration and implementation of utility rate making standards related
to integrated resource planning, these grants require -- do not require a match.
amount is up to $250,000 per state.

The

Industrial energy efficiency programs, these also

require a 25 percent match; energy efficiency improvements in state and local
buildings, here the states must come up with substantial funds from other sources and
these funds go to establish a revolving fund to pay for these improvements.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Let me -- who should the state contact?

What advice would you

give a state, like California, who wishes to participate and benefit from the
implementation of the National Energy Policy Act?
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In other words, who do we contact to

find out how we get our share of that $1 billion?
MR. MEYER:

Most of these programs that I think are of interest to you in the

building sector, the energy-efficiency, various energy-efficiency programs, and the
programs in the alternative-fueled vehicles area are going to be administered by the
Office of Conservation and Renewable Energy.

So the primary contact there will be the

Assistant Secretary for conservation and renewable energy.

Presently, there is an

acting person in that capacity and he and his staff are working, I'm sure, to move
ahead with plans for implementing these programs.
I want to say to you that I think in the current context that -- in the context of
budgetary stringency, even if a program -- if the law does not specifically require a
matching contribution from the state, I think it will be important to provide matching
funds.

It will show the parties who are going to have to make the difficult decisions

on who gets grants and who doesn't.

It's going to show that there is indeed a serious

commitment at the state level to carrying forward with these programs.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
energy tax works?
MR. MEYER:

In other words, what's the significance in making it a BTU tax?

Well, the BTU tax is not part of this bill.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. MEYER:

options.

I understand.

That's the President's proposal.

Yes.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. MEYER:

Can you explain for the committee how the proposed national

Can you comment on that?

Well, if you're going to impose a tax on energy, you have various

You could impose a carbon tax which has been proposed by many.

major component of most energy forms.

Carbon is a

And since there -- some of our concerns about

energy use are associated with the carbon, one possible tax that one would consider is
the carbon tax.

Another would be an imports tax or a gasoline tax or an ad valorem

tax, which is a tax that is simply a percentage of the value of the energy product,
whatever it may be.
The BTU tax was selected because it is the one that spreads the burden most evenly,
most broadly.

All of the other options that I mentioned are going to hit certain parts
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of the energy sector much harder than others. And by focusing on BTU content you spread
the effects very broadly, and that's an important concern in this area because we found
in the past two decades with the energy crisis that we've been through that very sharp
uptakes, very sharp increases in prices, can significantly, have significant adverse
economic impact, can induce recessions, as a matter of fact.

And so, one of the

concerns about putting in an energy tax in place is to put it in very broadly, to phase
it in, so that it does not establish a major shock.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Any questions from the committee?

Mr. Meyer, thank you very much.

I appreciate your coming out from Washington for

this testimony before the committee.
MR. MEYER:

My pleasure.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. MEYER:

Thank you very much and

I certainly will be in touch.

Very good.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Now, let me call forth the first panel:

Charles Imbrecht,

Chairman of the California Energy Commission; Michael Scheible, Deputy Executive
Officer, Air Resources Board; Paul Clanon, Deputy Director, Certification and
Compliance Division of the PUC; and Mary McKenzie, Legal Division of the PUC.
There's a couple of seats up here.
Commission, Charles Imbrecht.
MR. CHARLES IMBRECHT:

And we'll start with the Chairman of the Energy

Welcome.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

It is a pleasure to be here today

and to describe what I consider to be the most exciting developments with respect to
national energy policy, literally in a decade and a half.

By any definition this is

the most far-reaching federal legislation with respect to energy, at least since the
passage of the Public Utility Regulatory Policy Act in 1978.

And I think that

probably, if there is one bottom line that I would like to convey to you because, like
Mr. Meyer, we too have literally been involved in the development of this legislation
for a full three-year period, invited first by the Department of Energy and the
administration and to consult on what would be appropriate for national policy prior to
the introduction of the legislation by the Bush Administration and then during the
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nearly two years that the legislation evolved through both Houses of Congress.
I think it's fair to say that for the first time, since we've began to pursue an
aggressive energy policy in California, the federal government has begun to sing from
the same songbook as our state.

And as a consequence we are uniquely positioned to

take advantage of the broad array of initiatives that are found within this
legislation.

In virtually every single title of the more than 300 pages reflected in

this bill, California already has an initiative underway and certainly, I would say -let me offer only one caveat -- we do not have an initiative underway, to the best of
my knowledge, relative to fusion research.

And, of course, because of the California

Nuclear Safety Act, the one-stop or streamline licensing provisions for new nuclear
facilities, part of the NRC provisions in the bill at this point in time would have no
particular, specific impact within our state.
Let me also note for Senator Morgan that one of the other hallmarks of this
legislation is that it reflects the approach that we have taken in California relative
to research and development for at least the last decade.

It's exactly the one that

you outlined, an emphasis upon private sector initiatives with our agency or the
government simply acting as an administrating contract agency and providing matching
funds or at least a leverage to buy down some of the risk associated with research and
development.

Most of the provisions in the federal bill call for a 50/50 match.

In

California we actually tend to look for at least a 3:1 private sector to the public
sector contribution.

But in any case, the general approach is similar, if not

identical, to what we have long pursued within our state.
SENATOR MORGAN:

Could I use this opportunity to ask a question?

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR MORGAN:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Yes.

You mentioned fusion and nuclear.

What about solar?

Solar, of course, we've had many initiatives, such as solar.

And

you've, of course, been very, much a part of them, as I will highlight in just a few
moments.

This bill does what we have been asking the federal government to do for an

extended period of time and that is put in place incentives for various renewable
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technologies, including solar, on a long-term basis.

In fact, the federal tax credit

for solar is permanent as a consequence of this bill, no sunset.
You may recall the negative impacts we had dealing with the development of solar in
California two years ago and your legislation, the fact that California had stability
in its incentive program, whereas the federal government was providing incentives on an
annual basis alone.
SENATOR MORGAN:

I guess my question is now through the tragedy of that bill two

years ago and what didn't happen, and we killed off the industry basically, do you
foresee this legislation encouraging a rejuvenation of the solar industry here in
California?
MR. IMBRECHT:

I do without question, and principally because of the fact that it

provides stability and stability is what's required in order to go to the financial
markets and seek support for construction.

In addition there are a range of additional

incentives associated with renewables, including tax credits and so forth, beyond the
traditional solar treatments that will also provide additional incentives.

Actually,

to the tune of at least 1-1/2 cents per kilowatt hour benefit for all the renewable
technologies.

And so, whereas today California dominates the world marketplace in

renewable technologies, we have more of each of them installed and operating in
California than the rest of the world combined and our manufacturing base supports at
least a 50 percent market share in each of the technologies.

This will only enhance

the ability of California-based companies, now some 700 strong, to continue to be very,
very well positioned for expansion of these technologies outside of our own borders.
SENATOR MORGAN:
MR. IMBRECHT:
SENATOR MORGAN:
MR. IMBRECHT:

700 solar companies?
No, no, no.

700 renewable and efficiency energy companies •••

Right.
.•. that's currently are registered with our Energy Technology Export

Program.
SENATOR MORGAN:
industry.

But more specifically, if I could, Mr. Imbrecht, to the solar

After what we've seen happen here in California to those few who dared to
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risk, do you see others out there willing to do the same?
MR. IMBRECHT:

Well, I think the provisions of this legislation have to be fully

put in place in order to generate that kind of reciprocal response from the private
sector, but I certainly believe that this is the strongest federal initiative that I've
seen that will encourage that kind of investment.
Let me note for you as well, that California continues to be virtually dominant in
photovoltaic manufacturing,

Indeed this state produced over 30 percent of the entire

worldwide output over the last calendar year.

And those are companies that are in

place and in operation, so they ought to be in a strong position to expand their
markets.
SENATOR MORGAN:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Thank you.
I'm kind of jumping ahead here but I will touch on a few of those

points in a few moments.
Just let me just say that I obviously cannot go into this in completely
comprehensive detail. I said 300 pages a moment ago -- let me correct that -- it's a
400-page, 30-separate-titled bill.

My staff has prepared a 29-page summary for me

which I will provide to you.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Don't read it.

I have no intention of reading it to you.

Let me just highlight a

few particular points.
First off, this legislation establishes many progressive national energy
initiatives in electricity conservation, alternative fuels, and technologies clearly
modeled after the success of California's energy initiatives.
Many of the program elements, if adequately funded -- and we look forward to
examining the details of the material that Senator Rosenthal and Mr. Shapiro made
reference to, we have not yet seen actual appropriation requests from the Clinton
Administration -- but if in fact they are fully funded, they can inject a welcome dose
of federal support to California's continuing efforts to maintain its position as
literally the international leader of energy development, conservation, and advanced
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technologies.
Three principal points i'd like to highlight or themes that can be found running
throughout the legislation:

first, it provides a major dose of competition to the

electric power industry by increasing the number of players in the industry and their
access to the electricity, resource, and distribution system.
Secondly, the bill reduces the nation's dependence on foreign imported oil while
meeting its energy needs at the lowest societal cost.

And running throughout this

legislation was a very rigorous, cost-effectiveness evaluation and one again that
mirrors the approach that we've particularly taken within our state to justify public
investments.
And lastly, it invests in technology research to stimulate economic growth, to
develop international markets.

I might add that this is the first initiative that will

complement our export program, to reduce environmental impacts from energy production
and consumption, and to maintain U.S. leadership in energy supply and efficiency
technologies.
Some of the initiatives in the bill focus on several different thrusts.
sake of simplicity, I'm not going to try to highlight the overlaps.

For the

I think their

fairly obvious when we go through them.
Lastly, in terms of uncertainties, there are a tremendous number of administrative
implementation requirements for both the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the
Department of Energy.

They have various time frames in which they are due -- some are

very short, some are quite longer.
One thing that we look at with some concern is that an increased federal role could
lead to state/federal friction unless there is an explicit effort to develop a
partnership and cooperative approaches.

And we certainly will do everything we

possibly can to ensure that that's the case in working with DOE and FERC.
As I mentioned, appropriations are clearly needed.

We all are familiar with the,

as I refer to, as the two-step process in Washington, quite different than ours, first
an authorization and then an appropriation.

There are a lot of authorizations in this
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bill.

The appropriations have to follow if, in fact, my optimism is going to be

founded in reality.
Finally, let me just note, that some of the provisions, clearly some of those
associated with the electric system, very likely will be challenged in court; and
utility regulatory commissions may indeed be sensitive to possible encroachment's from
a jurisdictional standpoint by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.
Let me try to go through each of those three areas with just a few highlights.

And

I know that one of your emphasizes, Mr. Chairman, was on where we can maximize the
California opportunities as a consequence of this legislation.

That's going to be the

focus in my comments, but let me stress again that there are multitudes of other
details that we can share with you, I'm sure, at your discretion.
First, let me say that on the basis of my comments that this will increase
competition in the electric generation sector.

This bill will loosen restrictions on

independent power generators previously imposed by the Public Utilities Regulatory
Policy Act.

It creates an entirely new category of generators, they are called exempt

wholesale generators or EWGs.
got one more to deal with now.

We have have enough acronyms in this business but we've
These are free of the typical restrictions that are

found for qualifying facilities under PURPA.

They are constituted or characterized as

utilities and therefore are subject to state and federal regulation under the federal
Power Act.

Utilities, in fact, can own completely an exempt wholesale generator, fully

or partially spun off.

There are a variety of different structures that are allowed

under the legislation.
This provision, in our judgment, is likely to promote competition between the
utilities.

For example, the municipal utilities, as EWGs, have certain financial

advantages over investor-owned utilities, such as access to low cost, tax-exempt
financing, and comparatively light state regulatory burden.

Local revenue needs and

the municipals enhanced ability to bypass investor-owned utilities for power may help
them extract financial concessions from neighboring investor-owned utilities.

I know

many of the munis in California have welcomed that opportunity for some time.

We'll
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have to follow very closely how that works in our state.
Chartered cities with the ability to form electric utilities could opt to become
exempt wholesale generators.

That's actually to get a better deal.

There's also some

concern that municipal EWGs may attempt to capture some of the IOU's wholesale markets.
These concerns may inspire pressure to extend state regulation to limit municipal
activities.

I want to stress that I'm not opposing that.

I'm merely trying to call to

your attention some of the issues that we see that fall out of this legislation.
So I said the bill enhances transmission-system access for wholesale electricity
market participants.

This will encourage the creation of voluntary regional

transmission groups.

I'm sure many of you are aware of the fact that there is an

ongoing movement within California to create just such a group.
Ultimately, under the legislation, FERC will be the ultimate arbitrator on whether
requests for transmission access reasonably impair a local utility's system
reliability.
the bill.

That's the principal caveat that exists with respect to this provision in

The bottom line on the new competitive framework is that an increased FERC

role, as I said, could lead to state and federal friction and we have to be very
conscious of that possibility.
The legislation also provides additional support for renewable electric energy
producers through tax credits and incentive payments.

And therefore, they will become

more cost competitive when compared to conventional sources, and that will certainly
aid us in California in our ongoing efforts to diversify the system and minimize
environmental impacts.

So let me just note for you that in the context of your

questions about the BTU tax, because of the fact that California already is a lower
consumer of many of the feed stocks that are most heavily hit by the BTU tax and
because of the fact that the proposal also exempts all renewables, with the exception
of hydroelectric, California ratepayers stand to, on a relative basis, be in a
substantially better position than consumers in other states.
tangible result of investments that we've already made.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Senator Hayden.
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I think that's a

SENATOR HAYDEN:

If your staff does any analysis of the state impact by that BTU

tax, I'd like to see it.

But for now, just speaking generally, what is your judgment

as to whether that tax will have the biggest effect in terms closing a budget deficit
by generating a lot of revenue verses creating an incentive for energy efficiency or
renewables?

Is it more of the former or latter or equally both?

MR. IMBRECHT:

Well, Senator Hayden, I honestly find it difficult to comment on how

much it is going to close the deficit, or budget gaps, if you will.

I will say that

our own analysis suggests that the impact, even in California though relatively less
than other states, may be higher than some of the initial estimates that were first
enunciated.
Let me say that from a demand reduction standpoint, the statistic that I have noted
on a few occasions, that during the six months leading up to the outbreak of the Gulf
War, when there was about a 30 cent increase in the price of gasoline at the pump
within California, we saw a 9 percent reduction in consumption.

That is an

extraordinarily dramatic figure.
SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Right.

And you attribute it to the price increase?

Well, it certainly suggests to me that demand is price sensitive,

yes.
SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. IMBRECHT:
SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Have you look at other periods of time over the past five .•• ?
Yes, we have.
And same pattern?
We've seen that exact phenomenon in every instance where there has

been a spike in price.

Now, one of the open questions is how long that continues?

We

did see some spikes back in the early '80s and after a while society •.•
SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Then the behavior crawls back up?
That's correct.

Although not to pre-spike levels.

It's only when

you get a real reduction in price over an extended period of time that you see an
increase in consumption, and I think that's fairly reasonable to anticipate as well.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Mr. Imbrecht, let me ask you -- I'm trying to speed this up a
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little bit.

Do you think California should take action in the areas of

energy-efficient mortgages or energy standards for manufactured housing?
MR. IMBRECHT:

Well, let me begin by saying that I've reviewed each of your bills

and you've clearly already targeted some of the key points in the legislation where
California can, in fact, take advantage of federal assistance.

We already -- in fact,

last Thursday, I attended a press conference, I believe it was in Senator Morgan's
district, announcing the beginning of the California Home Energy Rating System, which
is the tool necessary to take advantage of the energy-efficient mortgages.

The fact

that this provides an opportunity for five states to do a pilot; the fact that
California already has the system in place and that will expand to Ontario and Pasadena
later this year and statewide by the end of '94 again underscores my point that we are
particularly well positioned in order to go after many of these initiatives.
With respect to the energy-efficiency centers, our two largest utilities today
have, I believe, two of only three such facilities in the country and the other one is
much more limited up in Seattle.

Last year in our budget you provided an appropriation

to us to initiate such a center in this area, and I believe the Sacramento Municipal
Utility District has plans to pursue in that direction as well.

So again, we see

ourselves already in a position to go into DOE and saying we have the matching funds in
hand and therefore, we ought to be able to qualify for these programs.

I don't know of

any other state that has this kind of comprehensive foundation in place, including New
York which is probably the second state to California in terms of aggressive energy
policies.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Another question.

The Governor's possible plan to reorganize

the state's energy programs -- do you think that we are helped or hindered in our
ability to benefit from the National Energy Act?
MR. IMBRECHT:

I know of absolutely nothing that's under discussion today that will

in any way hinder us but will only enhance our ability to take advantage of the act.
If I may just highlight a couple of other items.

The mandate on integrated

resource planning, we basically wrote the book on how to do least cost utility or
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integrated resource planning in California.

Now that that is required on a national

basis, in our judgment that will enhance our ability to undertake interstate
transactions with neighboring states that have complementary energy systems to
California, and that minimizes the need to invest scarce ratepayer funded capital for
those kinds of initiatives as well.

It is just fundamentally, there's no other way to

characterize it, an endorsement of California's policy from top to bottom.
Let me note as well, I know this is a topic of some concern for the utilities, but
the legislation does not challenge the state's ability to consider retail wheeling.
Again, I'm not proposing that today, I just want to note that that is an option and
certainly the PUC continues to have the ability to investigate those issues as they
currently are doing.
I also noted for you that there are a lot of initiatives underway to reduce
dependence on foreign oil while meeting energy needs at low cost.

There are a wide

variety of initiatives to complement our existing energy efficiency standards
initiatives, and we see multiple opportunities for substantial new sources of funding
for existing California programs.

It is particularly good from a timing standpoint

because I know as most of you are aware, the supplementary funding source we've relied
upon for most of the '80s, petroleum violation escrow account funds, are now rapidly
running out.

They're probably going to be around for a few more years but not at the

levels that we've experienced.

So this offers an opportunity to offset some of those

losses.
The bill also reflects another initiative that we've long understood and that is to
train building officials and all the people involved in the chain of delivery for
building standards adequately There are a variety of funding programs here that assist
in that endeavor and again complement our work because they also require state match or
state contribution in the form of initiatives that we already have underway.
There's also a requirement that the Department of Housing and Urban Development
issue final regulations by October 24th of this year with respect to efficiency
standards for manufactured housing.

Let me stress that the manufactured housing
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industry in California is eons better than the industry in many other places in the
United States.

Nonetheless, a reconciliation of efficiency standards between

manufactured and conventional housing obviously have some equity issues involved.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Why don't you tell them we don't want to be pre-empted.

Pardon me?

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Why don't you tell the Department of Energy that we don't want

to be pre-empted.
MR. IMBRECHT:

I don't believe that that is an option.

that opportunity in a lot of instances.

(Laughter)

We would like

I think the real issue is whether or not HUD

-- that was forwarded, if we could assume that responsibility, but I guess that the
industry pressure will be quite great for HUD to take action by that date.

That

certainly makes sense, at least to have regional standards considering the movement of
products in those industries.
Let me also note that we are required, as are all states, to certify that
efficiency standards meet existing industry standards because of the fact that
California standards go well beyond the industry standards.

This will be a ministerial

activity for the Energy Commission and does not, in our judgment, contemplate any
substantial resource issue whatsoever.
There are also a variety of initiatives relative to the industrial sector.

I'm not

going to spend any time on them right now other than to say that they actually do move
into one area that we haven't addressed as effectively as we perhaps could have, and so
we see those as perhaps the one issue in the entire legislation where perhaps the feds
are just a touch above or ahead of where we are at within California.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Senator Russell.

(inaudible) ... all of this from a state perspective, do you have

any idea what the cost would be?
MR. IMBRECHT:

Well, frankly, Senator Russell, I don't contemplate any additional

costs beyond the programs that we currently have in place.

In fact, what we're talking

about is, if you look at the Governor's proposed budget, in virtually every instance we
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are already in a position to go after this new federal funding on the basis of existing
state support.

And there is nothing in the legislation.

In fact, one of the issues

I know Senator Rosenthal knows this, but I was back in D.C. more times than I would
like to have been during some of this discussion.
At one point, there was this question of do states qualify if they're using
existing programs?

It would have been very discriminatory against California to say,

in essence, if you've already got a strong energy policy, you have to have new funding
initiatives in order to go after federal match.

That was stricken from the legislation

and so we are, as I say, in a much better position, in my judgment, than are almost
only a handful of states frankly can go after some of this, and I think we're in a
position to go after almost all of it.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Do you anticipate any need for an increase in staff to do any of

these programs ministerially?
MR. IMBRECHT:

I am certainly not about to suggest that we need additional staff in

light of the state's budget difficulties, no.
position to complement our existing activities.

I believe that we are very much in a
In fact,

in the wisdom of the

Legislature as this sorts out there may actually be some offset issues where there are
some budgetary savings for the state, but I can't give you numbers on that today.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR HAYDEN:

Yes, Senator Hayden.

If California has led the way in the past and now the federal

government is catching up, which is your testimony, where would you like the state to
lead next in your current position?
MR. IMBRECHT:

Well, I think clearly, Senator Hayden, we do have to reconcile some

of the climate issues and the way we're handling them in California versus the rest of
the country.

Let me just note that today California is 45th in per capita carbon

dioxide emissions in the nation, even with our relatively inefficient transportation
sector.

There is no other industrial state that ranks below us.

country had a

co 2

If the rest of the

emissions profile comparable to California's, there would be a net 40
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percent reduction in national

co 2

emissions.

And there would be little -- 40 percent

-- there would be little debate about our role at Rio last year, it seems to me, if
that were the case.

And that •••

SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Is that essentially automobiles?
Pardon me?

SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Is that essentially automobiles?
I'm not sure I understand the question.

SENATOR HAYDEN:
MR. IMBRECHT:
we do still have

The carbon dioxide essentially automobiles?
It's predominantly automobiles, yes, without question, but certainly

co 2

emissions from other stationary industrial sites as well.

But our

electric generation system is arguably the cleanest in the world and the most diverse
as well.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. IMBRECHT:

Yeah.

Would you wind up.
I'm only about half way through but I'll just say you've

already touched on rating systems.

(Laughter)

I told you it was a big bill, and I'm

doing my best to try to get through this.
There are a lot of incentives for alternative fuels,
and local government that will affect us, and it may

including mandates on state

have some potential impact on

budgetary allocations for the state because they will effect vehicle acquisition by
General Services, the Department of Transportation, and so forth.

And so to that

extent there may be some cost implications in tight budgetary circumstances.
However, there is also a very strong benefit for California because the federal
fleet acquisitions in their own fleets -- and they, of course, have 400 and -- I've got
the number here some place --but it's nearly 500,000 vehicles.

And where their

clean-fuel vehicles will be allocated are dependent or is driven by where existing
fueling infrastructure is in place.

Because we have, far and away, the most developed

infrastructure of any state in the country for compressed natural gas as well as for
the alcohol fuels, we ought to get a disproportionate share of federal vehicles and
that in turn will assist us in pulling the trigger on the Air Resource Board rules that
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require additional fueling infrastructure once we've made a threshold of 20,000
vehicles in a vehicle model year.
So, without going into details, we think that it will be very strongly
complementary to our initiatives in that arena as well.

I also mentioned there are a

variety of tax incentives for electric vehicles and other clean-fuel vehicles that will
clearly help us in commercialization.

There's also funding for infrastructure

development and, again, we already have the plans in place to take advantage of that.
And there is a requirement for a study on institutional barriers for renewable
technologies.

That's something that we've already undertaken within California.

In each of these instances there is a local match -- let me highlight one issue for
you.

There is also authorization for the

u.s.

Department of Transportation to fund

alternative-fueled transit in school bus demonstrations with a local 20 percent cost
share.

As you are certainly aware in the Katz Clean School Bus Program, we are

currently paying 100 percent of the cost for those vehicles.

We are re-examining right

now whether with the remaining funds in that account, because there is roughly $50
million left that's unexpended, whether we can apply for this and in essence get as
many as four buses for what we're currently investing for one.

So this has the benefit

of greatly expanding the number of clean, safe school buses for California; and
certainly we ought to be looking at this from the transit side as well, but we
currently have no broad scale funding program for transit bus acquisition.
There are also exemptions from taxation and raising the exemption limit on
employer-provided transportation subsidies.

That clearly is going to help in some of

the ridesharing programs that are required under the federal and state Clean Air Act,
and so there is a good synergism there as well.
The bill also requires a substantial increase in the volumes of the strategic
petroleum reserve.

We called for a study as to whether or not that reserve ought to be

turned into a regional reserve.

Right now, we have no way of accessing the petroleum

that's stored in Louisiana for PAD 5, which is for the Western United States.

And it

seems to us that one of the issues we need to discuss with DOE is the prospect of
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meeting that requirement of legislation but with a regional reserve, if not in
California, somewhere in the western portion of the country so that we have more
physical access, in the event that we needed it, as an insurance policy.
Finally, there, as was mentioned, a whole series of additional research and
development initiatives, again, many of which we have underway, including
high-efficiency gas combustion tehnologies.

We have a joint program with PG&E and the

other utilities in California, but particularly PG&E, to improve the efficiency of
gas-fueled electric generation.
along.

And this should very much help move that program

There are initiatives for bio-fuels, again, for additional electric vehicle

research, for hydrogen research, and so forth, most of which we have something in
place.
Finally, the last item that I'll just touch on, is that as you are well aware, we
are the only state in the country that has an energy technology export program.

This

legislation authorizes $10 million in both '93 and '94 to promote development of
renewable technologies in foreign countries.

We have long felt that in the developing

world, the market for the California-based manufactured renewable energy industry is
the greatest, because of the cost-effectiveness associated with stand-alone
technologies where you can't produce the capital necessary to build a grid distribution
system.
The fact is, the federal government for some time has had a committee called, the
committee on Energy, Commerce and Trade.

I've attended several meetings.

It's been a

nice debating society, but there hasn't been much in the way of bang to go with the
rhetoric.

For the first time, we've got some support in that area.

So with that, I will provide a copy of this summary to your staff for distribtion.
To the committee, it'll answer more of your questions.
great opportunity for California.

But again, we think this is a

And working together, I hope we can take advantage

of it.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Senator Russell.

Could you tell us briefly the requirements for alternative-fueled
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vehicles in California in the coming years?
MR. IMBRECHT:

Well, Mr. Scheible from the Air Board may want to address that.

Let me just say quickly that our standards are fuel neutral to the extent that the
auto companies conclude that alternative fuels will assist them in meeting the tailpipe
emission requirements of the various low-emission vehicle standards.
susbstantial support.

There will be

Certainly the mandates in this legislation are more associated

with petroleum displacement than air quality improvement.

And so in some respects,

this legislation is more likely to assuredly drive alternative fuels than are the
fuel-neutral air quality standards that we currently have in place in California,
although they may ultimately result in that, in those introductions as well.
I have a specific breakout for you in the way of vehicles.

Maybe, Mike, if you

want to •..
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Well, apparently, from briefly looking at the material that staff

has provided us, it looks as though that by the mid- to late-1990s, a majority of
fleets for the federal government, the state government, as well as those who produce
alternative fuels, must be some alternative-fueled vehicle.
MR. IMBRECHT:

That's absolutely correct.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

That would be natural gas, electric, methanol -- anything but

petroleum-based; is that correct?
MR. IMBRECHT:

That is correct.

Actually, the list of methanol, ethanol, natural

gas, LPG, hydrogen, coal-derived, liquid fuels, fuels derived from biological
materials, and electricity.
That expands the list from earlier legislation, the Alternate Fuels Act of 1988,
only included the alcohol fuels and natural gas, so it's a much larger universe of
options.

And those requirements apply, as you say, to state, local, and private-sector

fleets along with all those that are alternate-fuel providers, including gas and
electric utilities.
Just to put in context for you, state fleet purchases by 2002, we estimate to be a
minimum of 37,000 vehicles; federal fleets, a minimum of 41,000 -- and I don't believe
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I've got numbers on the other fleets for the state.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you very much.

Now let me just -- so we don't duplicate some of the presentations that we've had,
both from the, Mr. Meyer, Deputy Director, Department of Energy, and Chairman Imbrecht,
I'm going to try, if I can, to hold eveybody to ten minutes, okay?
All right.

Michael Scheible, Deputy Executive Officer of Air Resources Board.

MR. MICHAEL SCHEIBLE:

Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee.

I am pleased to testify on the implications of the National Energy Policy Act of 1992
with respect to air quality programs.

And some of the things I'll touch on were

covered by Chairman Imbredht earlier.

I'll just try to elaborate a little bit on them

from an air quality point of view.
I'll focus my remarks on alternative-fueled vehicles, including electric vehicles,
and measures to reduce the use of single-occupant commute vehicles.

Those are the

provisions of the act that have the most direct impact on air quality.
There are numerous opportunities for California to participate in new energy
programs from the federal government.

Perhaps the most important of these

opportunities is in the area of electric vehicles.
As you know, the Air Resources Board requires that 2 percent of light-duty motor
vehicles produced for sale in California in 1998 must be zero-emission vehicles.
requirement increases to 10 percent by the year 2003.

This

Battery-powered electric

vehicles are the only currently viable means for fulfilling these requirements.

For

the longer term, fuel cells are another promising power source.
California's ZEV program -- that's what we call zero-emission vehicles -- will
benefit substantially from the Energy Policy Act which authorizes funding for research
and development, commercialization, and demonstrations and provides tax incentives for
electric vehicles and infrastructure.
The Act authorizes almost half a billion dollars over the next six fiscal years for
electric vehicle and associated research and development.

The Act permits cost sharing

with industry in seven technology areas that are critical for the evolution of
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cost-effective, reliable electric vehicles.

These include advanced batteries and fuel

cells, lightweight materials, and power trains.

This program will enable a consortia

of California companies, such as CALSTART, to compete for these funds.

This seed

capital has several direct benefits for our state.
First, it provides assistance to industry in solving some of the performance and
cost problems associated with electric vehicles.
creation in California.

Second, it offers the promise of job

And third, it will facilitate and hasten the development of

viable electric vehicles for the California market that we need in order to clean the
air and meet the Air Resources Board's regulations.
To complement the electric vehicle, research, development, and demonstration
programs, the Act also provides tax incentives for both vehicle purchases and
recharging equipment.

For vehicles purchased from 1993 through 2001, the Act provides

a 10 percent tax credit for each vehicle purchased with a $4,000 per-vehicle limit.
The credit is reduced between 2002 and 2004 and is phased out completely by 2005.

The

hope and the expectation is by that time the vehicles will be able to be sold at a
price that reflects the cost to manufacturers and basically the free market will take
over.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

May I ask a question, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Senator Russell.

Since CALSTART operates in my district -- I'm interested in these

provisions -- how would they, if they chose to, how would they access some of these
funds?

Through what agency?

MR. SCHEIBLE:

Directly with the federal government?

I believe that the mechanism that they have to basically put

together, the proposals, and work through the Department of Energy.

And that's a

cooperative arrangement between several state agencies, some local governments, the
utilities, and business concerns -- I'd see an opportunity to move into the
electric-vehicle market.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Who in this state would be able to give them some guidance?

Somebody in your office?
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MR. SCHEIBLE:
with them, yes.

We work with them directly.

The Energy Commission is very involved

The Energy Commission is generally the lead on many of these matters.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
SENATOR HAYDEN:

Thank you.
Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR HAYDEN:

Senator Hayden.

I know, Mr. Chairman, you've taken action, yourself and the

committee, before on this electric-vehicle matter.

And I wondered, having spent about

a year, both being excited about it and frustrated about it myself as an
electric-vehicle driver, and trying to see where the jobs would be created, the thing
that disturbs me that perhaps California could speak out about, is that apparently
there's no

u.s.

automobile manufacturer who has any plan for producing an electric

vehicle.
This federal program would expend how much, how many hundred millions of dollars
over five years?
MR. SCHEIBLE:

It was almost half a billion, $500 million.

SENATOR HAYDEN:

Right.

$500 million over five years.

General Motors has bailed

out on this saying that it's not cost-effective at the moment.
is producing.

No other manufacturer

So if CALSTART is in the unusual quandary, I suppose, of potentially

producing components, supplying components, to cars that would be made elsewhere -- and
it's odd, when you hear this debate about jobs and the environment, that it's the
environmental standards of the federal government and California that are creating the
motivation to create this new industry and create these jobs; and yet the actual
production of the car will either be in Europe or Japan, who they somehow find this
cost-effective.

Why don't we?

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Senator Hayden, on March 23, this committee will hold a

hearing on electric vehicles in which we are going to be inviting the manufacturers in
this country -SENATOR HAYDEN:

Very good.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

-- to testify.
-31-

SENATOR HAYDEN:

And we'll ask them what will they do in the way of production in

order to help themselves to some of this $500 million.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
SENATOR HAYDEN:

Mr. Chairman, I saw a TV commercial that showed Volvo -Yes.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

-- that has -- you saw it? -- has a prototype -- BMW, Volkswagen,

Mitsubishi .••
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

I think, if our manufacturers don't do it, someone will; and

that's unfortunate.
MR. SCHEIBLE:

All of the major auto manufacturers in the world have

electric-vehicle efforts underway from the design, either operationalized test
vehicles, or planned them out.

GM did, right before the end of the year, decided not

to move to the production phase of its impact.

It's going to produce a limited number

of vehicles at the same time it formed a cooperative agreement with the other two major

u.s.

automakers to cooperatively develop an electric vehicle so -- develop eventually

for production.

And the indications we're getting are from the auto manufacturers is

that the Air Resources Board regulation and the promise of the California market and
the fact that they believe that market is going to develop is what's pushing them.
So they're in tough financial times in Detroit right now, and I think that had a
major impact on whether they're willing to move from the development stage to actually
investing in the full production facility.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. SCHEIBLE:

Right.

All right.

Please continue.

You have a couple more minutes.

Taken together, the federal and state incentives could

significantly reduce the purchase price of the vehicle which will help overcome the
initially high cost of early electric vehicles offered for sale in California.
Finally, to simulate investments by businesses, electric utilities, and recharging
facilities, the Act provides a tax deduction of up to $100,000 per location.

This

inducement will help to ensure that businesses and utilities purchase and install
necessary infrastructure to enable electric vehicles to be recharged at numerous
locations.
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My next remarks focus on other alternative-fuel vehicles.
The Act mandates fleet purchases of vehicles powered by clean, alternative fuels,
such as methanol, ethanol, and compressed natural gas, and expands that list, as we've
noted before.

When used with state-of-the-art emission controls, these vehicles create

far less air pollution than the gasoline cars and trucks that they will replace.

The

Act mandates alternative fuel fleet vehicles for federal fleets, state fleets, and for
fuel providers, and electric utilities, as Chairman Imbrecht mentioned.
There are additional funding opportunities for alternative-fueled vehicles,
including $30 million annually for purchases of alternative-fueled buses in urban
areas, with a 20 percent local match and a low-interest program for private fleet
conversions.

These provisions will help the state clean air efforts in the near-term

by encouraging purchases by transit districts, school districts, and small business and
fleet operators of alternative-fueled vehicles.
Another area that my board just acted last Friday was we approved a guidance for
local districts for the creation of mobile source credits which would basically be a
marketable credit when a, someone purchases and operates a mobile source that is
cleaner than required of our regulations.

A very big aspect of this was the use of

methanol-powered or compressed-natural-gas-powered buses which are about twice as clean
as the diesel buses they replace.

Transit districts would be given an incentive to buy

these buses because they can convert that, the difference between the diesel bus and
the bus they bought, into a credit which they could then sell to a stationary source
that needed the emission-reduction credits.
I'm going to conclude my remarks with just a quick mention of some of the tax
provisions that we think signal an important shift, in at least the federal tax policy,
with respect to transportation habits.
The Act has several provisions that will provide businesses and individuals with
new incentives to promote transit use in car-pooling.

The Act permits an employwer to

provide a tax-free incentive of up to $60 per month for mass transit or ride-sharing
subsidies.

This is an increase from the present level of $21 a month.
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Currently, any

amount over the $21 amount was treated as a taxable income on the part of the employee.
The Act also permits the employer to deduct this amount from gross income subject
to taxation.

The Act also caps the deductibility of employee-provided free parking

expenses at $155 per month.

Now this doesn't affect very many people in California

right now, but I think it sends a signal that the current playing field which basically
said parking subsidies remain an untaxed benefit and that transit or car-pooling,
things that encourage more energy-efficient, lower polluting modes of operation, are
taxed.

This provision signals a shift and will allow parking to be treated more fairly

with other forms of travel allowances.
In conclusion, I'd like to emphasize that the energy and air quality are closely
linked.

The many requirements and opportunities in the Energy Act point out the need

for state and local agencies and private businesses to cooperate closely in order to
deal with the energy, air quality, economic, and job-creation opportunities.

The ARB

will be most active in the areas of the Act that deal with electric vehicles, which
form the heart of our zero-emission vehicle program.

This will be a cooperative effort

with the Energy Commission, the electric utilities, and California's business
communities.
Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTAL:

One final question.

Do you think that sales tax exemptions and

utility support to help commercialize the zero emission vehicles are needed?
MR. SCHEIBLE:

It's clear that the early electric vehicles will probably cost quite

a bit more to produce than the public will be willing to pay for them.
policy is good.

The national

We would promote looking at state and private-industry ways of making

sure that the market is there for the vehicles.

There are a lot of questions about

where you get the revenues, so I think that's a good area for legislative debate this
year.
MR. IMBRECHT:

If I can just add one comment on that.

Probably the biggest

obstacle associated with the sales tax exemption is the impact on local revenues and
the politics associated with that.

There is an active administration task force with
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all three of the agencies that are reflected here, plus Cal-Trans -- and who am I
forgetting? -- South Coast Air Quality Management District -- to come up with an
incentive package to complement what's already in this legislation on the federal end
with an objective of trying to put together a package for early purchasers of
approximately $5,000 purchase price offset.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you very much.

Our next panelist, Paul Clanon, Deputy Director, Certification and Compliance
Division of the PUC.
MR. PAUL CLANON:

Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. CLANON:

Ten minutes.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
together.

Welcome.

Does that ten minutes ...

Oh, and Mary McKenzie-- I guess you're going to do this

You'll each have five minutes.

MR. CLANON:

Is this thing on?

Thanks very much, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee.

We've got some

handouts that should be in front of you.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. CLANON:
the handouts.

I think we're probably going to have time to cover about 25 percent of
So why don't we take that time to sort of hit the highlights.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. CLANON:

Okay.

There are a lot of things that I think other people have covered •••

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
need to hear them again.
MR. CLANON:

Yes.

Some things have already been discussed already.

We don't

Thank you.

If we can shoot right to the very back of the handout, particularly

pages 8 and 9, are lists that are sort of naming of the parts of the major issues in
the Act that are going to affect the Public Utilities Commission, things that we're on
the road to implement, to take advantage of.

I'm just going to scoot through these.

We're going to come back to a couple of them, if we have time.

And Mary's going to go

into detail, in particular, a couple of the resource, planning, and transmission issues
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that I think are not going to be covered by two other panels.
The first issue, Chairman Imbrecht talked about the new form of generators.
think it's still early enough in the process.
and get it popularized.

I

You can probably write your own acronym

Those are going to be real interesting, and they'll have a lot

to do with the PUC.
The second major point, transmission.

As the chairman also mentioned, and this is

something that the Public Utilities Commission is heavily involved in, back in
Washington, as well for quite some time, the Act speaks to wholesale wheeling and the
role in the states.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. CLANON:

But FERC's pre-emption authority ••• with the state.
What about pre-emption?

Well, that's right.

FERC is empowered to require it.

The Act itself

does not require it, and Mary will cover that issue.
The third point, energy efficiency.

The commission has been involved in a very, I

think, persuasive and important partnership with this committee, the utility industry
and with consumer groups to encourage energy efficiency in California.

This is a major

opportunity for California.
Renewables, same deal.

Different forms of generation, California is way ahead of

the rest of the nation in that direction.
Another regulatory issue is capital structure, which you ought to thank me that we
don't have time to cover.

There are some financial issues that are involved in the new

structure.
As you know, the chairman and members has been involved for, about two years now,
two-and-a-half years, very heavily, in looking at the health effects of electric and
magnetic field exposure and positioning utilities to minimize and deal with those
health effects.
The Act provides for some coordination between state and federal agencies, and we
ought to be taking advantage of that.

There may also be some funding available for

that.
Nuclear issues.

There are nuclear decommissioning trusts, busy collecting dollars
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in banks and other financial institutions across the country to be there when we need
them to decommission nuclear plants when they cease to operate, when they're bought
down, when they're decommissioned.
The Act, among other things, allows some greater flexibility, some greater freedom,
for investments in the decommissioning trusts.

In addition, the Department of Energy

will be decommissioning some of its ownfacilities.
in some of the costs of that decommissioning.
utilities will be required to share in.
Finally, foreign affiliates.

Utilities will be required to share

And there's a cap on the amount the

That's something we need to look at.

An interesting part of the Act is that California

utilities through affiliates will be allowed, subject to certification by the Public
Utilities Commission, to invest in power projects in other countries.
that some of our utilities have already been pursuing.

That's something

The Act requires the commission

to make a very precise ratepayer protection finding in order to approve the services
overseas.
So that's just sort of seeping the bill as it relates to the Public Utilitlies
Commission.
I just want to echo something, Chairman, that you said in your opening remarks that
I think is really critical.

And Chairman Imbrecht as well mentioned this in his.

California is way ahead of the crest in this wave.

California, because of the

partnership that has developed among the different government agencies, the
legislature, the executive branch, the utilities industry, and consumers, is way ahead
of the rest of the country.

That is a good thing, and it's something worth protecting.

It also exposes us to some dangers.
opening remarks.

And Chairman, you also mentioned these in your

We can't be left behind in the support and the coordination efforts

of the federal government because we're perceived to be so far along that we don't need
help.

We're a big state, the biggest, the most populous one in the nation; and we

certainly deserve all the support we can get.

It's very important for us not to rest

on our laurels as government and as industry when we can keep the partnership going to
make sure that we get the most out of this, out of this industry.
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CHAIRMAN:

Let me ask a question.

I've been, as you may know, long concerned about

sweetheart deals between the utilities and their affiliates.
Does the new Act encourage such deals?
MR. CLANON:

The new Act allows such deals.

And it's a judgment question about

whether the intent of the Congress is to encourage the deals.

A very important part of

the Act is the very strong ratepayer protection findings that the individual state
commissions, including the Public Utilities Commission, are required to make before any
deals, any affiliate deals, whether sweetheart or otherwise, are allowed to be
introduced.

Whether the Act actually encourages the making of those deals or not,

California, through the Public Utilities Commission, with the support of the
Legislature, certainly is commissioned to protect the ratepayers from sweetheart deals.
Let me ask-- I'm sorry.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. CLANON:

Go ahead.

Let me ask Mary now to give some details.

in the handout, now half way through the presentation.

We're going now to page 1

We'll give you some details on

what this new exempt wholesale generation sector will look like and what sort of
benefits and costs it is likely to have for the ratepayers.
Just to set you up, the existing indusry, and I'm in the first page here, what's
happening now, the existing industry is based on utilities buying power from three
major sources -- from power plants that it owned -- the utilities own, from QFs -qualifying facilities, and then from other sources -- municipals, other government
agencies, and so on.
The Public Utilities Commission, with the active support and guidance of the
Legislature, has been moving towards an all-source procurement mechanism in which
supply and, in particular, demand-side resources are compared fairly so that we're not
just concentrating on one to the exclusion of the other.
Along those lines, we've just issued a report on the future of the electric
industry which I very heartedly recommend that you read that has some very interesting
ideas for where the industry is going.

Reading it in light of the Energy Policy Act is
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really an enlightening thing to do.

We'll be holding some full-panel hearings before

the commission on the future of the industry very soon.
That's the state of the industry now.

It's in flux.

Let me ask Mary to go forward

with •..
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Before you do, Senator Russell.

You said something about investing in foreign countries.

I

didn't get all that.
MR. CLANON:

One of the things that the Act allowed, and again, subject to

certification by the local Public Utilities Commission, is for a public utility to set
up an affiliate that would take part in the development of an energy program in another
country.

California has been heavily involved in the exporting of energy technology,

for instance, to other countries.

This would be a direct way of helping to market that

technology.
The critical issue there is that jobs don't leave California and that ratepayers
are protected from any sweetheart deals with their parent corporation.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

As a practical matter, are we talking about Mexico and Canada

or .••
MR. CLANON:

We're talking about rumored projects as distant as the Philippines,

Spain, and certainly all over the world.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

And Mary's telling me she'll answer that.

I wonder how that would benefit California to use a public

utility.
MR. CLANON:

Well, through the creation of an affiliate that would be separate from

the utility business that would be allowed to earn a profit on the exchange.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. CLANON:

Would it be using ratepayer funds for that?

Well, that would be the issue that the commission would be forced to

look at, unless the utility -- unless the ratepayers were insulated from any costs of
such an operation, the commission presumably would not certify the operation.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Here we go again, Hersch.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Okay.

Mary McKenzie, Legal Division of the PUC.
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MS. MARY McKENZIE:

Good afternoon.

I'd just like to follow up on a couple of

questions that Paul received.
On foreign affiliates, Mission Energy right now has subsidiaries in Spain and
Australia and I think also in South America.

These affiliates -- well, let me also

respond to another question first.
You asked whether sweetheart deals would be allowed.

They would be allowed only

subject to the PUC approval, and that's a really important point to make.
I just want to give a little more detail on a couple of areas that Chairman
Imbrecht touched upon in his discussion of the Act -- exempt wholesale generators and
transmission.
In enacting the Energy Policy Act, Congress took steps to increase competition in
generation and thereby reduce energy costs for consumers.

They did this in two major

steps.
One was to amend the federal Public Utility Holding Company Act to create a new
class of exempt wholesale generators.

Congress also amended the federal Power Act to

give the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission authority to order wholesale wheeling to
third parties under certain conditions.

Exempt wholesale generators can build, own,

lease, and operate non-rate-based plants throughout the country without being regulated
as a public utilities under the Act, without any sort of QF restrictions, as they had
under PURPA.

It can also be 100 percent owned as utility affiliates.

Congress's decision to allow utility affiliates to be exempt wholesale generators
was a very controversial decision.

The House version of the Act became a flat ban

against any sort of exempt wholesale generators affiliated with utilities and also a
flat ban on conversion of existing ratepayers' property to exempt wholesale-generator
status.
In enacting the Energy Policy Act, Congress rejected the flat-ban approach and
permitted affiliated exempt wholesale generators, but only where the state public
utility commissions have made the following findings.

And we're developing procedures

right now, so it will ready when the applications start coming in.
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These four findings

are that the affiliated transactions will benefit ratepayers, do not violate state law,
are in the public interest, and are not anti-competitive.

Congress is really heavily

relying on the state to protect ratepayers from cross-subsidies.
One other point on foreign affiliates.

You'd actually avoid the whole problem

where the utility pays higher-than-fair rates to the affiliate because of the distance,
because you're not connected by transmission.

You could still have possible

problems and we would seek to ensure the Securities Exchange Commission in this case
that we have the authority and the ability to protect the ratepayers.
Our challenge as state regulators is to allow utility affiliates to compete as
exempt wholesale generators while protecting consumers from unfair dealings and
cross-subsidies between exempt wholesale generators and affiliated utilities.

Our

experience with two of the affiliates highlights the needs for effective regulation.
You can do that in three ways.
One of them is competitive procurement processes.

They help to ensure

environmentally sensitive sources of energy, regardless if one of the sellers is
affiliated with a buyer.

Also, effective monitoring of the affiliated transactions.

This is a very difficult task.

We have state laws allowing us to audit affiliates now.

These state laws are now complemented by federal right of access to the books of
affiliates, which is in the Energy Policy Act.
The second major step that Congress took to increase competition in generation was
to give the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or FERC, the authority to order
wholesale wheeling when it is in the public interest and the price is just and
reasonable.

At the same time, Congress explicitly preserved state authority over

environmental protection and siting of upgrades ordered by FERC.

And I think the

transmission section is found on page 5 of the outline that Paul handed out earlier.
One of the major concerns with allowing affiliated exempt wholesale generators was
that transmission-owning utilities would give their affiliates transmission advantages
that non-transmission-owning power producers lack.

Giving FERC the authority to order

non-discriminatory access at rates that also promote economic efficiency mitigated this
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concern by ensuring the sellers can deliver their power to their market.

At the same

time, in the Energy Policy Act, Congress ensured that customers of utilities will not
subsidize power transmitted from the users.

In setting transmission rates, FERC is not

limited to cost-based rates which traditionally have been used -- there's buzzwords in
the Act -- legitimate, verifiable, economic costs can be used in order to set rates.
So basically what the Congress has done is authorize FERC to set transmission rates,
which include forgone opportunity costs.
At the present time, I won't get into what that does.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MS. McKENZIE:

You have the outline.

Right.

Also, just to sum up, FERC is prohibited from ordering retail

wheeling, but otherwise valid state laws authorizing retail wheeling are not affected.
There are both opportunities and risks.

Opportunities, because now sellers of powers

do have a way to market their power directly to the end users, end users being the
wholesale purchasers, not retailing users.
conflicts.

There are also risks due to potential

There are some gray areas, areas that overlap between the FERC and the

state government, the government discussed in the outline.
We see a real need for cooperation and coordination between the FERC and the state,
especially in the areas of transmission wheeling, and access.

Along with other state

public utility commissions, we have urged FERC to set up a cooperative process dealing
with these questions.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
All right.

Thank you very much.

We'll now have the second panel.

And just come forward.

Thomas

Willoughby, John Jurewitz, Gregory Barnes, George Minter, Dave Freeman, Dan Waters.
And I'm going to honor one of the panelists an opportunity to go out of sine because he
has a plane to catch.
Dan Waters, General Manager of L.A. Department of Water and Power.
MR. DAN WATERS:
that courtesy.

Mr. Chairman, thank you very much.

I appreciate your extending me

Senator Russell.

My name is Dan Waters.

I'm the General Manager of the Los Angeles Department of
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water and Power.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

And since you're in hurry-- you'll not read your statement.

Why don't you just give us the highlights.
MR. DAN WATERS:
the panels.

That's one of the easy things about being a little bit later in

It's easier to summarize.

I certainly do agree with the previous speakers that as far as California is
concerned, we've been out in front of the rest of the country.

And if anything, this

act begins to bring the federal government more in sine with what's happening in
California.

And it certainly presents a lot of opportunities to us in California to

take advantage of the Act.
I will just touch on a few areas that are of specific interest to Los Angeles and
Southern California.

And try not to repeat any of the remarks that have been made

previously.
With regard to electric vehicles, the Los Angeles City Council approved a program
back in 1986 with the goal of putting 10,000 electric vehicles on the road in Los
Angeles by 1995.

We feel that we have an opportunity to still meet that goal.

And if

anything, this act, both through its tax incentives and through its cost sharing,
especially as it relates to manufacturing and infrastructure, will certainly help and
give additional push or incentive to us making that goal.
One of the things that I should mention is CALSTART, which was talked about
earlier, I'm on the board of CALSTART.

And we, like everybody else, very disappointed

in General Motors backing off on some of their commitments.
are trying to move ahead.

But at the same time, we

And through CALSTART and through the matching-grants

programs which we feel will work very well with this federal act also, get the
incentives that will get production going in California within the next couple of
years.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Question in that regard.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Senator Russell.

Since we know that Volvo and Volkswagen and other, probably
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, carmakers have produced an electric vehicle, why is it that they're not going
to be available for several future years?
MR. WATERS:

You mean in California?

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. WATERS:

Um-hmm.

As I indicated, I have hopes that we can get to production of electric

vehicle in California within the next two years. We are working with some foreign
companies on the development of vehicles, but they are very interested in producing
those vehicles in California.

And that's because they recognize that the primary

initial market is going to be in California.

And so we're really talking about trying

to get this thing produced, not in Europe or in Japan or Asia, but in the United States
and in California specifically.
With regard to electromagnetic fields, Los Angeles and consumer-owned utilities
around the country were, I think, the main prime mover on getting the research funds,
the $65 million in matching research funds, into the Energy Act.

As the Chairman of

your committee knows, we in Los Angeles have been very, very interested in moving the
research in this area to answer some of the questions that we feel need to be answered.
I think I can also assure the committee that the consumer-owned power, both in
California and nationally, are committed to providing our share of the matching funds
to go along with the $65 million.
From the point of view of renewables and the development of renewable resources, we
are really pleased that for really the first time, they've gone to an incentive that
will also benefit consumer-owned, tax-exempt utilities, such as the Los Angeles
Department of Water and Power.

The 1 1/2 cent per kilowatt hour incentive for

developing renewable resources will be, we think, a major benefit, certainly to Los
And we're already moving in the direction with programs that were already
under way that we think we could take advantage of that.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Another question.

from Edison could answer this better.

It's my understanding -- and maybe the people
But my understanding is that the Edison company

has had for many years a major program on renewables, only to see that the solar --44-

they've withdrawn from that.

I'm not familiar with their success with wind power, but

that's sort of on the back burners.

It seems like all these different alternatives

merely make up a very modest, miniscule amount, of less than 5 percent.
MR. WATERS:

We were partners with Edison in the development, the pilot project, on

solar development.

But in general, I think what's happened is, the technology or the

development, commercialization, was ahead of technology.

And we think that right now

in areas -- obviously the state has done very well in geothermal.

Los Angeles is

developing a geothermal project right now up in the Owens Valley.

We think that wind,

for example, today, with the new machines that are being installed, is quite
competitive and technically, we think, quite feasible.

That, we don't believe, was the

case initially when the state got into wind, and that's one of the reasons that Los
Angeles did not participate.
With regard to transmission access, Los Angeles, along with the municipal powers
utilities in California have been moving toward open access on transmission for some
time.

We see the additional authority given to FERC in this act to order wheeling as

really being a catalyst or an incentive to cause the type of voluntary
transmission-access organizations which we've been promoting, such as WATSCO, which was
mentioned earlier.

We think this is going to be a real incentive, and it looks to us

like FERC is going to cooperate in developing regulations that will allow these type of
voluntary groups to go forward.
With regard to energy conservation, I think we also agree with the previous
speakers that the incentives that are in the Act are going to do even more to promote
the programs which we're also moving well along in California.
need to spend any more time on that.

And I don't think I

Enough has been said.

With regard to greenhouse gases, we are pleased that the Act does include a
voluntary program which will require the Department of Energy to begin to voluntarily
register reductions from the utility industry.

We had committed a couple of years ago

to a 10 percent reduction in C02 on our system by the year 2000 and a 20 percent
reduction by 2010.

And we were quite concerned that those type of voluntary programs
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would not be credited if and when the federal government gets around to mandating some
form of C02 reductions.

So we're very happy with this voluntary recording program

which is put in place just to give us credit for the type of reductions we might
accomplish in the next few years.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
these days.

Let me ask you a question.

We've got a lot of water around

What are you doing about water conservation, such as the flow rate for

shower heads?
MR. WATERS:

Well, I think, as you know, Senator, that Los Angeles has had an

extremely aggressive water conservation program certainly brought on by the last six
years of drought.

Even though we're getting lots of rain, we officially went out on

any form of mandatory conservation about three weeks ago in Los Angeles.
continuing to push conservation.

We are

We're still getting almost a 20 percent conservation

effort in Los Angeles without any mandatory penalties having been in place for the last
year.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Are you going to be leading the standards called for in the

Act?
MR. WATERS:

I think very definitely.

will help us to do even better.

We see that there are incentives there that

But for example, we've had installed in Los Angeles

300,000 low-water use toilets that are already installed.

So even though the drought

may be over, those toilets are going to be in place for the next 15 or 20 years.

And

we are seeing the benefit of that.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. WATERS:

Okay.

I think, in summary, I would like to emphasize one point that was made

by a previous speaker, and that is, that we can't rest on our laurels in California.
We think that both from the point of view of appropriations and the budgets that are
going to be developed in Washington over the next few months and the fact that the
Department of Energy is going to be developing a tremendous amount of regulations to
implement this act, we think it's essential that California, both state government,
local government, and the utilities work together to kind of get California's fair
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share out of this energy act.
Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you very much.

And since we took the Department of Water and Power out of order, let me stay with
the munis and ask David Freeman, General Manager SMUD, to make his presentation.
MR. S. DAVID FREEMAN:
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. FREEMAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

If I could •.•

And you're also limited.

If I could incorporate by reference Chairman Imbrecht's testimony and

Dan Waters' testimony, you can cut me down to five minutes.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. FREEMAN:
issues.

Thank you.

Any subject is made up of a lot of capital area issues and jugular

And that's true of the energy subject as well.

issues that concerns the utility people and others.

There are a lot of interesting

But to my mind, the jugular

problem is that we have exported a million jobs and $60 billion a year overseas for the
imported oil that we have coming in and that we still have air pollution as a result of
burning all that oil and that we have a problem of employment in this state, and we
have an opportunity of being the place where the automobile industry of the future
could be built on the basis of our leadership.
couple of years.

And I've only been in California a

I can talk like this without being chauvinistic, the leadership that

California has exhibited over a long period of time in renewable energy and high
technology.

And it seems to me that -- I want to congratulate the chairman on having a

hearing, especially on electric vehicles.

We are at a critical spot in the history of

this high-energy civilization where the technology is there.
And Senator Russell, the electric car of the future exists today in the technical
center of the General Motors Company.
there.

I have seen it, and we've driven it.

The issue is the financing to mass produce it.

The car is

And the General Motors board

did a, made a business-like decision that they were broke-- they're not broke but in
the red -- and just weren't going to lose any more money to commercialize a product
that would cost several hundred million dollars to commercialize it.
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Until they could

get up to making several hundred thousand of them a year, they can't make them cheap
enough to sell them.

And that's kind of where we are.

I would urge this committee to take a page out of the book of Texas which put a
billion dollars into something not nearly as important as the electric car -- the Super
Collider -- and attracted a huge amount of federal money as a result.

A substantial

amount of money between the utilities and the state, I believe, would be the -- sell us
the golden carrot, or whatever you wish -- that would attract the first electric
automobile manufacturers in the world to this state.

And I think that's a jugular

issue.
We also have a big lead in the renewables, as Chairman Imbrecht pointed out.
ought to, you know, not sit on that lead and have a major program.
market that is sustainable.

We

There, we need a

What stopped the development of solar was the market.

was like a neon sign; it went off and on.

It

The development of that technology requires

a steady stream of orders, and the industries will gradually reduce the cost.
We are in a position to provide a large chunk of that market here in California.
And I think those two things, it's not going to create a lot of jobs in '93, probably
not even in your term.

But we've got to start doing some things in this country and in

this state that will make us prosperous in the years ahead.

And I think those are two

things that could make -- it could create hundreds of thousands of jobs by the turn of
the century.
Thank you, sir.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you.

I believe I read recently that the SMUD board

endorsed the President's Energy tax?
MR. FREEMAN:

That's correct.

I recommended it; they adopted it; and we believe

that it is a well-thought-through effort to both raise revenue but to send the right
price signals.

There's no tax on solar, wind, or the renewables.

And the tax is

heaviest on the oil, half of which we import and where we've just got to wean ourselves
as dependents on the Middle East.
The price of oil at the front is deceptive.
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It doesn't include the cost of the

Defense Department, the blood we have to shed when we go to war, or the pollution
that's emitted.

And we have the technological capability with CALSTART in this state

to just do a lot better with the cleaner domestic energy and the domestic
manufacturing.

And I would just love to see the state grab that leadership role that

it has throughout the decade in this country.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
Okay.

Thank you very much.

Our next panelist is Tom Willoughby, Manager of State Government Relations

at Pacific Gas & Electric.
MR. THOMAS WILLOUGHBY:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Willoughby representing PG&E here today.

For the record, I am Tom

And I will give you a very short perspective

on a couple of points that have been raised before, but I hope to give you a unique
utility perspective.
From the point of view of an electric utility, such as PG&E, one of the principal
things we're interested in is getting electric energy as cheaply, as inexpensively, as
possible.

The National Energy Policy Act holds out that prospect through the

designation of what you've heard already, exempt wholesale generators, which literally
means that anyone who wants to bid, to supply energy to utilities, such as PG&E, can do
so.

It can be a private entrepreneur, a municipal utility, whoever.

And this opens up

a new vista that goes well beyond the present QF policy and the QF bidding system in
California.

It literally allows, as I say, all comers to bid, and it allows a company,

such as PG&E, to get the benefit of the lowest-cost provider.

So we certainly endorse

that, and we look to the California Public Utilities Commission to move forward and to,
as expeditiously as possible, implement a genuine all-source bidding program so that we
can take advantage of all of the sources out there and select the ..•
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

You think that'll help lower your rates, which everybody says

is too high?
MR. 'wiLLOUGHBY:

We certainly hope it will.

prospect for the lowest possible of energy.

Certainly we think that holds the

In that connection, we also feel that when

we do sign a contract with the winning bidder that those contracts need to be flexible
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and to provide for the opportunity to renegotiate as circumstances change.

We,feel

very certain that in a changing world we live in things will change, and it doesn't
make a lot of sense to lock yourself into a 30-year contract without any possibility to
renegotiate.

so we think that that's an important component of this.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

May I ask a question.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Yes.

For an electric utility, yours or anyone, where is the biggest

profit to the shareholders?
MR. WILLOUGHBY:
invested capital.

Senator Russell.

The building of a plant?

Under current rate making, our rate of return is based upon
And as we go forward into this brave, new utility world that's

changing so rapidly, we're looking at a new world where PG&E will probably not be
building most power plants.

Those will probably be built by independent entrepreneurs

or municipal utiltiies, whoever.

And PG&E will simply be purchasing the energy as a

wholesaler, and it's selling it on the retail level.

That, I think, means that the

Public Utilities Commission is going to have to rethink the manner in which it allows
investor-owned utilities to make a profit since we will not be investing capital on
which to make a profit.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

So unless they come up with some new method of rewarding the

ratepayers, I don't see much future in profitability in terms of the utilities.

You're

just going to be a middleman, just directing electrical generation capacity, like a
police officer.
MR. WILLOUGHBY:

That's correct, although we do have confidence that the Public

Utilities Commission will look into these issues.

The report that was mentioned

earlier that's just been published by their strategic planning division does raise this
issue and point out that there's a necessity for looking at this in a changing world.
So we think that that's an issue that will be dealt with.
One other thing that I should mention quickly is, in order to make this bfdding
system really work, you have to have access to transmission and it has to be access to
transmission on a regional basis, not just a California intrastate basis.

-so-

We were

pleased to participate in the work that's been done on WATSCO, that we're continuing to
work with, on a regional basis, so that we can put together a truly workable, regional
transmission group.
If I could just quickly mention that we are also very much in support of the energy
efficiency measures in the National Energy Policy Act, that we do point out that the
bill offers a 100 percent exclusion for any rebates that any customer might get, a
residential customer might get, for federal tax purposes.
would follow through on that and parallel that.

We would hope that the state

If I could bring to your attention

that Assemblyman Klehs has already introduced the bill that I hope that you'll see
later on in the session that will allow people who receive energy-efficiency rebates
not to have to declare that as income on their income tax.
We also support the renewables provisions, and we have long been in support of both
the natural gas and electric vehicles and are very supportive of the provisions of the
federal statute on those issues.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you very much.

John Jurewitz, Manager of Energy Policy for Southern Cal Edison.
MR. JOHN JUREWITZ:

Thank you, Senator.

Let me try to hit the high points here.

First of all, we think that this legislation is a very positive piece of
legislation.

I want to emphasize that at the outset.

Another theme is, it's already

been hit here by many different speakers is, it basically lacks appropriations at this
point.

And that's going to be the near-term battle to make sure that the more positive

aspects of this act receive appropriate appropriations.
In that regard, let me just hit a few high points.
efficiency.
1990s.

First of all, energy

I think that energy efficiency is probably the most pressing issue in the

And certainly the Washington delegation from California should be pressing as

hard as possible for appropriations, full appropriations, of this bill as it relates to
energy-efficiency programs.
There's a very ambitious program embedded within the Energy Policy Act for federal
buildings to undertake all cost effective energy efficiency between now and the year
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2005.

The Edison Company plans on working as closely as possible with the federal

government to work out appropriate relationships in order to maximize that penetration
of energy investments.
There's quite a bit of authorization, but again not appropriation, in terms of R&D,
for electric heating and cooling technologies, advanced building design,
energy-intensive industries, a lot of in-use aspects that I think really do need to get
funded.

These would require, for the most part, matching grants and participation by

utilities.

We plan on, first of all, seeing what we can do to maximize the amount of

appropriation provided for these programs and then following up with particular
programs to go after some of these grants in order to improve the energy-efficiency
capabilities of our customers and try to help them lower their energy bills.
Finally, in the energy efficiency area, I'd like to put a plug in for the
energy-efficient mortgage pilot program, a very positive program, we think.

In the

State of California, there's about 600,000 homes that turn over per year, tremendous
opportunities there for encouraging energy efficiency through a pilot program and
through eventually a full-scale program.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. JUREWITZ:

You'll support my bill?

We certainly support the concept, and we're looking very closely

(laughter) -- we're looking very closely at your bill, Senator.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. JUREWITZ:

Thank you.

In that regard, we think that there's a -- we are participating in

the launching of the CHEERS program, the California Home Energy Efficiency Rating
System, which is necessary prerequisite to this kind of program.
The second thing I'd like to emphasize regards electric transportation.
think the message really, among others, is infrastructure.

And here I

In order for, I think,

electric vehicles to become accepted and become a significant part of the California
economy, it's going to be absolutely necessary that customers have confidence that the
infrastructure exists to service electric vehicles to provide recharge facilities.
that regard, a very positive aspect is that there's a hundred-thousand-dollar tax
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In

deduction for recharging property, but there's still a rule making that needs to go
through DOE regarding that particular feature; and we're keeping a very close eye on
that.
There's also .•.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Senator Russell.

Is that avenue that the utilities would explore to develop the

infrastructure on recharging stations as they have done in their electrical generation
distribution centers?
MR. JUREWITZ:

Did I understand your question?

Yes, we do have an interest in

recharging facilities.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

So you would build it like you would build a distribution center

in the past for distributing your electrical generation ..•
MR. JUREWITZ:

I think the plans are to participate.

We're looking at various

options, including 100 percent participation, partnering, and other options as well, I
believe.
In that regard also there are funds again authorized but not appropriated for
research, demonstration, and commercialization of infrastructure investments,
demonstration programs, and numerous other activities, and also money provided on a
matching-fund basis for states enacting electric-vehicle incentives.

And so we think

it's very important that California take advantage of those matching funds with
appropriate internal incentives within California.

And as a part of that, I believe

that there's a comprehensive study that is supposed to to precede that in order to
qualify the state for those kind of matching funds from the federal government.
believe that the calendar on that is that it's supposed to be done by late 1994.

I
I

think that that's something that needs to be looked at and pursued within the State of
California.
Finally, and again, getting back to infrastructure, I think indirectly there are
quite a few requirements on fleet mandates for providers for alternative-fueled
vehicles, for other private fleets, municipals, states, utilities.
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Again, it's very

important if the program is going to be successful that there be infrastructure, that
there be support for infrastructure from the California Public Utilities Commission,
and that hopefully that we go all the way, as Dave Freeman has just mentioned, all the
way to building a complete vertically integrated capability within the State of
California, going all the way back to the manufacturing of electric vehicles by firms
here in California.
Just in passing, I think that the renewables aspect of the bill are positive.
would note that there is an investment tax credit of 10 percent for solar energy.

I
For

some reason, the Congress saw fit to exclude utilities, however, from that investment
tax credit.

We think that that was a mistake.

I think that we will be pursuing,

amending that particular legislation in Washington to provide for a broader basis of
tax incentives.

There are a lot of on-system applications for solar facilities at

substations and remote locations on the Edison system, and it would be very beneficial,
I think, to have the, an improved economics for solar generation on the system.
Finally, let me just say a couple of things about the restructuring aspects, the
PUHCA reform, the EWGs, the transmission access.

I think it's very positive for the

consumers in California that we have the federal support now for increased competition.
But I think it's important to recognize that it is simply support.
nothing mandated, other than transmission access here.

There's really

The EWG exemption is not

literally economic deregulation of small power producers.

It's simply an exemption

from the Public Utility Holding Company Act, which is a very positive development, but
it is not complete in terms of providing benefits of competition within the state.
There is complementary action that has to be taken by the California Public Utilities
Commission.
Right now we have a bidding system in California that simply allows qualifying
facilities under PURPA to participate in the bidding process.

This needs to be

broadened in order to allow EWGs to bid as well into a utilities bidding system as well
as, at a minimum, other utilities, to bid into a host utility's bidding system.
I think that it was mentioned by Chairman Imbrecht originally, and perhaps
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reiterated by other speakers here, is that there is an amount of potential here for
state/federal conflict.

There is an amount of jurisdictional power that has shifted

over to the federal government insofar as they do have economic regulation over these
EWG contracts, even though the design on those contracts are presumably within the
jurisdiction of the California Public Utilities Commission.

So there is a good amount

of complementary action that needs to take place between the federal and state
jurisdictions.
In terms of transmission access, we fully supported the transmission access
provisions in the Energy Policy Act, conditional on them providing provisions within
those transmission specifications that would protect consumers, that is, that would
protect the current uses -- the transmission system -- that are uses that benefit the
customers of a utility and that those benefits not be given up to third parties without
adequate compensation, that would completely compensate the utilities' customers.
We think we have that in concept within the bill.

But again, this is a place where

the FERC has to promulgate rules and regulations, and there's quite a bit that can
happen between the legislation and the actual rule making.

So we need to stay on top

of that.
Finally, you've asked about our reaction to the tax act -- or the tax proposal.

I

think there were many taxes that were considered by the Clinton Administration,
including carbon taxes and sales taxes, income taxes, import fees, and many of the
other things that have been previously mentioned.
I think our preference would have been for a little bit broader tax, perhaps a
sales tax or an income tax provision.
that the Edison Company can support.
its breadth.

But I think the tax that was proposed is a tax
It is a fair tax, an equitable tax, in terms of

We would hope that -- and obviously, it's a tax that is necessary in

order to reduce the deficit, which is a very important objective that we all should
have.
We would hope that, especially because it's a BTU tax, and especially because there
is a focus on the electric industry and the -- I'm sorry -- on the energy industry in
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general -- that there be some supplementary provisions that would allow some additional
plow back, especially into energy efficiency, as a result of the fact that the energy
industry is being asked to, I think, shoulder just a little bit more of the burden,
albeit not an unfair burden, I think, the fact that it turned out to be a BTU tax
rather than an income tax or a sales tax.
So with that, let me just re-emphasize -- I think that the Energy Policy Act is
very positive; it needs our support.

It especially needs our support in the area of

appropriations.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you very much.

Our next panelist, Gregory Barnes, Assistant General Counsel, San Diego Gas &
Electric.
MR. E. GREGORY BARNES:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Honorable Members of the

Committee.
I will steal Mr. Freeman's metaphor and go for one jugular point here, and it
amplifies a subject that Mr. Willoughby discussed.
This Energy Act creates this class of independent generators free from most of the
restrictions of the Public Utilities Holding Company Act.

This represents a great

opportunity for the nation and for this state to realize competition in electric
generation which will redound to the benefit of all electric ratepayers.
you could put it in terms of social equity.

This is

It's also an infrastructure issue; it's a

California-competitiveness issue.
But the real key to implementation of a competitive generation regime is at the
state level because the Act leaves to the state to determine whether and to what extent
utilities are one required to competitively secure generation; and two, whether
utilities may themselves compete, either to supply their own load or to supply the load
of other utilities.
SDG&E believes that the more players you have, the more likely it is you're going
to have the low price any time bids go out.

So

we would hope that the state, the

regulators, and the Legislature focus on making competition work in the generation
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sector.
I might add that SDG&E probably has more of a taste of this competition than any
other utility in this state and perhaps more than most in the nation because in 1979,
we decided not to build any more generation except for our commitment to the San Onofre
project, and we became a purchase-power utility for additional increments of
generation.

It was a learning process, but we found, that by maintaining our own

ability to build and by exploiting a capacity surplus in the western region, we were
able to get ourselves from the utility with the second highest rates in the nation in
1985 to the lowest investor-owned rates in California today.
seen it.

So we believe it.

We've

We believe that this competition can work.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. BARNES:

What effect did that have on your dividend?

We're thriving.

We're financially healthier than we've been in a long

time.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. BARNES:

Yes.

Has dividend return increased since 1979 then?
Senator Russell, you asked Mr. Willoughby earlier about how are

utilities going to profit if they can't invest and plan?
they could continue to do that.

Well, first, we would hope

But second, SDG&E has put before the California Public

Utilities Commission a performance-based rate making proposal.
Today, the utility industry is cost-plus.
lowest bidder.

We put a man on the moon using the

And what we're proposing is that the utility have the opportunity to

profit from O&M, in other words, that we be judged not in hindsight as to whether we
made a reasonable decision, which is the standard now, but that we be judged against
the marketplace, and that if we lose against the marketplace, our shareholders suffer.
If we beat the marketplace, our shareholders gain but they split the gain with the
customer.

So it's a win, win, win all the way around, we think.

require fewer regulatory resources.

This will enable

We think this will

this will spur the utility to

greater efficiency to benefit ratepayers, and there's an opportunity for the
shareholders to win as well.
So we think that with the CPUC white paper that was discussed by Mr. Clanon, with
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our performance-based rate-making concept, and with this legislature and the
commission's encouragement of a truly competitive generation sector that there is also
a win solution for the ratepayers of California.
To close, I would like to point out that there is this renewable issue, and there
are many things good about renewables for the planet.

But I think everyone needs to

understand that if you have renewable set-asides, there will be a price to pay by
ratepayers.

And that's the kind of public-policy judgment that this body will have to

weigh and the regulators will have to weigh.
Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you.

George Minter, Manager of Public Affairs Planning for Southern California Gas
Company.
Before you begin, it appears to me that natural gas is the fuel choice of the
Clinton Administration.

How does the National Energy Policy Act promote the

development and use of natural gas?
MR. GEORGE MINTER:

Well, I think it's a good question, to begin with.

Thank you,

Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee.
You've heard a lot about the general provisions of the bill and an awful lot about
electricity, but I think you're right.

Not only is the new Clinton Administration

focused on the utilization of gas but so is the Energy Policy Act.
many of the provisions of the Act.

I won't go into

Let me just talk about how it affects gas and how

it affects the gas company and what we're doing.
Let me focus specifically on alternative fuels, the natural gas R&D sections and
the energy efficiency sections.
We think that the legislation here in California is going to have a tremendous
impact.

Those three provisions ought to result in cleaner air, ought to help us get

off foreign oil, and we also think the legislation will begin to enhance the potential
for economic growth in the LA area and also provide the basis for job creation as well.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Can I ask another question?
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CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:
so on.

Senator Russell.

We've heard a lot about incentives and R&D money and so forth and

Where is the hammer in this bill?

Where are the provisions that say you must

do this or else?
MR. MINTER:

Well, in the case of natural gas, the hammer in the bill is simply the

authorization by the bill.

In fact, that actually has stronger language that directs

the DOE secretary to engage in a natural gas utilization research and development
effort focused in three areas:

combustion technology, natural gas vehicle development,

and fuel-cell technology development.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

So the hammer is the direction to the DOE.

They do that, and so they come up with some great ideas and then

what?
MR. MINTER:
demonstration.

Actually, the focus is RD&D.

It's research, development, and

And demonstration is the key link to take technology that's been

developed through research and apply it in a commercial application to bring it to
market.

That's the biggest leap that we must make in bringing new technology into the

market, yes.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Are there requirements that once this technology is provided that

you must therefore do thus and so?
MR. MINTER:

No.

Such requirements as that are not in the bill, but such requirements

often are part of the agreement that funding, the agreement that comes with the project
funding through DOE.
Earlier questions had been directed on who does this research, is this government
research.

The way it is focused for natural gas R&D is that it directs the Department

of Energy to re-focus research efforts towards natural gas.
need to appropriate those funds.

Obviously, Congress will

And the logical process for most of these projects

will be an RFP process whereby they'll be funding for private or public/private
partnerships or public agencies which engage ...
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. MINTER:

Yes.

Would you be involved in such research with the gas company?
We expect to, and we are currently involved in such research.
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We have fuel-cell projects that are both privately funded and public/private
partnerships as well as receiving some funds from DOE.

We have some NGV projects.

We

also have a lot of combustion technology projects.
In fact, SoCalGas's own utility-sponsored research is focused primarily in those
areas, most of our research, in those three areas.

In fact, the gas industry over the

last two or three years has been working with DOE, has been working with Congress,
specifically, the California delegation, to re-focus DOE's research orientation towards
gas.

Gas provides about 25 percent of the nation's energy mix; so does coal.

received about 3 percent of the available DOE refunds.

We

Coal receives about 25 percent.

So there is a basic inequity, and part of what we're saying is if we've got the Clean
Air Act, which is policy -- if we've got the Energy Policy Act, which is policy
let's start appropriating money and putting money behind the policy that we've been
enacting.
To get back to some of the other provisions of the bill and how we're responding, I
think we've talked a lot about the RD&D effort.

And the gas industry has an active

committee that has been working with DOE and briefing the new incoming administration
members and has been working with Congress to redirect the funding.

And we're pleased

to see that the bill specifically directs the secretary to engage in a natural gas
utilization project.
Let me just say that the Clinton package that was released last week -- the
stimulus package does provide funding for part of that RD&D effort.
million for natural-gas vehicles in 1993.

There is $28

We do expect there, in fact, to see an

executive order related to the expenditure of that money.
numbers under the investment part do provide funds,

The '94,

'95,

'96,

'97

increasing funds, each year for

alternative-fuel vehicle development, as well as natural gas utilization.

So it's

clear that the provisions of this act, the interest of the Clinton Administration, and
what the Clinton Administration released, in terms of investment and stimulus, are all
pretty aligned and consistent.
Let me talk a little bit about moving away from RD&D.
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What we're doing on

natural-gas vehicles, we think specifically that this bill will be a boon for
natural-gas vehicle development.

We at SoCalGas have been working with all of the

automotive manufacturers to develop a natural-gas vehicle.
electric vehicles.

Natural-gas vehicles are here today.

It's not something for tomorrow.

You heard discussion about
It's an existing technology.

Every major vehicle manufacturer in the U.S. now has

in production some dedicated natural-gas vehicles.
ago of a hundred GM Sierra pickup trucks.

We've taken delivery about a year

They're dedicated natural-gas vehicle pickup

trucks, and we'll be completing delivery of up to 300 of those vehicles in our own
fleet.

We're working with Chrysler who now has a Ram van that's a dedicated vehicle

that has met car certification requirements for the LEV standard.

And, in fact, some

of its testing data indicates it might well meet the ULEV standard as well.

And Ford

recently announced the production of the Crown Victoria as a dedicated natural-gas
vehicle.
We have some of all of these vehicles.

We're working with fleets throughout

Southern California to purchase these vehicles.

This bill provides for the state and

the federal government a mandate to purchase alternative-fueled vehicles.
that natural-gas vehicles are here today.

The marketplace is growing.

We think

The market is

growing for those vehicles through these mandates, and we fully expect national fleets,
as well as state fleets, as well as private and the municipal fleets, to begin
purchasing on their new fleets a certain percentage of natural-gas vehicles.
The other area outside of vehicles is infrastructure, and you heard some discussion
about electric infrastructure.
re-fueling infrastructure.
process along.
stations.

It's imperative that we develop a natural-gas

And there has been state legislation that has moved this

We're involved now in completing the installation of 51 NGV re-fueling

This bill does provide some assistance to the customer, in terms of tax

subsidies, on the cost of the installation of that refueling station.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. MINTER:

Fifty-one are in Los Angeles County?

In the Southern California service territory.

quite a number in LA County, however.
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Not all LA County;

I would like to mention that while we have these projects with what we call the
OEMs, the original equipment manufacturers, we are negotiating with one of the
manufacturers to site a facility in Los Angeles, if possible, to begin to push this
market beyond what it is today.

That is, that if you look at GM or Chrysler or Ford's

schedule, they're not going to crank out enough vehicles to meet the mandates under
this bill with the potential under the Clean Air Act -- and we need to jump-start that
marketplace.
facility.

And so we're talking about the idea of what's been called an upfit

It's a facility that would actually truck out the chassis of the vehicle out

to LA, and hopefully the idea would be with certain partners who are involved in this
kind of business.

We would upfit the natural gas components onto that vehicle and

actually do that in Los Angeles.
This is a similar idea to what the State of Texas has proposed.

Ann Richards,

Governor of Texas, has proposed this kind of an idea with GM, and we're looking at
doing the same thing here for Southern California.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. MINTER:

Don't you just add the big tank in the back of the truck?

The way it is actually done is that GM actually contracts with another

entity that actually does that work.
factory.

So that work isn't actually done in the GM

It's done off the line.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

But it's also -- it's putting it, the tanks, in the back of the

bed of the pickup truck.
MR. MINTER:

Well, in the case of the pickup truck, the tanks are actually

underneath, under the bed.

But, yes, it's putting the tanks there and the fuel

delivery lines and the regulator system.
MR. RUSSELL:
MR. MINTER:
MR. RUSSELL:

There's still those big cylinders, right?
Yes.

These are very large safety-tested cylinders.

Takes up the entire trunk of a commerical -- I mean of a passenger

vehicle?
MR. MINTER:

Actually, the Crown Victorias take up only a partial trunk space, not

the entire trunk space.

And I don't know if we have some up here.
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Perhaps PG&E would

have them up in the area and would be able to show you some of those sedans.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. MINTER:

Yes.

Would you wind up.
The final area is the area of energy efficiency.

And we, along

with all the other utilities, are involved in most of the programs that are authorized
and encouraged by the bill.
The final thing I'd like to say is that we did conduct an economic study on what
would happen in Southern California if the gas RD&D effort that I spoke about earlier
was fully funded by DOE and what kind of job creation potential there was.
was a study that I'd be happy to share with you at another time.

And this

But basically it

looked at a ten-year program with increased funding towards these three technology
areas -- NGVs, fuel cells, and combustion technology.

And it would create, if we got a

fair share, which would be consistent with what California's received in the past, we
have the job-creation potential of about 30,000 new jobs through the year 2000 to 2010
with added economic-related growth of about a billion-and-a-half dollars.
that's a pretty exciting opportunity just within the gas industry.

And I think

Thank you very

much.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you.

We'll hear from our final panel, Jan Smutny-Jones, Hap Boyd, Richard Miller, David
Goldstein, Robert Finkelstein, and Art Carter.
Jan Smutny-Jones, Director of the Independent Energy Producers.

What impact will

EWGs have on the QF industry?
MR. JAN SMUTNY-JONES:

Thank you, Senators.

I'm, as you said, Jan Smutny-Jones,

with the Independent Energy Producers.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. SMUTNY-JONES:
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. SMUTNY-JONES:

And everybody is limited to time, so ...
Yes.

I realize that.

Thank you.
I've been listening.

I would like to today cover basically three quick areas which I believe the
National Energy Policy Act will have an impact on our industry.
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I think first I just

want to quickly put this into context in terms of where we are today.
As you know, Senators, currently the QF industry constitutes about 20 percent of
the energy used in California, roughly 10,000 megawatts in terms of capacity.

We're

currently doing a study with respect to jobs and taxes that this component of the
electric business provides.

We're partially through with it.

But at this point, we've

identified about 60,000 jobs that are associated either directly in this industry or
with the host facilities with respect to co-generation.
effective job retention and creation program.
local property taxes.
California.

So this has been a very

It represents about $120 million in

And literally these projects are spread throughout the State of

But we're certainly proud of the --

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. SMUTNY-JONES:

Tell us about the new ..•
contribution that we've made today.

like all other industries at this point, is, in fact, evolving.

However, my industry,
We've got a situation

now where the Public Utilities Holding Company Act, as you heard earlier, was reformed
by NEPA, and there are several key areas in which this reformation will affect my
industry.
First of all, with exempt wholesale generators, unlike co-generators, there will be
no longer a need for steam hosts.

They're likely to utilize economies of scale.

You're likely to see larger projects, and they're likely to participate in regional
markets.

And Senators, what I mean by that, is you are likely to see facilities being

built that will, say, provide summer peaking capacity for Edison or PG&E and perhaps
winter peaking capacity for the northwest which largely heats itself by electricity.
There is also a significant development with respect, as you've heard earlier, to
increase transmission access.

And again, what this does, is it authorizes FERC under

certain circumstances to order transmission access.

What we believe that will do is

open up these markets for additional competition.
The third point I'd like to point out is that NEPA does require a study of taxation
and rate-making proceedings which may discriminate against renewable resources.

I

think this is an important point for California, given the fact that this state leads
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the world in terms of its diversity of resources, specifically, renewable energy
resources.
The next point I would like to make is really a comment, is that our industry is
shifting, is transforming, becoming more competitive.

And you heard earlier, my

utility colleagues, in the universal mantra, with respect to all-source bidding, the
state is moving towards all-source bidding.

That's been clear for many years now.

One

of the quid pro quos on that has been opening up the transmission system that is in
process right now, and I am certain that the next round of bidding will be all-source
bidding.

And hopefully, that will be truly all-source bidding and provides sufficient

protection that there are not activities going on with utilities both bidding and
selecting that would create problems with fairness.
So what I could basically say is that we believe that ••.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. SMUTNY-JONES:

What does that mean?
What does that mean?

Senator, our concern specifically is, is

when you have a utility that is both bidding and purchasing, there is a tendency for
those of us who would participate in that believe that the utility would set the
bidding process up in a way that would benefit itself or an affiliate.
saying that has happened here in California.

Now I'm not

But we are concerned in the future that

if the utility is both a participant and buyer that the process can be set up in such a
way that would discriminate against other competitors, whether they're my members or
other utilities.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

You feel that the PUC is capable of monitoring that, keeping an

even hand on it?
MR. SMUTNY-JONES:

I can say right now this issue is being looked at very hard by

all three utilities and by the PUC.

There was an en bane proceeding by the commission

in November, and the utilities all had a different response.

PG&E indicated they were

out of the generation business because they believed the type of regulatory oversight
that would be necessary for that type of all-source bidding would be too cumbersome,
and it would be easier for them just to go to buying rather than bidding themselves.
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Edison and San Diego had a different position on that.

I think it's premature, you

know, to say much more than that, other than to say that this is being seriously looked
at by the PUC.

I think we are making great progress in this area.

The National Energy Policy Act -- I think it's been combined with this structural
change that I was talking about earlier in the utility industry, provides a real
opportunity to provide future benefits for both California ratepayers and its economy.
And with that, Senator, I'd like to close and I would beg your pardon.

I have a

number of my members who've been waiting for me to appear, probably wondering where I
am.

And with all due respect to the committee and my fellow panelists, I'd like to

depart.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you very much.

Your reception doesn't start until 5:30, but you can leave.
Okay.

Hap Boyd, Chairman of the Coalition for Energy Efficiency and Renewable

Technologies.
I see a piece in the paper that you've provided which indicated you're selling
5,000 windmills to the Ukraine and Russia.
MR. HAP BOYD:

(Inaudible -- no microphone)

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. BOYD:

And you're going to blow the air?

(Inaudible)

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. BOYD:

They're going to manufacture their own windmills?

Right.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. BOYD:

Oh.

I see.

Okay.

Make your presentation now.

(Inaudible)

SENATOR RUSSELL:

Well, they own that thing, but they're buying electricity from

wind machines, aren't they?
MR. BOYD:

{Inaudible)

SENATOR RUSSELL:

Put you out of business.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

He doesn't care who ...

I see.
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Wouldn't it put you out of business?

MR. BOYD:

(Inaudible)

SENATOR RUSSELL:

Who owns all the windmills down by Palm Springs?

Are those

privately owned?
MR. BOYD:

(Inaudible)

SENATOR RUSSELL:

Privately owned?

MR. BOYD:

(Inaudible)

Yeah.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. BOYD:

Would you use that microphone so we can •.•

Oh, sure.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

(Inaudible)
You should have asked PG&E if they'd like to re-negotiate

their contract.
MR. BOYD:

(Inaudible)

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. BOYD:

Anyway -- okay.

(Inaudible)

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you very much.

Richard Miller, Member of the Board of Directors, National Association of Energy
Service Companies.

What is that?

MR. RICHARD J. MILLER:
Miller.

Senator, thank you.

I'll explain that.

I am Richard

I was a founder actually of Proven Alternatives which is a 125-person company

in energy-efficiency work, headquartered in San Francisco offices in the west and the
east.

And on behalf of NAESCO, the National Association of Energy Service Companies,

those are companies that are involved in all aspects of energy-efficiency service
industry, developing, constructing, owning, financing, and managing energy-efficiency
programs and demand-side management with utilities and for commercial and industrial
users.

We in effect are providing conservation or negawatts to the marketplace for

which utilites are purchasing.
Our members represent an aggregate of about $100 million a year now in investment,
and these projects are growing quite rapidly; and the National Energy Policy Act
obviously had a big incentive in efficiency.
discuss the implications that

That should help our business, and I will

it has on the State of California because there are
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many.
First and foremost is that it definitely is a jobs bill for our industry, for
energy efficiency.

We've grown our company from two people 14 months ago to 125

people, and we're growing rapidly.

And we found that, in addition to our company, the

experience that we've seen in the marketplace is about a third of the money we invest,
it goes right into direct labor costs.

So the $600 million that our small group of

companies has invested has generated about $200 million in direct-labor employment, and
the State of California will benefit handsomely from that because of its leadership
role for many years in promoting energy efficiency, building standards, clean air, and
all of the other things that are tied into the Act.
There are four or five major places where efficiency touches in the bill and its
impact on the State of California, the building standards I've mentioned.
utilities to do integrated resource planning.

That's a good idea.

It urges

That is their

least-cost plan, and they will find that demand-side management is their least-cost
resource.
The grants should be available to the State of California to encourage utilities to
assess industrial energy efficiency, and this will be helpful to those industries in
the state.

And the point that I want to make is that the reason that energy efficiency

has such advantages to both customer and utility is that companies such as ours
eliminate the risk of sub-optimal or deteriorating energy saving in that we get paid
only when we achieve results, that we provide a single source for these projects, in
terms of responsibility.

We design them comprehensively to get everything that's in

the facilities as opposed to cream skimming and possibly the simple procedures of only
lighting or only one or two measures as opposed to a very comprehensive design.

And

then we verify and measure exactly what we save, and this is a point that I want to, I
would like to emphasize.
efficiency programs.

Measurement and verificiation is very important to energy

The CPUC has undergone hearings to make sure that this is

maximized.
And the bill also dealt with electricity regulation and wheeling -- and you've
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heard talk about the wheeling.

What this implication in my mind is for California is

that utilities will become, have to become the least-cost providers of energy, period,
as state trends, regional trends, national energy options open up to industrial and
cornmerical customers.
share.

If they're not the least-cost provider, they'll lose that market

When they look at how to become the least-cost provider, the emphasis has been,

rightfully so, on energy efficiency, to get them there.

And so this retail wheeling

implication for the state is it should continue to move utilities in this area of
increasingly, of investing all they can in cost-effective energy efficiency.
The other area which is kind of interesting to me is the global climate change part
of the bill.

It's a sleeper provision as it's been described.

Again, it's going to

require that the utilities, in the effort to reduce C02, go for items that don't
produce C02 in generation and savings; and energy efficiency has emissions associated
with it.

So we have a big contributor to this, the C02 picture.

And there are

currently protocols being established at the EPA federal government level where
measurement and verification protocols again are being developed so that we can
accurately measure the reductions in this C02.

And this not only has implications for

clean air but it gives the United States government an edge in negotiating accords that
carne out of Rio because the world has to agree on how to reduce C02, and that's why
they put in this voluntary reporting mechanism for utilities.

So demand-side

management again fits very positively into that effort.
Lastly, the research and development are extremely important.

Natural gas

technologies within demand-side management programs include chiller systems,
micro-cogeneration-- Senator Rosenthal, which you've supported for years -- and
bio-fuel systems -- wind, renewables -- all very positively affected.

And this again

is going to create jobs and technology export for the State of California.
And lastly, I will touch on the Clinton tax point.
supported the BTU tax.

I'm going to-- we have

And when I saw the document that the President released, the

only thing that concerned me in that was that they suggested that they spend a billion
dollars to train a lot of energy managers and auditors and things in the federal
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government; and this has been a problem in the past.

The private sector is willing to

do this job and to bring those monies needed for the task to the federal government, to
the state government, for that matter.

So we're going to recommend that they not spend

additional money to do something that industry will do for them and do better.

So

that's the comment I have on that.
Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
All right.

Thank you very much.

David Goldstein, Senior Scientist for the Natural Resources Defense

Council.
MR. DAVID GOLDSTEIN:

The long version is my written statement; here is the short

version.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. GOLDSTEIN:

Good.

Again, I'm David Goldstein.

I'm the Co-Director of NRDC's energy

program.
The energy bill does a lot of things for the country that you've heard about and
things you haven't heard about that are automatic.
opportunity at this point in time.

We have a particularly unique

We've just listened to speakers from a wide variety

of points of views basically saying the same thing.

There's a higher degree of

consensus now in California than there's been at any time in the past years compared to
other states.
In particular, most parties support the role of utility incentive programs.
California has more of those than most states, we've got a lot of money back.

Since
I

estimated roughly a hundred million dollars a year at current levels of the program.
That can go up to expand these programs, and there's plenty of technical opportunity
and market opportunity to do this.
EPACT also calls for the upgrade of building standards on a regular basis.
Considerable new work is going to be needed.
ROSENTHAL:

EPACT also encourages

The plan doesn't call for retail wheeling, though.

MR. GOLDSTEIN:

So I think I'll sum up at this point by closing.

-70-

CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
Okay.

Thank you very much.

Robert Finkelstein.

MR. FINKELSTEIN:

Staff attorney for TURN.

Thank you, Senator Rosenthal, Senator Russell.

Before I start on my remarks about the Act, let me take one more shot at PG&E and
Diablo Canyon.
Senator Russell, I think it's important that you realize that we've gone back to
the commission to ask PG&E to re-negotiate the settlement under which they do the rates
with Diablo.

PG&E opposed that.

The commission has on its next agenda the question of

whether PG&E, if it was serious about lowering its rates, it would voluntarly
re-negotiate that contract, that it's turned out to be just the Golden Goose for the
utility.

And it was ..

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. FINKELSTEIN:

Well, I believe it's an issue that's been raised and discussed,

Senator Russell, and it was something ...
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

I want you to tell us what your feelings are about the

National Energy Act.
MR. FINKELSTEIN:

I'd be glad to tell you about the Act, Senator.

I've only got a few points that I want to focus on.

TURN agrees with most of the

parties that have testified here, that the Act presents great opportunities.

I think,

although at this point, it's to serve as something of a voice of caution because that's
needed as well.
For the electricity reform that's in Title VII of the Act, and especially the
development of EWGs, the goal is clearly to further the development of a competitive
market for electricity generation.

At the same time, I shuddered and I think you might

have heard the utilities celebrating, as you heard the Public Utilities Commission
representatives talked about approving sweetheart deals for EWGs.

I think they

mis-spoke and were talking about deals between the utility and its affiliates, or
self-dealing.
itself a break.

But sweetheart deals are exactly what we fear where the utility gives
And that's exactly the threat that's posed by these provisions that
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self-dealing may be able to take place.

That's something that we're going to look at

with a great amount of caution, and we're going to urge the commission and the
Legislature as well to be especially careful about that.
The utilities have plenty of opportunities in new-generation markets in other
states and in other countries to make more money through generation if they choose to
do so.

California has got enough independent power producers so that there shouldn't

be any problem having competitive sources for energy.

Therefore, I don't see any need

TURN doesn't see any need -- to allow the utilities to be doing this self-dealing
within their own service areas.

That's something we want to caution about.

As for retail wheeling, TURN joins with NRDC about the notion that you shouldn't
touch retail wheeling with a ten-foot pole.
consumers throughout the state.

It's an issue that's just bad news for

We've got a coalition of interest opposing it.

That

includes environmental groups, consumer groups like TURN; the unions, I believe, are
opposed to it; the commission is at best lukewarm about it.
utilties calling for it.

You didn't hear any of the

I think it's something that proposals need to be looked at

with an abundance of skepticism, if even that much attention.
Finally, as to the energy tax proposal, we see it as having positive and negative
impacts.

The negative impacts will be obviously California's energy rates are so much

higher than the national average already, insofar as the energy tax further boosts
those rates; it's going to have a detrimental effect.

But there is some positive

potential there in that it can further the goals of the EPACT, in that the EPACT seems
designed to promote renewable energy development.
not fall on renewable energy sources.

The tax, as I understand it, would

Therefore, it should boost use of those

resources as compared to other resources.
One way to make it better would be to have part of the burden of the tax fall on
the utilities.

If you allow the utilities to simply pass the tax through to

ratepayers, they're going to be indifferent to any sort of incentive that it provides.
If you put them on the line for some portion of the tax, they're going to be looking
for renewable resources because that'll be a lower-cost option to them.
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Finally, insofar as the tax imposes a burden on the residential class for
utilities, we would suggest that the significant burden of that tax fall on the second
tier in the inverted rate structure.

We believe that would promote energy efficiency

and energy conservation in that it would give further inducement to the customers to
lower their energy usage in order to avoid the high Tier II rates.

So that's down the

line, once the tax is in place and we see what it does to residential ratepayers.
Those are my comments.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you.

Thank you very much.

And finally, Mr. Pasquilini representing-- I'm sorry-- you have a question? -representing Art Carter, the State Association of Electrical Workers.
MR. JOSEPH PASQUILINI:

Mr. Chairman and Members, Joe Pasquilini with the State

Association of Electrical Workers and the Engineers and Scientists of California which
have the professional and technical employees at PG&E.
I guess I should also start with a little PG&E bashing over the 3,000 job loss.

I

mean that's a major concern for our unions, and we believe that it's indicative of some
of the things that are likely to happen and some of the concerns that we have which are
baiscally three

jobs, jobs, and jobs.

You carried legislation that helped you prevent the merger of San Diego Gas &
Electric and Southern Cal Edison because we were fearful that there would be several
thousand job losses.

We're looking at some 800,000 jobs in California that have left.

What's interesting about that is if you take a look at the aerospace industry has
lost something like 500,000 of those jobs -- if you discounted those and took those out
of the mix, there's basically been no net loss of jobs in California.

And what we

interpret that is, is that we basically traded high-tech, high-skill, high-paying jobs
for low-skill, low-paying jobs.

And that, when we look at the National Energy Policy

Act and what the implications are for California, we see that there is that potential
happening here.

The independent producers, power producers, establishing power plants,

maybe in Mexico, British Columbia, wherever, but California.

And even inside of

California, we've had a rather nasty experience with some of the co-generation power
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plants when in the construction phase that they would utilize perhaps out-of-state
contractors or even in-state contractors but not provide for community standards on
wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment.
That's one way of calling it, Senators, the prevailing wage.

We happen to believe

that it should be minimum standards to maintain a decent living standard in California.
Those are just necessary.

That's just a necessary cost of doing business, we believe,

that the contractors should assume when they do business in this state.

And Senator

Rosenthal once again had carried legislation dealing with that a couple of sessions
ago.
So we're fearful that this whole process, especially when you get to the retail
wheeling aspect of it, is going to wind up creating massive job losses within the
utility industry.

I don't know what we're going to be able to do about preventing the

job losses that are going to occur naturally, for example, from the downsizing that
PG&E is claiming that they're doing now.

But when we get into the phase of the power

plants being constructed perhaps out of state, the operations and maintenance of those
facilities being done without fair representation by labor representatives, the fact of
the matter is, is that there may be jobs coming into the state as a result of this.
And we firmly believe that energy efficiency, environmental quality and transportation
are going to be the keys to the success on a long-term economic recovery.
has to recognize that these jobs have to be higher paying jobs.

But it also

We can't lose

aerospace engineers and replace them with Wal Mart clerks and expect the economy in
California to ever pick up, or anywhere in this country, to ever pick up.

And that's

just the long and short of it.
We need purchasing power among working people, and that's what's been lost.

We

need decent-paying jobs in California, and we fear that that's what will be lost.

So I

think this committee and our communities need to be very conscientious about that, and
hopefully we can figure out a way to get through it all without having to make the
tradeoffs that are detrimental to our communities.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Thank you very much.
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Now if there's somebody that --we have an open microphone.
to make a comment for a minute, you can do it at this point.

If anybody would like

Anybody want to add

anything?
I want to thank you very much.

And Newt, thank you very much.

---oOo---
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OVERVIEW

for the February 23, 1993 Energy & Public
Utilities Committee hearing

NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT

OF 1992

FEBRUARY 1993

MAJOR THEMES IN EP ACT
•

Comprehensive approach: Very broad and complex
legislation, covering full spectrum of energy policy
concerns.

•

Comprehensive approach was critical to enactment of
the bill and helped it to survive many near-fatal
derailments.

•

Key issue in developing the bill was to get the right
balance-among issues, among options, and among the
many categories of players in the energy sector.

MAJOR THEMES, cont.
•

Recognition that Federal role in energy sector is limited.
A broad range of other public and private players have
important roles.

•

EP ACT relies where practical on market forces to
determine energy prices, quantities produced, and
technology and fuel choices.

•

Where regulation is clearly needed, EP ACT relies
extensively on the States for appropriate action, as in
regulation of transactions between electric utilities and
affiliate power producers, and the strengthening of
building codes.

MAJOR THEMES, cont.
EP ACT promotes new options-without foreclosing existing
ones. Some examples:
•

EP ACT supports a wide array of options for shifting
to alternative fuel vehicles.

•

Its provisions for reform of the Public Utility Holding
Company Act enable but do not require increased
competition in wholesale power markets.

•

It supports continued R&D for a wide range of new
energy technologies (efficiency, renewables, clean coal,
nuclear).

MAJOR THEMES, cont.
There is strong emphasis throughout EPACT on
environmental protection, as in
•

Measures for increased energy efficiency, alternative
fuel vehicles, renewables, and clean coal technologies.

•

Establishment of position of Director of Climate
Protection.

•

DOE's EIA is to inventory emissions of greenhouse
gases for 1987--1990 as baseline; DOE is to issue
guidelines for voluntary reporting of information on
emissions for subsequent years.

PRIORITIES IN EPACT IMPLEMENTATION
•

EPACT mandates that DOE take many actions, and
we will meet these requirements.

•

However, EPACT also sets a framework that allows
latitude for the Administration and DOE to evaluate
priorities and allocate resources where they are most
needed.

•

Congress will participate in establishment of these
priorities through the appropriations process.

•

Administration is making many budget decisions for
the FY 1994-1998 period, as opposed to 1994 only.

PRIORITIES, cont.
Programs slated for significant increases include:
•

Low income weatherization grants

•

Federal Energy Management Program (FEMP)

•

Joint Federal/private cooperative R&D, especially in
efficiency and renewables areas

•

Grants for programs for conversion to or purchase of
alternative fuel vehicles

•

R&D on new end-use applications for natural gas

PRIORITIES, cont.
Many of the planned spending cuts affect programs not
covered by EPACT, e.g., defense-related activities. They will
help to offset EPACT -related increases in expenditures. The
cuts include:
•
•
•
•
•

Major reductions in DOE's defense-related activities
(but not in environmental cleanup at defense plants)
Phaseout of advanced nuclear reactor programs (but
not R&D for light-water reactors)
Shutdown of one (of two) gaseous-diffusion plants for
uranium enrichment
Most other programs capped at FY 1993 level without
inflation adjustments
DOE to bear a proportionate share of governmentwide cut in Federal employees.

OTHER EP ACT PROVISIONS
IMPORTANT TO CALIFORNIA
COMPETITION IN WHOLESALE POWER MARKETS:
•

Provisions will help to reduce long-term electricity supply
costs and open new national and international markets to
California utilities and non-utility power producers.

•

States and utilities under their jurisdiction decide whether
new generation should be built under cost-of-service
regulation or obtained through a competitive process.

•

Sales of electricity by a wholesale producer to an
affiliated utility are banned unless explicitly approved by
regulators in affected States.

OTHER EP ACT PROVISIONS
IMPORTANT TO CALIFORNIA, cont.
ENHANCED OIL RECOVERY: A five-year program to
refine, develop and demonstrate technologies to increase
recoverability of domestic oil resources. Key elements of
program will include:
•

Improved reservoir characterization and demonstration of
recovery processes on high priority fields.

•

Transfer of proven recovery technologies to producers
and operators of wells threatened with abandonment.

•

Improved data for estimating environmental impacts and
meeting environmental requirements.

OTHER EP ACT PROVISIONS
IMPORT ANT TO CALIFORNIA, cont.
ALTERNATIVE MINIMUM TAX for independent oil and
gas producers:
•

EP ACT provides for greater deductibility of intangible
drilling costs and percentage depletion for independent
oil and gas producers and royalty owners.

•

DOE estimates that these changes will benefit
independent producers and royalty owners by $1.1
billion over five years.

EPACT GRANTS TO STATES
Grants to States are authorized for:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Energy-efficient lighting and building centers
Consideration and implementation of utility ratemaking
standards related to integrated resource planning (IRP)
Industrial energy efficiency programs
Energy efficiency improvements in State and local
buildings
Development/implementation of plans to accelerate
introduction and use of alternative fuels and vehicles
Alternative fuel bus programs

SUMMARY OF THE NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT (NEPA)
Prepared by California Energy Commission Staff
for Chairman Imbrecht's presentation to
The Senate Committee on Energy and Public Utilities
February 23, 1993

I. Background
o Most important and far reaching federal energy legislation since
the 1978 passage of PURPA.
o

Establishes

electricity,

many

Signed October 24, 1992.

progressive

conservation,

national

alternative

energy
fuels

initiatives

and

in

technologies

clearly modeled after programs the CEC has pioneered over the last
15 years.
o Many program elements if ultimately funded can inject a welcome
dose

of

maintain

federal
its

support

to California's

position . as

the

continuing efforts to

international

leader

in

energy

development, conservation and advanced technologies.
o At nearly 400 pages and 30 separate titles, the act is too large
for

a

detailed discussion

in

this

brief

presentation.

These

comments will touch upon the main thrusts of the legislation, the
opportunities it provides for California to advance its current
programs, and the challenges it may present to the current energy
regulatory structure.
o The act can be largely summarized as consisting of three primary
thrusts. It:
- Provides a major dose of competition to the electric power
industry by increasing the number of players in and their
access to the electricity resource game:
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-Reduces the nation's dependence on foreign oil while meeting
its energy needs at the lowest societal cost.
-Invests in technology research to stimulate economic growth,
develop international markets,

reduce environmental impacts

and maintain U.S. leadership in energy supply and efficiency
technologies.
o

Some

initiatives

serve

several

thrusts.

For

the

sake

of

simplicity this discussion does not highlight overlaps.
o The act also entails a number of uncertainties:
- Administrative implementation of provisions by FERC and DOE
will take several years.

An increased federal role may lead

to state/federal frictions unless there is an explicit effort
to develop partnership/cooperative approaches.
- Appropriations are needed to implement authorized programs.
The

new

administration

environment oriented

will

be

investment.

receptive

to

energy

See 2/19/93 Wall

and

Street

Journal article: "Big Science Projects Set for Cutbacks."
Some

provisions will

be

challenged

in

court.

Utility

Commissions will be sensitive to any possible encroachment by
FERC.

ll. Provides a major dose of competition to the electric power industry by
increasing the number of players in and their access to the electricity
resource game:
o Loosens restrictions on independent power generators previously
imposed by the Public Utility Holding Company Act (POHCA)
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-creates a new class of wholesale-only electric generators,
called Exempt Wholesale generators

(EWGs),

(technology, size, and fuel) limitations.
subject to state and federal
Power Act.

free of QF-type

EWGs are utilities

regulation under the Federal

(VII, 711-713)

-Utilities can fully own EWGs,

fully or partially spin off

utility generation into EWGs, buy power (with PUC approval)
from their own EWGs.

Utilities are not obligated to purchase

EWG power. Since EWGs can sell others' power they can also
become brokers. This part of the act effectively removes the
of
utilities'
integration
justification
vertical
for
generation.
-comment: This provision will also promote competition between

utilities.
For example, municipal utili ties as EWGs have
certain financial advantages over IOUs such as access to lowcost, tax-exempt financing and a comparatively light state
regulatory burden. Local revenue needs and the municipals'
enhanced ability to bypass IOUs for power may help them
extract financial concessions from neighboring IOUs. Charter
cities with the ability to form electric utilities may opt to
become EWGs to get a better deal. There is also concern that
municipal EWGs may attempt to capture some IOUs' wholesale
markets. These concerns may inspire pressures to extend state
regulation to limit municipal activities in this area.
o Enhances transmission system access for wholesale electricity
market participants, e.q., utilities, EWGs, federal power marketing
authorities and Qfs.

(VII, 721, 722)

-FERC now has expanded authority to order wholesale power
wheelinq and obligate transmission owners to make a good faith
effort

to

expand

facilities

3

if

needed

to

meet

wheeling

requests;

-Comment:.

State

energy

regulators

will

retain

the

responsibility to independently plan for and site uneeded"
transmission

expansion

transmission

and

planning.

help
With

coordinate
increased

regional
regional

interdependence, state energy agencies need to understand how
California's electricity system interacts with systems within
the region and how generation and transmission additions made
in other areas affect California. This will amplify current
transmission and generation modeling and information requirements.
-Decisions by wholesale buyers and sellers to enter wheeling
agreements will be governed primarily by the
price FERC will set.

transmission

The complexity of setting economically

accurate transmission pricing may result in excess inter- and
intra-state transmission capacity;
-FERC rule-makings on Regional Transmission Groups (RTGs) will
influence the character of state regulatory action; RTGs may
be needed for FERC to avoid being overwhelmed by transmission
access requests.
-FERC will

be

the

ultimate

arbiter on

unreasonably

whether requested

transmission

access

impairs

local

utility

reliability.

The rules FERC adopts to govern transmission

pricing and its power to reallocate existing transmission
capacity when facilities cannot be expanded gives FERC levers
to influence states to expand transmission capacity.
-FERC's role has been indirectly extended into generation
markets because of authority to approve and modify wholesale
power contracts between EWGs and IOUs. FERC preference for
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market-based rates could conflict with state preferences for
renewables.
-Bottom line on new competitive framework: An increased FERC
role could lead to statejfederal frictions unless there is an
effort to develop partnership/cooperative approaches. There
is much latitude for state energy regulation to establish the
terms and conditions under which NEPA initiatives play out.
California needs to ensure its citizens receive the benefits
of competition.

o subsidizes renewable electric energy producers through tax
credits and incentive payments, therefore making them more costcompetitive.
-Provides a 1. 5 cent/Kwh renewable energy production incentive
for solar, wind, biomass and geothermal projects. (XII, 1212)
-Allows a ten year tax credit of up to 1.5 cents/KWh (reduced
for grants, tax-exempt bonds, subsidized energy financing and
other credits) for wind and closed-loop biomass (i.e., biomass
planted exclusively for energy production) placed in service
after 1993 and before 1999. (XIX, 1914)
-permanently extends the 10 percent energy investment credit
for solar and geothermal property. (XIX, 1916)
o Mandates inteqrated resource planninq for electric utilities
includinq WAPA customers. (I, 111, 114);
-Allows rates that make utility conservation, efficiency and
DSM, and generation efficiency, transmission efficiency and
distribution efficiency investmehts at least as profitable as
supply-side investments.
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-Requires regular plan filings before
authority."

"a state regulatory

Plans must contain a requirement that the plan be

implemented.
Comment: Here is an area where NEPA reflects what has been

going on in California for years.

We were an early adopter of

least cost planning and allowing utilities to make a profit on
energy efficiency.
-Raises issue of who in state canjwill mandate integrated
resource planning filings for municipal utilities.
o Allows states to experiment with retail wheeling
-Retains language that doesn't challenge state's authority to
order

retail

proposal

wheeling.

in the U.s.

(VII,

731)

The

first

legislative

to mandate retail wheeling

is

being

drafted for introduction in New Mexico in the next 60 days.
Comment:

Since EWGs are forbidden to directly sell . to end

users, only some Qfs and large industrial customers might push

for this privilege citing industrial
regional development objectives;

competitiveness

and

-other interests would likely oppose a California experiment:
consumer

interests

because

of

potential

rate

impacts,

environmentalists and some Qfs because it might weaken the
current state resource planning process, the PUC because it
might allow FERC to set retail transmission prices.
o streamlines construction of commercial nuclear power plants by
easing federal plant licensing hurdles
- Allows a utility to obtain a single license for both the
construction and operation of a nuclear powerplant, following
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a public hearing at the beginning of the process.

(XXVIII,

2801)

ill. Reduces the nation's dependence on foreign oil while meeting the its

energy needs at the lowest societal cost.
o Energy efficiency
Building standards:
-Funding to States to improve and implement building energy
codes.

(I,

101,

e) .comment:

Possible new,

major source of

funding for CEC Building Standards Program.
-New

SECP

programs

to

train

building

industry,

develop

retrofit standards and support feasibility studies.

(I, 141,

Possible new, major source of funding for CEC
Building standards Training program.
Possible funding to
support state or Local retrofit standards and feasibility
studies.
b) .comment:

-Financial assistance for a voluntary national window rating
program.

(I,

121) .comment: Possible additional

funding for

National Fenestration Rating council (NFRC) who will probably
be designated responsible for certifying thermal conductivity
of windows sold in California.
-If HUD does not issue final regulations by Oct. 24, 1993, we
may establish standards for manufactured housing.
comment:

standards
Present

Possible
for
energy

(but

not

manufactured

likely)
housing

standards . for

sold

in

manufactured

significantly below other buildings.
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opportunity

(I,

to

104)

set

California.
housing

are

October 24, 1994 we must certify that our building
standards meet or exceed CABO and ASHRAE. our determination
must be in writing and made after public notice and hearing.
(I, 101} Comment: Should be a ministerial activity.
-By

Comment:

With

these

provisions,

the Federal

recognizing what California has known

for

Government is
over 15

years.

Significant cost effective energy savings are possible though
the use of building standards.

The NEA also acknowledges the

importance of training the building industry.

The CEC has

emphasized training as the major program to implement its
standards.
Through its support of NFRC, the NEA is following California's
lead in ensuring that customers can be assured their windows
will deliver the energy savings promised.

Industrial programs:
-Grants to States to promote industrial enerqy efficiency
technologies, provide training and assist utility industrial
programs.

(I,

132)Comment:

Possible

new,

major

source

of

funding to create an industrial energy efficiency program at
the State level.

-Grants

to

industry

associations

for

energy

efficiency

programs including workshops, training seminars, handbooks,
newsletters, data bases etc.

(Maximum grant is $250,000 with

minimum 25% match required).

(I, 131, a)

-DOE

will

develop:

industrial audits.

(§

voluntary guidelines

Award

training

for

133} ;an Award Program for utilities with

industrial energy efficiency programs.
efficiency

and

Program

for

8

(§

industrial

132);

an energy

associations

and

companies.

(I, 131, b)

-By October 24, 1993, DOE will report on the advisability of
mandating industrial energy efficiency reporting requirements
and voluntary improvement targets.

(I, 131, c)

comment: The Feds are ahead of California here.

use of audits,

However, the

training and award programs as mechanisms to

achieve energy efficiency reflects

the

techniques we have

successfully used in the building sector.
State and local government:
-Up to $1,000,000 to a State in a revolving fund for energy
efficiency

improvements

in

state

and

Local

government

buildings. (I, 141, a) Comment: Possible source of funding for

CEC Local Government Program.
Energy efficient rating systems/mortgages;
-HUD must establish a s-state pilot program to promote energy
efficient

mortgages,

including

federally-insured

loans

in

existing residences, and a training program. (I, 105) comment:

Possible

opportunity

for

California

to

participate

in

an

energy efficient mortgage program to match California's home
energy rating program which is under development.
-Technical assistance to States and local organizations to
develop voluntary guidelines for and adopt and use residential
energy efficiency rating systems.

(I, 102) comment: Possible

funding for California's home energy rating program.
Appliance standards:
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-The Act establishes appliance efficiency standards for the
following:

*
*
*

(I, 122, 123, 124)

·commercial and industrial equipment;
Lamps and plumbing products; and,
High-intensity

discharge

lamps,

distribution

transformers and small electric motors.
Comment: Generally, these standards cover a wider variety and

size range of products than the existing California Appliance
Standards.

There remain a few products which the CEC covers

but DOE does not.
The stringency of the NEA standards is
virtually the same as California standards.
In theory, we
could

file

a

waiver

of

preemption

from

some

of

the

new

standards, however it is quite unlikely we would do so.
-Development of recommendations to the States for establishing
state and local incentive programs to encourage accelerated
replacement of plumbing fixtures.
-Development
voluntary

of

financial

national

testing

equipment and luminaires.
-By April

24,

and

1994

(I, 123, a)

technical

program

for

assistance
commercial

for

a

office

(I, 125)

DOE will

report

on the potential

for

appliances with efficiencies substantially beyond existing
standards.

(I, 127)

-By April 24, 1994, DOE will report on the advantages of early
replacement of utility distribution transformers. {I, 124, c)
-comment:

With

this

law,

the

process

of

codifying

the

California Appliance Standards into Federal law is virtually
complete.

California led the nation in the promulgation of

appliance standards.

Manufacturers have lowered the cost of

10

highly efficient products

for all states as the result of

needing to meet California's standards.

The CEC joined with

the manufacturers in the 1980's in encouraging the Federal
government to adopt appliance standards.

Integrated resource planning for natural gas utilities:
-Requires integrated resource planning by gas utilities to
encourages
investment
in gas
conservation and
energy
efficiency.
(I, 115)
Comment: The Commission's Fuels Report identifies long term
natural gas demand, supply, and prices and provides for the
periodic forecasts, public comment, etc., as specified in this
section.

However, the process has not yet considered gas DSM

in an integrated resource planning framework.

The next Fuels

Report will treat DSM and integrated resource development more
systematically.

*

Some issues include:

What does integrated resource planning mean for gas?

DSM savings be compared with other supply options

Will
(e.g.,

pipeline expansion) to meet any new demand?

*

How is consistency between DSM forecasts and natural gas

forecasts assured?

*

To what degree can the Federal

government require state

authorities to implement certain requirements?

*

How will

state energy agencies interact on natural

planning?

Other efficiency initiatives:
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gas

-Development of the least cost energy strategy in the National
Energy Policy Plan will include a strategy to increase the
efficiency of total energy use by 30 percent. (XVI, 1602)
Possible major impact
contained in the Plan.

depending

on

the

recommendations

-Grants to nonprofit institutions, or to consortiums, state
and local governments, etc., to establish or enhance regional
building energy efficiency centers. ($10 million for each of
fy 94, 95, and 96; requires matching funds) (I, 103)
also
creates an Advisory Task Force on the centers. (I, 103)
comment: Possible source of funding to establish a building
energy efficiency center.
o Alternative Fuels Vehicles Purchases
Fleet purchases:
-Mandates

phased-in

fleet

purchases

of

alternative

fuels

vehicles by federal (starting 1993) and state (starting 1996}
governments,

alternative fuel providers,

including gas and

electric utilities (starting 1996), and municipal and private
fleets {starting 1999). (V, 501)
Broadens definition of
alternative fuels to include methanol, ethanol, natural gas,
LPG, hydrogen, coal-derived liquid fuels, fuels derived from
biological materials, and electricity.
Earlier statutes
covered only alcohol
vehicles

include

requirements

to

fuels

dual
be

and natural gas.

fueled

met

vehicles.

through

conversion

Alternative
Allows
of

fleet

existing

vehicles.
Creates a vehicle conversion technician training
and certification program. Authorizes DOE to establish a fleet
credit trading system where credits can be bought, sold or
saved and used to meet fleet requirements. (III, 301, 302; IV,
402, 403, 407, 412; V, 508)
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comment: Assuming a state fleet size of 57,000 and an annual
turnover rate of 20 percent, the state of California's annual
purchase requirements will be: 1996-1140 vehicles; 1997-1,710
vehicles; 1998-2,850 vehicles; 1999-5,700 vehicles; 2000 and
thereafter-8,550 vehicles. Total by 2002 - 37,050.
-The federal

fleet is 375,000 vehicles nationwide with some

47,000 in California.

Nationwide federal requirements call

for purchase of some 22,500 vehicles between 1993 and 1995. If
15 percent were in California that would be 3,375. Thereafter,
federal purchases in California would be approximately: 19962,350 vehicles; 1997-3,102 vehicles; 1998-4,700 vehicles; 1999
and thereafter-7050 vehicles. Total by 2002 - 41,727.
-By comparison, the ARB's ZEV requirements call for the sale
of approximately 30,000 ZEVs, presumably Evs, in 1998, 60,000
in 1999, 90,000 in 2000,

120,000 in 2001,

150,000 in 2002.

Total by 2002 - 450,000.
The federal fleet requirement requires coordination with state
programs for refueling stations and procurement of vehicles.
California's

already

started

infrastructure

network

for

methanol and natural gas should bring a significant percentage
of these

federal

purchases

to

the state and increase

the

volume of alternative fuels sold at retail gasoline stations.
The

largest

volume

station

in

the

methanol

network

is

Sacramento's ARCO station which moves about 6,000 gallons of
M85 a month.

The average M85 station dispenses about 1,500

gallons per month.
gallons a month!

Gasoline sales are normally over 200,000

Low sales volume is a deterrent to expanding

the methanol network.

If half the required federal purchases

for alternative fuel vehicles are methanol FFVs and these are
placed in California,

the

fuel

double.
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volume sold in 1994

would

Placing federal

vehicles in California would also help to

trigger the clean fuel availability requirement specified in
the ARBs

~EV

California.

regulations.

currently, 2,000 FFVs operate in

Given the 6,500 FFVs

(assuming all makes and

models are certified at Transitional

Low Emission Vehicle

levels) in the California program to be placed this year, the
state will have nearly 10,000 vehicles, halfway to triggering
the fuel availability requirement.

With the federal purchases

and placement in California, the trigger could occur in 1995

or 1996.

Without the federal purchases, the trigger may not

occur until the late 1990s.
Guaranteed federal purchases will provide incentives to OEMs

to continue producing methanol

and natural

gas

vehicles.

Beyond 1993, only Chrysler has announced a 1994 model year FFV
and natural gas vehicle.

None of the other OEMs have declared

their intention to continue vehicle production.
Every effort should be made to persuade GSA to place as many
of these vehicles as possible in California.
will

cooperate

in

the

placement

of

fueling

The Commission
stations

for

federal needs through its methanol fueling station cooperative
agreements with the major oil companies.

Tax and other incentives:
-Provides itemized tax deductions for individuals' purchases
of clean-fuel vehicles and certain refueling properties. Clean
fuel vehicles refer to vehicles which use natural gas, LNG,
hydrogen, electricity, or 80 percent alcohol. Phased out from
2002 to 2004. (XIX, 1913)
-Allows a tax credit equal to 10 percent of the cost of a
qualified electric vehicle up to $4000. Phased out after 2001.
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The Commission currently administers a
state tax credit for certified LEVs (SB 2600) which sunsets in
1994. In addition, efforts are underway to consider providing
a sales tax exemption to purchasers of electric vehicles
(XIX, 1930)

comment:

during the 1994-2000 time period.
EV commercialization and
penetration into the transportation market will be strongly
influenced by the amount of incentives provided by many
government and private entities. The high incremental cost of
Evs may be a major obstacle to the introduction of Evs.
Efforts need to be undertaken by both federal and state
governments and private organizations in order to reduce the
high cost of Evs in a cost shared manner.
-Appropriates $10 million to partially fund state and local
incentive programs and plans to encourage the introduction of
alternative fueled vehicles.
share.

(IV, 409)

States have a 20 percent cost

DOE will issue guidelines for state plans

which must promote progress towards introducing "substantial"
numbers of alternative fuel vehicles in the states by 2000.
A state with a plan is eligible to request federal assistance
and

grants

to

implement

the

plan,

parts

of

the

plan

or

purchase alternative fuel vehicles.
The plan should include a description of requirements and cost
of plan implementation.
State

will

coordinate

Eligible plans must describe how the
with

federal

entities to implement the plan.

and

local

government

States must also include an

analysis of incentives such as exemptions from the state sales
tax, inclusion of alternative fuel vehicles in state fleets,
preferred parking, public education, sales of the alternative
fuels

with

the

vehicles,

availability

of

the

alternative

fuels, and utility /ratepayer support of the incremental costs.
A state must also evaluate whether accomplishing any of the
goals

listed would

require
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an

amendment

to

state

law or

regulation, and evaluate the effects of such plans on programs
authorized by Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act
(ISTEA) of 1991 and amendments made by that Act.
Comment: Because these funds are earmarked for incentives, the
California has an excellent opportunity to continue its

marketing activity with alternative fuel vehicles.
The
Commission already administers a state income tax credit and
a state sales tax exemption for certified LEVs. The income
tax credit is limited to $750,000 per year, and the state
sales tax has no aggregate cap.
Assuming $750,000 is the
state's contribution for the federal incentives grants, the
state could request $3.75 million per year.
The Legislature, when it adopted SB 1211, indicated it did not
favor more allocations for FFV incentives. However, federal
grants for vehicle purchase incentives could allow for
continuation of purchase incentives for these vehicles. These
grants would also allow the state to expand incentives to
other alternative fuels such as natural gas, where utility
support has
been
criticized.
However,
the
State's
contribution may present problems in this budget cycle which
could pose a significant barrier to receiving the federal
grants.
- Authorizes a study to determine if conventional taxation and
ratemakinq

procedures

disincentives

for

result

renewable

in

economic

technologies

barriers

or

compared

to

CEC
staff initiated a nearly identical project a year ago. The
principal investigator was recently invited to Washington,
D.c.
to discuss results of the work to date.
DOE has
tentatively committed funding for the completion of this work
through 1993.
conventional systems.

(Title XII, Sec. 1205). Comment:
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-Provides a low interest loan program for small businesses
acquiring.alternative fuel vehicles.

(IV, 414)

Infrastructure development:
-Authorizes

$40

infrastructure

millionfyear

development

and

for
support

electric
systems

vehicle
addressing

ability to service vehicle, utility rates and cost recovery
for infrastructure development, health and safety procedures
relating to battery charging, watering and emissions. Does not
require cost sharing.

Solicitations for proposals will

be

Since California
will require Evs in 1998,
the development of an EV
infrastructure will be critical to the success of the zero
requested in 1993-94.

(VI,

621)

emission vehicle mandates.

Comment:

Although this section does not

require cost sharing from the state, the state could still
play an important role in establishing infrastructure
demonstrations. The utilities, OEMs, and others have .made an
initial
effort
at
standardization,
but
significant
demonstrations are required, particularly with the newer
designs for inductive recharging and quick charging.
The
Commission has monitored developments for these new systems
and

would

like

to

demonstration programs.

demonstrate

them

in

real

service

The Commission may submit a proposal

for these funds to supplement existing and future Commission
EV demonstration programs when solicitations are requested in
1993-94.
Fleet infrastructure and demand analysis:
-DOE may lower and delay start of fleet requirements based
upon fuel and OEM vehicle availability.
its

infrastructure evaluation,
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(V, 504) As part of

requires DOE to provide an

annual

projection

of

the

number,

type

and

geographic

distribution of alternatively fueled vehicles likely to be in
use along-with fuel specific demand projections. (V, 503)

To

support this analysis DOE is required to work with state and
local authorities to establish a data collection program on
vehicle use alone and in combination with other forms

of

Comment: The Commission must participate in the DOE
analysis because this section will have a large impact on the
transit.

success of the state's alternative fuel vehicle programs.
This section could be used to weaken the fleet requirements.
A negative report could reduce the potential demand for
alternative fuel vehicles by concluding that alternative fuels
will not meet the requirements of the business or that OEMs
will not build the vehicles. Oil companies and OEMs tend to
be less optimistic about future alternative fuel vehicles,
particularly for market share. This could translate into a
slower, less aggressive pace for introducing alternative fuel
vehicles.
-Requires annual collection and publication of electricity
production data from renewable technologies (Title I, Subtitle

The Commission collects and publishes
data for wind energy systems in California and contemplates
expanding this to other renewable techr"logies. There could be
mutually beneficial interaction between our agencies.
c, Sec. 171). comment:

-Requires the Federal Trade commission to establish uniform
labeling

requirements

for

alternative fuel vehicles.

all

alternative

fuels

and

This should include information on

costs and benefits to enable consumer choices and comparisons.
The Federal Trade Commission will contact state agencies among

The
Commission currently performs cost analyses for alternative
fuel, light-duty vehicles under the AB 234 requirements,
others,

in

developing

this
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rule.

(IV,406)

Comment:

administers

incentive

programs

(SB

1006

and

SB

2600)

by

determining the incremental cost for certified LEVs and

is

evaluating the costs and benefits of alternative fuel vehicles
that could penetrate the transportation market under SB 1214.
The commission will use the expertise it has developed in
these

activities

to

provide

assistance

to

the

Federal

government in developing uniform labeling requirements.
o Alternative Fuels Research, Development & Demonstration
-Authorizes FERC to grant advance recovery of expenses by gas
and

electric

utilities

for

alternative

fuels

RD

and

D

activities by the Gas Research Institute and the Electric
Power Research Institute.

(IV, 408)

-Authorizes $50 million for electric vehicle demonstrations,
conducted in consultation with site operators, managers and
electric utilities, beginning in 1994.

Requires 50 percent

non-federal cost share. Requires report to Congress within 18
months on methods for encouraging purchase and use of electric
vehicles including estimates of costs. (VI, 611-6616) Comment:

The CEC may facilitate pursuing federal funding for California
organizations.

A selection procedure in which state agencies

collectively evaluate applications anrf award state funding
contingent
employed.

upon

being

awarded

federal

funding

could

This was the process used in awarding monies to the

California advanced transportation Consortia, CALSTART.
the

be

vehicle demonstration

program outlined in

the Act

For
to

succeed, there must be 500 to 1,000 Evs available for purchase
( 10

demonstrations

with

50

to

1, 000

vehicles

each) .

No

proposal would receive state funding unless DOE grants funds
under this section.
for

The Commission has requested $1 million

EV demonstrations

which

federal cost share.
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should qualify

for

extensive

-Authorizes USDOT to fund alternative fuel transit and school
bus demonstrations with a local 20 percent cost-share.(IV,

The Commission's current school bus program
pays for the entire cost of the school bus. Grants provided
under this section will allow for a greater number of school
410)

Comment:

districts and buses to
participate since the normal
incremental cost can be as much as double that of a diesel
school bus.
Unfortunately, further allocations to the Katz
Safe School Bus Program appear limited.
-Establishes an advanced automotive fuel economy program for
piston engines in conventional vehicles and hybrid electric
autos.

RFPs to participate

in the program will be

within one year of signing.

issued

(XX, 2022)

o Transportation Planning
-Authorizes a general transportation program to reduce oil and
gas

demand

and

encourage

fuel

substitution.

Additional

funding to encourage Evs is provided with an initial budget of
$60 million in 1993 increasingly annually to $100 million by
1998.

The transportation program is required to be completed

within 180 days of signing.

Solicitation of program proposals

will begin with one year of signing.

(XX,

B)

Comment:The

are very similar to the
Commission's Transportation Energy Technology Advancement
Program (TETAP) and could provide additional funding or
cooperative activities between the DOE and the CEC.
measures

identified

-Exempts

from

in

the

Act

taxation and raises

the

exemption

limit on

employer provided transportation subsidies including transit
passes, van pools and van pool parking.

(XIX, 1911)

- Provides a comprehensive look at the current and potential
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future state of telecommuting.
signing.

Report due 180 days after

(XX, 2028)

o strategic Petroleum Reserve
-The criteria for

drawdown of the reserve

is expanded to

include a Presidential determination that the emergency will
cause a severe increase in the price of petroleum products and
that this increase is likely to cause a "major adverse impact
on the national economy." (XIV, 1401)
- The Strategic Petroleum Reserve shall be enlarged from 750
million

to

Section

one

1403

billion
provides

barrels
the

"as

funding

rapidly
for

as

SPR

possible."
activities.

Comment: The Strategic Petroleum Reserve helps California by

mitigating price increases during an energy emergency.

Since

the government owned and controlled stockpiles are located in
the Gulf Coast area, the supplies are not readily accessible
to California and the rest of PADD V.

However, as seen during

the Persian Gulf crisis, the sale of oil from the SPR can calm
supply

shortage

fears.

Previously

the

law

required

the

existence of an actual supply shortage for the President to
direct

sales

from

the

SPR.

The

increased SPR

size is

beneficial to California because of the added potential to
reduce the economic impacts from energy emergencies within the
state.
Since one of the mandates of the Energy Commission is the
ongoing assessment of energy security and vulnerability, the
use of the SPR for mitigation of price spikes is an important
function.

This price trigger inclusion for reserve drawdown

also validates our conclusion that past "energy emergencies"
have caused price increases even when there has been no actual
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shortage of supplies.
The Commission needs to continue to
pursue various options to mitigate economic impacts, including
an appropriate public information process to prevent panic
buying and hoarding.

One such option currently being explored by the commission is
the feasibility study of a petroleum product reserve located
in California. In its costjbenefit analysis, the Commission
presumed that such a reserve, if established, could be
drawndown in response to severe price increases, following the
precedent set by the federal government. The final results of
this study should be available by July 1993, and will be
subsequently included in a report to the Legislature.
o Encourages domestic oil & gas production
-Reduces the tax liability of independent oil and gas
producers, making more cash available to be plowed back into
drilling. (XIX, 1915)
Comment:
California should benefit
because independents are active in the state.
Nearly all
North State gas drilling is done by independents.
-Invest $57 million in 1993 and $70 million in 1994 to improve
enhanced oil recovery techniques. Program plan is due within
180 days of signing. (XX, A)
-Invest $30 million in 1993 and $45 million in 1994 to enhance
the nation's natural gas supply. (XX, 2013) comment: Support
may be initially focused on co-firing coal and natural gas in
utility and large industrial boilers. California has boilers
in the category defined by the act. The Commission has also
done extensive work in coal gasification (Coolwater), and MSW
gasification. It is possible that the Commission andjor its
constituents could put together a project(s) for funding under
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this program.

The act calls for solicitation of proposals

within 1 year of signing.

IV. Invests in technology research to stimulate economic growth, develop
international markets, reduce environmental impacts and maintain U.S.
leadership in energy supply and efficiency technologies.
o Advanced Technology Research and Opportunity Technologies
-conduct a s-year program to provide cost-effective options
for

the

generation

of

electricity

sources (XII, B, 2113-2119} .

from

renewable

energy

Includes high-efficiency heat

engines (Sec 2112}; civilian nuclear waste (Sec. 2113}; fusion
energy- $300 million, (Sec. 2114}; fuel cells- $56 million,
(Sec. 2115); environmental restoration and waste management
(Sec. 2116}; high-temperature superconductivity (Sec. 2117};
EMF research -

$65 million,

(Sec.

2118};

and a

renewable

energy and ocean technology center (Sec.2119).
Comment: High efficiency heat engines include intercooled gas
turbines with steam injection or recuperation and gas turbines
utilizing reformed fuels or hydrogen.
Both are examples of advanced,
technologies.

(Title XXI, Sec. 2112).

aeroderi vati ve gas

turbine

Aeroderivative gas turbines and fuel cells are

CEC Opportunity Technologies and currently receive significant
staff time and financial resources.
The CEC has been instrumental

in advancing the chemically

recuperated gas turbine (CRGT) concept.

This is an advanced,

ultra-low emission aeroderivative that is intended to use a
reformed,

low-Btu,

published

an

hydrogen-rich

engineering

fuel.

assessment

staff

demonstrating

theoretical capability of the CRGT concept.
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recently
the

PG&E is leading a major demonstration program to design,
construct and demonstrate advanced,
aeroderivative gas
turbines in California by the year 2000.

The Commission has

already contributed $500,000 to this program known as the
Collaborative Advanced Gas TUrbine (CAGT)

project.

The CAGT

is being cotunded by California utilities, national research
organizations and international companies.
carried out in two phases.

The CAGT is being

During Phase 1 the CAGT steering

committee will select a design(s) from those submitted by the
three major aircraft engine manufacturers.

During Phase 2

this design(s) will be constructed and demonstrated.

Phase 1

is near fully funded and about halfway complete. Phase 2 will
be require several hundred million dollars, a sum beyond ~ .e
financial capabilities of the existing collaborative.
Likewise, the Commission has awarded three contracts through
the Energy Technologies Advancement Program (ETAP)

totaling

$1.65 million to develop and demonstrate two, advanced fuel
cell technologies.
In at least two of these projects
additional funding support may be needed to ensure the project
is successfully completed.
substantial

opportunity

California

utilities

The new DOE program offers a

to
to

the
move

Commission
important

as

well

as

Opportunity

Technologies into the marketplace.

- Authorizes $50 million in 1994 for a 50 percent cost
sharing, s-year proqram to further commercialization of
renewable enerqy and enerqy efficiency technoloqies. Includes
liquid fuels from cellulose biomass conversion, direct
combustion or gasification of biomass; utility scale and
remote photovoltaics; solar thermal including water heating;
wind energy; high and low temperature geothermal energy; fuel
cells
for
both
mobile
and
stationary
applications;
superconducting electricity technology; source reduction
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technology,

factory-made

cooling.

Proposals

business ..

(XII, 1202)

housing

must

include

and
at

advanced

least

one

district
for-profit

Most of technologies listed are CEC-identified
opportunity technologies and part of ongoing development
programs including: resource assessment and facilities
evaluation of the state's biomass potential, statewide
photovoltaic commercialization, and participation in PG&E's
Comment:

molten salt, solar central receiver power plant. This may be
an opportunity to form joint ventures possibly with utilities
to further leverage state monies.
-Establishes

an

electric vehicle and

associated

equipment

research and development program.

The comprehensive plan due

180

high

after

trains,

signing

light-weight

development,
cell

must

address
EV

batteries,

efficiency

electric

advanced

battery

hybrid power train development including fuel

hybrids,

fuel

cells

for

electric motor powering

and

photovoltaics in EV applications.

Program has a 50 percent

non-federal cost share provision,

reducible at Secretary's

discretion.

(XX, 2025)

-Authorizes

renewable hydrogen

enerqy program focusing

on

production, transportation storage and use in fuel cells and
electric vehicles.

RFP will be issued 180 days after signing.

(XX, 2026)
-Establishes

program

to

develop

a

biofuels

technologies

facility to expedite industry adoption of biofuels technology,
including biomass-based alcohol production with a subprogram
to advance vegetable animal fat diesel substitutes.

(XX, B)

- Authorizes $275 million in 1994 to conduct a 5-year program
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to develop cost-effective technologies to improve energy
efficiency and increase the use of renewable energy in the
buildings, industrial and utility sectors (XXI, A, 2101-2108).
The Act identifies:
natural gas and electric heating and
cooling ( 2102) ; pulp and paper ( 2103) ; advanced buildings
(2104); electric drives (2105); steel, aluminum and metal
research (2106) (authorizes $18,091,000 in each fiscal year
from 1994 through 1997); energy-intensive industries {2107);
and energy-efficient environmental programs (2108). Possible
source of funding for grants tor development of energy
efficiency technologies.
-Authorizes a s-year new and advanced natural gas utilization
technologies program including but not limited to stationary
source emissions control and efficiency improvements including
combustion systems, industrial processes, cogeneration, waste
fuels and natural gas storage. (XX, 2014)
o Technology export
-Authorizes $10 million in 1993 and 1994 for the Interagency
Working Group on Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency
, Exports to promote development of renewable technologies in
foreign countries; explore mechanisms to assist domestic firms
to export; provide training and assistance; provide financial
and technical assistance to non-profit institutions, the World
Bank and other institutions; provide financial incentives to
private sector efforts; and augment budgets for trade and
development programs (XII, 1207).
-Requires the Interagency Working Group to submit, within 18
months after enactment, a study on subsidies, incentives, tax
breaks and policies that foreign countries use to encourage
renewable technologies. (XII, 1:-'')8).
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-Directs the Secretary of Commerce, as part of the Interagency
Working

Group,

to

develop

a

comprehensive

data

base

on

technology needs of foreign countries, make the information
available to industry and agencies, and prepare a report and
transmit it to Congress (XII, 1209).
-Authorizes $6 million annually for

1994-1996 and directs

USAID to develop a program to train people from developing
countries in the operation and maintenance of renewable energy
and energy efficiency technologies.
-Authorizes

$500,000

annually

(XII, 1203).

for

1993-1995

for

the

establishment of two positions, one for the Pacific Rim and
one

for

the

Caribbean

Basin,

to

provide

domestic technologies to foreign countries.

information

on

(XII, 1210).

-Authorizes $100 million annually for 1993-1998 to encourage
sales and development of
foreign countries.
the

balance

of

u.s.

manufactured technologies to

The purpose of this program is to reduce
trade

deficit;

retain

and

create

u.s.

manufacturing; encourage export and develop markets for U.S.
renewable technologies; and provide financial assistance and
establish financial mechanisms for

u.s.

firms.

(XII,

1211).

Comment: The commission's Export Program currently provides

similar

analytic

capabilities

and

services

to

California

energy companies, and receives funds from and has entered into
cooperative agreements with federal agencies,
CORECT,

and

the

u.s.

Trade

and Development

such as AID,
Agency.

The

Commission is in a unique position to leverage additional
financial support for California energy companies and should
pursue additional funding and cooperative efforts with the
designated federal agencies.
o

Environmental Technology Transfer and Climate Change Research
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-Creates an environmental technology transfer program,
administered through USAID to ensure US participation in
energy-related projects in foreign countries and to help
reduce the US trade deficit (XVI, 1608).
The program will
assist

firms

in

obtaining

opportunities

to

transfer

technologies and to help identify potential energy projects in

This
program has a clear relation to the activities conducted by
the CEC Technology Export Program. We may be able to leverage
additional funds from DOE and AID in support of our existing
export activities.
host countries that reduce greenhouse gases. comment:

-Creates a new Director of Climate Protection within the DOE
(XVI, 1603).

comment: The Director's authorities are a still

undefined, but establishing this position within the DOE
indicates a shift in environmental policy emphasis away from
EPA. The new director will serve as the representative for
the DOE Secretary in interagency and multilateral policy
discussions on climate change with, for example, the Committee
on Earth Sciences, and will participate in planning activities
relevant to DOE programs. Given the policy orientation of the
new administration, it is likely that the scope of DOE
programs will be expanded to include a greater range of energy
efficiency and renewable energy progr.-:ns.
-Directs DOE to complete a feasibility report within two years
on the economic,
stabilizinq us

environmental,
qreenhouse

qas

and energy implications of
emissions

by

2005,

and

of

reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 20% from 1988 levels by

The 20% reduction from 1988 levels by 2005
is comparable to the existing German carbon dioxide reduction
goal, as well as the California emission reduction goal
proposed by Energy Commission staff.
2005 (XVI, 1601).
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-Two additional climate change policy reports: a report on a
least-cost energy strategy, to be submitted by the President
to Congress as part of the National Energy Plan (XVI, 1602),
and a comparative assessment of alternative policy mechanisms
for reducing greenhouse emissions.

(XVI, 1604).

- Requires guidelines to direct the voluntary collection and
reporting

of

greenhouse

gas

emission

sources,

including

guidelines for reporting information on the annual reduction
of emissions achieved through policy measures
Comment:

(XVI,

1605).

Federal guidelines will assist the State in any

future

analysis or recommendations regarding a

carbon

dioxide

reduction

goal.

Guidelines

California

may

include

language on opportunities for emission reduction credits for
voluntary greenhouse gas emission reductions. The creation of
emission credits is still speculative at this point, however.
-Establishes

a

national

greenhouse

period 1987-1990 based on EIA data.
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gas

inventory

(XVI, 1605)

for

the

Testimony
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Mike Scheible
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California Air Resources Board
Before the
California Senate Committee On Energy and Public Utilities
On The National Energy Policy Act of 1992
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Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. For the
record, my name is Mike Scheible. I am the Deputy Executive Officer for the
Air Resources Board. I am pleased to be able to respond to your request for
the Air Resources Board to testify on the implications of the National
Energy Policy Act of 1992 with respect to California's air pollution control
programs. I will also note new funding opportunities in programs related to
energy use and air quality from which California may benefit.
This legislation is very comprehensive. Therefore, I will not attempt
to cover every possible air-quality related aspect of the new law. Instead,
I will focus my remarks on alternative fuel vehicles, including electric
vehicles; measures to reduce use of single-occupant commute vehicles;
renewable energy; and energy efficiency. I believe there are numerous
opportunities for California to participate in new energy programs at the
federal level that will complement those we are pursuing. One of these
opportunities is in the area of electric vehicles.

ELECTRIC VEHICLES
As you know, the Air Resources Board's low-emission vehicle regulations
require that 2% of light duty motor vehicles produced for sale in California
in 1998 must be zero emission vehicles (ZEVs). The requirement increases
the percentage of ZEVs to 10% by the year 2003. Battery-powered electric
vehicles are the only currently viable means for fulfilling that requirement
in the near term. For the longer term, fuel cells which provide electricity
with practically no emissions are another promising power source for zero
emission vehicles. California's ZEV program will benefit substantially from
the provisions of the Energy Policy Act which authorize funding for research
and development and commercial demonstrations, and provide tax incentives
for electric vehicles and infrastructure.
The Act authorizes $485 million over the next six fiscal years for
electric vehicle and associated equipment research and development. The Act
permits cost sharing with industry in seven technology areas that are
critical for the evolution of cost-effective, reliable electric vehicles.
These include advanced batteries and fuel cells, light weight materials, and
power trains. This program will enable consortia of California companies,
such as CALSTART, to compete for these funds. This seed capital has several
direct benefits for California. First, it provides assistance to industry
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in solving some of the performance and cost problems associated with
electric vehicles. Second, it offers the promise of job creation in
California. And third, it will facilitate and hasten the development of
viable electric vehicles for the California market.
The Act authorizes up to $5 million per year for a ten year Electric
Vehicle Commercial Demonstration Program beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.
With a $10,000 per vehicle funding limit, this would result in at least 500
vehicles per year. The demonstrations will provide for needed performance
evaluations of both vehicles and charging infrastructure. Complementing the
vehicle demonstration program is an Electric Vehicle Infrastructure and
Support System Program that would provide up to $8 million per year for five
years. The infrastructure program is as important as the vehicle program in
that it will provide needed experience in vehicle charging and servicing.
The experiences gained during the next five years will pave the way for the
required production for sale of electric vehicles in California starting in
1998.
To complement the electric vehicle research, development, and
demonstration programs, the Act also provides tax incentives for both
vehicle purchases and recharging equipment. For vehicles purchased from
July 1993 through December 2001, the Act provides a 10% tax credit for each
vehicle purchased, with a $4,000 per vehicle limit. The credit is reduced
for vehicles purchased between 2002 and 2004, and is phased out completely
by 2005. This credit covers vehicles produced by after-market converters,
as well as original equipment manufacturers, and will complement other
incentives that might be provided by either the State or by the electric
utilities. Taken together, federal and state incentives could significantly
reduce the purchase price of the vehicle, which will help to overcome the
initially high cost of early electric vehicles offered for sale in
California. Finally, to stimulate investments by businesses and electric
utilities in recharging facilities, the Act provides a tax deduction of up
to $100,000 per location. This inducement will help to ensure that
businesses and utilities purchase and install the necessary infrastructure
to enable electric vehicles to be recharged at numerous locations.

AlTERNATIVE FUEl VEHICLES
The Act mandates fleet purchases of vehicles powered by clean,
alternative fuels, such as methanol, ethanol, compressed natural gas, and
hydrogen. When used with state-of-the art emission controls, these vehicles
create far less air pollution than the gasoline cars and trucks that they
replace. The Act mandates alternative fuel fleet vehicles for Federal
fleets, starting with 5,000 vehicles in the current year and rising to 75%
of new vehicles in 1999; for State fleets, starting at 10% in 1996 and
increasing to 751 in 2000; and for alternative fuel providers and electric
utilities, starting at 301 in 1996 and increasing to 901 in 1999.
There are several funding opportunities available for clean,
alternative fuel vehicles starting this year, including $30 million annually
for three years for purchases of alternative fuel buses in urban areas, with
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a 20% local match requirement, and a low-interest loan program for private
fleet conversions funded at $25 million annually for three years. These
provisions will help the state's clean air efforts in the near-term by
encouraging purchases by transit districts, school districts, and small
business fleet operators of alternative fuel vehicles that will produce much
lower emissions than the diesel fuel vehicles they would otherwise purchase.

TAX PROVISIONS TO PROMOTE TRANSIT AND RIDE SHARING
The Act has several provisions that will provide businesses and
individuals with new incentives to promote transit use and car pooling. The
Act permits an employer to provide a tax-free incentive of up to $60 per
month for mass transit or ride-sharing. This is an increase from the
present level of $21 per month, and permits the employer to deduct this
amount from gross income subject to taxation. The Act also caps the
deductibility of employer-provided free parking expenses at $155 per month.
This cap will discourage employer-provided parking in the central business
districts of the larger urban areas of the state, where monthly parking
expenses equal or exceed this amount. This provision of the Act signals a
shift in policy by modifying the existing tax structure that allows parking
subsidies to be exempt from taxation.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND RENEWABlE ENERGY
Increased energy efficiency and reliance on clean, renewable energy
resources, such as solar and wind energy, will help us to achieve our clean
air goals. Clean air benefits from these provisions because they result in
much less emissions than currently-available fossil fuel-fired power plants.
Reduced demand for energy through utility demand-side management programs
will further reduce the demand for electricity and natural gas, with
resulting decreases in emissions. Renewable energy resources, such as solar
and wind-electric systems, benefit clean air because there are no emissions
associated with electricity generated by these means.
To increase the efficiency of electricity produced from burning natural
gas, the Act provides funding for the development of high efficiency gas
turbine technology, capable of greater than 50% efficiency. The Act
provides more than $50 million starting in the current year for development
of fuel cells, which offer great promise for emissions reductions in the
production of electricity. For example, we are aware of efforts by
entrepreneurial companies to develop fuel cells small enough for vehicles
and for residential energy needs. To stimulate development of renewable
energy, the Act provides $50 million in 1994 for the demonstration of
various renewable energy technologies, including solar, wind, and biofuels.
Finally, the Act provides funding for new programs in advanced automotive
fuel economy, alternative fuel vehicle technology, and advanced diesel
engines to reduce emissions of oxides of nitrogen and particulates.
To stimulate certain clean, renewable energy technologies, the Act
provides a 1.5 cent per kilowatt-hour production incentive to private
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business for electricity produced from wind and closed-loop biomass, and a
similar incentive to municipal utilities for solar, wind, biomass, or
geothermal energy. These incentives will be available for a ten year period
for projects placed in service in 1994 or later, provided funding is
appropriated by Congress.
Finally, the Act requires the Department of Energy to produce several
reports during the next year analyzing strategies and policies for reducing
the use of fossil-fuel energy resources. We will review these reports to
determine the impacts on our air quality programs of incentive programs to
reduce emissions, emission trading programs, increased vehicle fuel economy
measures, and energy tax policies which promote the development of energy
efficient resources and technologies.
CONClUSION
In conclusion I would like to emphasize that energy and air quality are
closely linked. The many requirements and opportunities in this Act point
out the need for state and local agencies and private businesses to
cooperate closely in order to deal with the energy, air quality, economic,
and job-creation aspects of the Act. This cooperation will enable us to
more effectively take advantage of the funding opportunities that are
available. The ARB will be most active in the areas of the Act that deal
with electric vehicles, which form the heart of our ZEV program. This will
be a cooperative effort with the Energy Commission, the electric utilities,
and California's business community.

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES
COMMISSION

NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT OF 1992
TESTIMONY BEFORE THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON ENERGY
AND PUBLIC UTILffiES

February 23, 1993
Mary McKenzie, Legal Division
Paul Clanon, Commission Advisory and Compliance Division

EXEMPT WHOLESALE
GENERATORS
AFFILIATES AND CONVERSIONS
• What's happening now
- Utility power supply sources:
1. own plants
2. QFs -- qualifying facilities
3. other utilities/munis/federal & state projects
- CPUC moving toward all-source procurement, in
which demand- and supply-side are fairly compared
- CPUC relook at regulation, industry structure
1. Strategic Planning Division report
2. Full-panel hearings soon
• What the Act does
- New supply source-- EWGs
May be utility affiliate if CPUC finds
1. can effectively oversee transactions
2. sale will benefit ratepayers
3. won't violate state law
4. won't give EWG a competitive advantage
- May be a spun-off utility plant or hybrid facility if
CPUC finds

1. in public interest
2. doesn't violate state law
3. will benefit ratepayers
- Reliance on State PUCs to ensure affiliated transactions help consumers.
- FERC must certify EWGs
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EWGs -- cont'd
• Opportunities
- Creative new entrants into generation sector
- Tight ratepayer protections built-in
- Could help lower costs, ensure reliable, environmentally- sensitive supplies
- Challenge for CPUC is to allow utility affiliates to
compete as EWGs while protecting consumers from unfair dealings and cross-subsidies between exempt
wholesale generators and affiliated utilities.
- Our experience with QF affiliates highlights need for
oversight of transactions between EWGs and utilities.
- Can be accomplished by:
effective monitoring of affiliated transactions
competitive procurement processes
proceedings to review affiliated transactions
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY
• What's happening now
- Incentive-based utility demand-side management
programs adopted by CPUC in 1991
aim: treat efficiency as a resource
Integrating into resource planning
- pilot bidding program underway
- working toward fair comparison with supply-side
• What the Act does
- Integrated resource planning
- Federal grants may be available
• Opportunities
- Increased research and development
- Funding for states
- Tighter standards should bring environmental/cost
benefits
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LOW-EMISSION VEHICLES
e What's happening now
- utility fleet conversions
- public fueling stations (natural gas)
- working groups on infrastructure development
(electric)
- investigation into ratepayer funding of commercialization
• What the Act does
- Broad-ranging support for development and commercialization of alternative-fueled vehicles
- Specific fleet requirements for governments, others
• The CPUC's role
- Develop infrastructure needed
fueling stations
charging stations
safety standards
- Utility fleet conversions
- Ratepayer funding where appropriate
• Opportunities
- California leading the way
- Federal support useful across the board
funding
research
infrastructure
tax, other incentives
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TRANSMISSION
• What's happening now
- no clear regulatory authority to order transmission access
- transmission bottlenecks seen as impediment to
development of truly competitive generation sector
• What the Act does
- gives FERC authority to order wholesale wheeling
- explicitly preserves state authority over environmental
protection, and siting of upgrades ordered by FERC.
- all sellers can obtain nondiscriminatory access
- FERC must set rates that promote economic efficiency
in transmission and generation.
- native load customers won't subsidize third party
wheeling. Legitimate, verifiable and economic costs,
including lost opportunity costs, can be recovered in
transmission rates.
- FERC is prohibited from ordering retail wheeling but
otherwise valid state laws authorizing retail
wheeling are not affected.
- Potential for conflict between state public utility commissions and FERC.
- FERC has authority to require wholesale wheeling and
set rates for transmission services and for wholesale
power sales.
- States have authority over transmission siting for
investor-owned utilities, cost recovery and
reasonableness review of utility transactions.
- States and FERC must coordinate to ensure decisions
facilitating regional transmission occur.
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TRANSMISSION - CONT'D
- FERC has authority to order wholesale wheeling and
require building of upgrades.
- States have implicit veto over upgrade orders.
- Regional Transmission Groups
- Regional transmission groups have potential to
facilitate transmission information sharing and planning to benefit consumers as well as industry participants.
- CPUC opposed legislation which would have required
FERC to give substantial deference to actions and
decisions of Regional Transmission Groups even when
challenged by States on behalf of ratepayers.
- CPUC is also participating in FERC's inquiry into
what administrative action can be taken to facilitate
regional transmission groups.
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RENEWABLES
• What's happening now
- "set-asides" for renewable technologies
- renewables benefit from valuing environmental costs
and benefits in resource planning
• What the Act does
- tax credits for renewable technologies
- investment credits
- tax-exempt financing for environmental enhancements
• Opportunities
- will aid ongoing efforts to encourage resource diversity
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MAJOR ISSUES AFFECTING CPUC
• Affiliate Transactions I Power Plant Conversions
- EWGs may sell to affiliated utilities IF CPUC finds:
1. CPUC has authority, resources to oversee
2. sale will benefit ratepayers
3. won't violate state law
4. won't give EWG a competitive advantage
- Existing utility plants may convert to EWGs IF:

1. conversion is in the public interest
2. won't violate state law
• Transmission
- FERC may authorize wholesale open-access wheeling
- But states have authority over siting, certification, cost
allocation. Effective veto power.
- FERC prohibited from ordering retail wheeling
- But states could develop own retail programs
• Energy Efficiency
- integrated resource planning supply and demand
- utility incentives for conservation, efficiency
• Renewables
• Capital Structure
- By October 1993, CPUC must examine:
1. effects of power purchases on rates, cost of capital
2. concerns about highly-leveraged EWGs
reliable?
unfair cost advantage compared to utilities?
3. adopt ore-approval procedures for long-term
contratts--:
4. condition approvals on sufficient fuel supply?
• Electric and Magnetic Fields
- Consolidates state/federal research into health effects
- More funding available
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MAJOR ISSUES - CONT'D
e Nuclear

- Greater investment freedom for decommissioning
trusts
- Utilities to share in costs of decommissioning DOE
plants
• Foreign Affiliates
~~lYe affiliatefiWJlJ; be exempted from PUHCA if

1. tCPUC has authority, resources to protect
ra epayers
2. intends to exercise that authority
- Conditions considered satisfied if CPUC has found
1. ratepayers adequately insulated
2. doesn't impair CPUC's ability to regulate
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SYNOPSIS:

EXPECTED IMPACT OF ENERGY ACT OF 1992 1

ON SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COifPANY

I.

summary and overview

Of the Act's thirty titles, Title VII (Electricity
Regulation) will have most profound impact-- the encouragement of
competition to provide generation.

This will give substantial

impetus to industry restructuring and regulatory reform already
underway in California.

The Act will also improve the

environment, especially through encouraging Natural Gas and
Electric Vehicle programs.

Finally, the Act offers substantial

encouragement to energy efficiency, through standard setting and
incentives.
The Act's successful implementation will turn on the states'
regulation of resource procurement and on the FERC's regulation
of transmission access.

This implementation should focus on the

welfare of the ultimate energy consumer.

Bottom line, this means

fostering competition on the merits, not skewing the process to
favor certain outcomes or players.
II.

san Diego Gas & Electric - girding for a more
environment.
A.

com~etitive

Description of SDG&E and its Power supply Prospects.

SDG&E is a vertically-integrated investor-owned combination
gas and electric utility serving over one million electric
1

Comprehensive National Energy Policy Act of 1992, Pub. L.
No. 102-486 (signed Oct. 24, 1992) ("Act"}.

customers in san Diego County and portions of Orange county,
California as well as over 600,000 gas customers in San Diego
County.

In terms of gross utility assets, SDG&E is the 47th

largest investor-owned electric utility in the nation; in terms
of electric peak demand, the 50th largest, with a peak of 3285 mw
reached August 17, 1992.
SDG&E has generation totaling 2373 mw currently in
commercial operation, including 1943 mw of oil/gas steam
generation and 430 mw from SDG&E's 20% share of the San Onofre
Nuclear Generating Station.

Tucked in the Southwest corner of

the United states in an electrical cul-de-sac bounded by Mexico,
the Pacific Ocean and the Sonoran desert, SDG&E is located in an
"energy desert," far from substantial hydroelectric, oil, coal or
natural gas resources.
SDG&E has sought to mitigate its disadvantaged resource
situation by investment in long-distance EHV transmission.
Specifically, SDG&E was one of the original venturers in the
Pacific Intertie, a pioneering EHV project connecting California
with the Pacific Northwest.

In addition, SDG&E built the

Southwest Powerlink (completed 1984) connecting San Diego with
the Palo Verde switchyard, a major transmission hub in Arizona.
SDG&E's transmission investment facilitated a non~
traditional resource strategy:

In the 1980's, to meet its

rapidly growing load, SDG&E began to rely on purchased power for
its incremental resource needs.

Today, purchases satisfy over

30% of SDG&E's peak capacity requirements (including reserve
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requirements) .

Indeed, SDG&E is one of the few utilities with

substantial experience in contracting with off-system non-utility
generators for portions of its capacity resource requirements.
Because of a surplus of generation in the Southwest (primarily in
Arizona and New Mexico), SDG&E as a net purchaser has been able
to exploit competition among sellers.
In addition, SDG&E decided to begin to provide natural gas
directly from producers, rather than rely on requirements
purchases from SoCal Gas.

By exploiting competition among gas

suppliers, SDG&E has been able to lower its WACOG below that of
SoCal Gas every year since 1985.
B.

SDG&E is now the low-cost investor-owned utility power
producer in california.

In 1985, SDG&E had the second highest rates of any investorowned utility in the nation.

Today, SDG&E is the low-cost

electric producer in California.
elements:

This success has two principal

the exploitation of competition in generation and fuel

supply as described above, and a commitment to efficiency in
other aspects of company operations.

The latter is exemplified

by the reduction of SDG&E's staff from 5100 in 1982 to 4200
today, while adding over 307,000 electric customers in the same
period.
c.

SDG&E's Performance-Based Ratemakinq proposal will
square regulatory risks and rewards with competitive
outcomes.

On October 16, 1992, SDG&E applied to the California Public
Utilities Commission for authority to implement a performance-3-

based ratemaking mechanism ("PBR").

The PBR would base risks and

rewards on how well the company's performance compares to the
market.

The proposal is based on three elements:

gas

procurement, electric generation and dispatch, and long-term
competitive energy procurement.
Right now, utilities have only the negative incentive of
hindsight disallowances, coupled with the regulated return on
investments made to serve customers.

SDG&E's proposal would base

outcomes, not on retrospective prudence reviews, but on
comparisons to the market.

By sharing the rewards of "beating

the market" between customers and shareholders, utilities will
have additional incentive to plan and operate efficiently, while
reducing regulatory burdens.

The result should be a winning

solution for all-- utilities, customers, and regulators.
III. Title VII will accelerate the emergence of a competitive
generation sector - generation will no longer be the
exclusive province of vertically-integrated utilities.
A.

PUHCA reform: removes substantial impediments to nonutility generation.

In sum, this reform insures that more investment and more
players will be able to participate in the generation market.
While FERC has the authority to qualify Exempt Wholesale
Generators ("EWGs")

I

the states retain the ability to set

resource procurement rules, and to determine whether, and to what
extent, utilities and EWGs have an opportunity to compete to
serve new increments of demand for electric generating capacity.
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1.

2.

B.

c.

EWGs will be exempt from PUHCA, and may build, own
and operate power plants for electricity sales at
wholesale; may also broker power generated by
others.
a.

if state makes certain findings, a utility
may spin out of rate base into an EWG all or
part of a plant, or

b.

it may purchase power from an affiliated EWG.

Requires CPUC to consider within one year of the
Act's passage the effects of purchased power on
utilities capital structure and the effect of
leveraged capital on the reliability of wholesale
sellers.

Federal Power Act amendments:
generation to markets.

ease access of

1.

FERC now has explicit authority to compel wheeling
on application, including the expansion of the
transmitting utility's facilities.

2.

Utility must respond to request for wheeling wji
60 days; after 60 days requestor may complain to
FERC.

3.

this new authority extends to municipal electric
systems.

4.

FERC may not order retail wheeling.

5.

Pricing largely left to FERC; not clear whether
FERC will favor wheeling for EWGs over the
economic use of transmission to benefit native
load customers.

6.

FERC has issued NOPR on Regional Transmission
Groups ("RTGs")-- concept is to encourage
voluntarism within the structure of the_Federal
Power Act.

Opens up international transactions.
1.

EWGs in foreign countries may sell to U.S.
wholesale market.
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2.

D.

The Act should accelerate industry restructuring and
regulatory reform: a competitive generation sector
will require re-thinking traditional cost-of service
regulation to take advantage of competition, and to
deal with some level of vertical disintegration.
1.

IV.

Also, Title II provides equal treatment for gas
sales from foreign countries with which we have a
free trade agreement.

California is out in front of this trend
a.

SDG&E's PBR proposals

b.

CPUC strategic planning white paper.

c.

WATSCO at forefront of RTG movement.

2.

California should avoid parochialism: greatest
efficiencies will be realized with regional
markets (e.g., WSPP).

3.

California should not bar utilities from serving
new load; where is public interest in reducing the
number of competitors by placing roadblocks in the
path of the most experienced developers and
operators of generation?
a.

focus is on cost to consumer; California's
infrastructure and competitiveness concerns
rei~force the need for this focus.

b.

is set-aside for renewables (with benchmark
costs 30% above fossil costs) consistent with
a. above?

Act provides incentives to enhance the environment and to
address environmental concerns.
A.

Fleet mandates for NGVs - boost to SDG&E's program

B.

EV encouragement

c.

IRP and efficiency standards and incentives - not much
impact in CA-- CA already there.

D.

Nuclear decommissioning trust will increase nuclear
generation costs.
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E.

EMF research prov1s1ons can help address public concern
and should dovetail well with proposals now before the
CPUC in its EMF investigation.

February 23, 1993
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THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
TESTIMONY
THE NATIONAL ENERGY POLICY ACT OF 1992

before the Senate Committee on Energy and Public Utilities
February 23, 1993

Good Afternoon, Mr. Chair and members of the con1n1ittee. My
name is George Minter and I an1 Manager of Public Affairs
Planning & Analysis for the Southern California Gas Company
(SoCalGas). I'm responsible for policy development including
federal and state legislative policy. On behalf of SoCalGas- the
largest natural gas utility in the country serving over 14 million
customers, it is my pleasure to appear before your cotrunittee to
discuss the implications and potential benefits of the National
Energy Policy Act of 1992 (NEP A) for SoCalGas and its
customers.
SoCalGas believes that this legislation through its Alternative
Fuels, Natural Gas R&D and Energy Efficiency provisions will
result in cleaner air and less dependence on foreign oil.
Additionally, this legislation will enhance the potential for
econon1ic growth and job creation in southern California.

\Vhile the scope of this legislation is broad ranging - it also reflects
the political limitations of enacting energy policy, especially given
the competing interests bet\veen producing and consuming regions
as \Vell as environmentalists and traditional energy industries.
vVe all know the history of how the original legislation failed on
the t\vin peaks of ANWR and CAFE. Well, for the Gas Company
the bill almost failed because it contained a very contentious
Nat ural Gas Title.

This Title started frorn the premise that more gas is needed to get
to the end user, but the regulatory process is so arcane that it takes
too long to get pipelines approved. The Title \Vas designed to
expedite pipeline construction. This gave rise to concern over
utility bypass. It \Vas the conflict bet\veen producers and pipelines
seeking new markets and utilities concerned about idled facilities
that han1strung the Title, and the pipeline certification provisions
\Vere deleted from the bill. The ren1aining provisions addressed
foreign in1ports and prorationing, not a big concern for SoCalGas.
Alternative Fuels

Prior to the passage of this legislation~ previous federal legislation
- the Clean Air Act Amendtnents of 1990 - established the public
policy goal of increasing the use of alternative fuel vehicles to
improve the environment by reducing en1isisions in the
transportation sector. NEP A caries this a policy goal a step further
by encouraging alternative fuel vehicle use based upon energy
security benefits.
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Along these lines, NEP A would now require the federal and state
governments to phase in the purchase of alternate fuel vehicles.
The legislation also authorizes the Energy Secretary to establish
requiren1ents for municipal and private fleets. Additionally,
alternate fuel providers, such as SoCalGas, are required to convert
a certain percentage of their fleets to alternate fuel vehicles.
Tax incentives were added to reduce the cost of moving to\vards
alternate fuel vehicle use. Specifically, a tax deduction to
encourage refueling facility development is provided. Also
included is a tax credit to offset the cost of converting or
purchasing alternate fuel vehicles.
Various other incentives supporting the use of alternate fuel
vehicles such as low interest loans, vehicle conversion certification
programs, state and local incentives and federal funding for bus
detnonstration programs are provided for as well.
SoC alGas believes all of this will strongly encourage alternate fuel
vehicle development in southern California. We are:
• installing 51 NGV refueling stations throughout our service
territory;
. buying 300 GM Sierra trucks, the first off-the-assembly-line,
dedicated OEM natural gas vehicle;
. \vorking with fleet operators throughout the basin to provide
the necessary vehicles, and to develop the infrastructure to
service these vehicles; and
3

• negotiating \Vith every auto manufacturer to develop OEM
vehicles.
We are confident that through these efforts natural gas will become
a viable transportation fuel. This in tum will increase utility
throughput \vhich will accrue to the benefit of ratepayers.

· SoCalGas is concerned, ho\vever, with potential consideration by
the state of California to subsume compliance with NEP A's fleet
requiren1ents under the existing CARB program. We would
caution that the CARB program is based on federal clean air
reguirements, and allows any fuel, such as reformulated gasoline,
to meet emission requirements. NEP A's requirements are designed
specifically to reduce petroleum use in the transportation sector.
RD&D
This legislation specifically charges the DOE Secretary \Vith a gas
technology R&D effort targeted towards:

• gas supply and storage enhancetnent,
• combustion technology focused on emission reduction and
efficiency improvements, and
• fuel cell developn1ent.
From a SoCalGas perspective we believe DOE's investment in
these areas, and the Clinton Administration 's pron1otion of natural
gas, has the potential to drive economic change in southern
California.
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SoCalGas along with other segments of the natural gas industry are
asking the Department of Energy to redirect its R&D funding
priorities towards natural gas technology developtnent by investing
$2.5 billion in natural gas R&D over the next 10 years. This \Vill
augment planned industry funding and will be allocated toward
ne\v natural gas utilization technologies with a focus on low
emissions and high energy efficiency.
A SoCalGas study by Foster Associates of San Francisco
highlights the benefits of investing natural gas R&D funds
specifically in the southern California region. A fair share of
increased federal funding for natural gas R&D in southern
California through the year 2010 would:
• Create 30,000s new jobs;
• Generate more than $1 billion worth of additional goods and
.
servtces;
• Generate approxin1ately $1. 4 billion in disposable income;
The availability of a highly educated workforce idled by recession
and defense cutbacks in southern California sets the stage for a
natural gas technology development agenda. Redirection of
federal energy investment could serve as an example of how
defense industry personnel and technological capabilities can be
converted for civilian application.
Let me just say that last year, this body supported a reolution
calling on the Congress to support appropriation of funds to
undertake such an effort. We thank you for your support. The
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passage ofNEPA will help, but again, it vvill be up to Congress to
and our California delegation to obtain a commitment to redirect
federal energy research.

Energy Efficiency
Under NEP A, minimutn efficiency standards for a variety of
commercial and industrial equipment are increased. Another
provision encourages electric and gas utilities to engage in energy
conservation, and integrated resource planning (IRP). In the case
of natural gas IRP, there are provisions that would protect against
load and revenue loss resulting from misdirected fuel switching.
These programs are similar to the types of utility energy
conservation progratns undertaken in California for sotne titne.
Potential opportunities could arise fron1 ilnplen1entation of IRP in
terms of gas fuel substitution for CFC-free air conditioning, gas
heat pumps, and cogeneration through the use of ultra-clean gas
engines, small turbines, and fuel cells. In addition, the industrial
energy eft1ciency guidelines could offer increased opportunities for
industrial DSM programs.
Another section provides for the deductibility of utility
conservation rebates, thus providing tax benefits to custotners
purchasing qualifying high-efficiency gas applications. This
should encourgage equipment replacement, assisting in DSM
efforts, as welJ as resulting in efficiency and conservation gains.
A.nother provision requires the DOE Secretary to award grants to
public and private consortiun1s for the establishment of 10 regional
6

energy efficient lighting and building centers throughout the
country. The Gas Company is exploring the opportunity of placing
one of these centers in southern California.
Summary
Under NEPA, natural gas will assume even a greater importance as
the fuel of choice for a variety of activities that touch and concern
our daily lives - from the cars we drive to the comfort of our homes
and offices. There is greater support for natural gas resource
recoverability and end-use technologies.
The growth potential for the natural gas industry will be enhanced
due to the emphasis on natural gas cooling, integrated resource
planning and high-efficiency generation. Natural gas should also
capture a greater share of the alternate transportation fuel market, a
large segment of which will be centered in southern California.
The RD&D provisions validate the need for the federal
government to increase its investment in gas technology
development, providing the basis for economic stimulation, job
creation and reduced pollution throughout the state.
Mr. Chair, on behalf of the Southern California Gas Company,
thank you for this ,opportunity to testify before your committee.
I will be glad to answer any questions you and your con1n1ittee
men1bers may have.
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Mr. Chairman and Members, I am pleased to be invited to join you
here today. I appreciate the work this committee is undertaking to
maximize California's chances to benefit from the National Energy
Act.
Last week I had the honor of being invited to the California
Economic Summit in Southern California.
At that meeting it was
made abundantly clear that the public is not interested in debate,
they want constructive action to create new jobs. People recognize
that we are not in a temporary slump from which we will
automatically recover. It is therefore timely and incumbent for us
to explore how California can benefit from the recently enacted
National
Energy Act
and
the
initiatives
of
the
Clinton
Administration.
President Clinton is proposing a major shift in federal energy
policy that favors California. His energy tax is getting lots of
attention, but he is also including major additional funding for
energy efficiency and renewable resources in his short term
stimulus, as well as in his long term investment proposal. There
is $200 million of new money in the short term package and $1.9
billion in the 1994-98 period for efficiency and renewables.
SMUD, and other California utilities are well positioned to attract
a significant share of those funds. We are leading the nation in
efficiency and renewables.
But we dare not sit on the lead now
that there is an Administration that is willing to help.
It is our duty to propose cost sharing projects that will attract
those federal funds to California--and that is just what SMUD is
doing. We have dozens of projects that could qualify for funding
~ar.gir.g from fuel cells to a solar-hydrogen powered bus.
We intend
to seek federal funds for many of these projects.
California is
fortunate that Congressman Vic Fazio is a key member of the House
Appropriations Committee and that Senator Feinstein is now on the
Senate Appropriations Committee.
We are hopeful that with their
leadership we will be successful.
The most important feature of the recently enacted Energy
Legislation for California, in my opinion, are the 1.5 cent/KWH tax
or production credit for new renewable projects, and the 10% tax
credit for electric cars.

We are also gratified that, with Congressman Matsui's leadership,
Congress eliminated the tax on energy efficient improvements
installed by residential customers.
I attached to this statement a more detailed analysis
impacts of the energy legislation on SMUD.
Thank you for your time and attention.
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Renewable Energy Incentive Program
This section provides opportunities
advanced technologies.

to

acquire

cap

funds

for

BACKGROUND
The Act includes provisions to pay any public power agency, such as
SMUD, 1.5 cents per kWh generated using solar, wind, biomass, or
geothermal energy.
The generating facilities must be placed in
service after October of 1993. Geothermal facilities must not be
of the dry steam type. Burning of municipal solid waste does not
qualify.
Examples of SMUD facilities that would qualify include:
Solano Wind Project
Folsom Composter Project
Dairy Energy Recovery Project
Rooftop Photovoltaic
Commercial customer Photovoltaic
substation Photovoltaic
SMUD owned Solar Dish stirling Units
SMUD Biomass Gasifier
Michigan-california Lumber Woodwaste Plant (if renewable resources
used)
SMUD owned portion of Kalina cycle pilot geothermal plant
Solar Two (if SMUD ownership is established)
The payments continue for ten years after initial operation, not to
exceed twenty years after October of 1993.
The funding has not
been appropriated, so SMUD must work diligently to be sure that
adequate appropriations are made by congress to fund this important
production payment.
One megawatt of photovol taic, with a 17%
capacity factor, would provide annual production payments of over
$20,000.
The 50 MW Solano Wind Project, at a capacity factor of
30%, would provide annual production payments of almost $2 Million.
The production payments will be adjusted annually to account for
inflation.

Other Federal Funding For Renewable Energy Projects
BACKGROUND
The Act includes demonstration and commercial application projects
in a variety of areas. It expands the Federal programs to include
commercial applications.
This important step to fund commercial
applications will help to bring renewable technologies into use.
This will be accomplished by Federal funding of early commercial
adoption of these advanced resources.
The following general
resource types are specifically addressed by the Act:
Electrical Generation
Thermal Energy Production
Increasing the Efficiency of Energy Use
Specific techn~logies included for project consideration include:
Biomass Liquid Fuels
Bio Fuels
Biomass Gasification
Biomass Combustion
Ethanol

Solar Thermal
Geothermal Energy
Solar Hot Water
Superconductivity
Photovoltaic
Factory Made Housing
Stationary Fuel Cells
Transportation Fuel Cells

Subject to appropriations, the Federal budget is authorized to
contain $50 Million for funding of projects in 1994.
This
funding, if appropriated, would be dispensed on a competitive
basis. It is expected to be matched on a one-for-one basis by nonFederal participants in the projects. This amounts to $100 Million
total for all projects in 1994.
This $100 Million would be
sufficient to accomplish two projects on the scale of the Solar Two
Project or the Santa Clara Demonstration Fuel Cell Project. This
is clearly not a great deal of funding for renewable programs.
Candidate SMUD programs that might compete for funds include:

Folsom Composter Fuel Cell Project,
Solar Dish Stirling Generation Units,
Biomass Gasification,
Solar Hydrogen Fuel Cell Bus,
Photovoltaic Generation Facilities,
Kalina cycle Geothermal Pilot Plant,
Sacramento Ethanol Plant,
Advanced Wind Energy Demonstrations,
Solar Hot Water Heating,
Sacramento Landfill Fuel Cell,

$ 3,250,000
$

750,000

$ 1,750,000
$ 5,300,000
$ 6,570,000

$ 1,250,000

$ 4,250,000

ELECTRIC VEHICLES
This section establishes programs for various members of the
community to electrify their transportation system. Funding or tax
credits are established for individual purchasers, fleet operators
like SMUD, as well as vehicle support services or component
suppliers,

BACKGROUND
Electric Vehicle (EV) income tax credit

Individuals and businesses are eligible for a tax credit equal to
10% of the cost of any qualified EV, not to exceed $4,000 per
vehicle. To qualify, the vehicle must be powered primarily by an
electric motor, must be primarily for use on public roadways, and
must have at least 4 wheels.
This tax credit is available for vehicles purchased after June 30,
1993 and prior to December 31, 2004. The 10% credit is reduced by
25% in 2002; 50% in 2003; 75% in 2004.
Note: This tax credit for EVs is more generous than the $2,000
maximum tax deduction created for other alternative fueled
vehicles.
Tax deduction for recharging property

Businesses that invest
after June 30, 1993 and
for up to $100,000 tax
property must be located
recharged.

in electric vehicle recharging stations
prior to December 31, 2004, are eligible
deduction.
To qualify, the recharging
at the point where the motor vehicles are

DOE Programs

The Act authorizes funding for two major programs, electric
vehicles and the infrastructure to support those vehicles. SMUD
will work to get both programs funded in 1993.
1) Electric Vehicles
The first is entitled "Electric Motor Vehicle Commercial
Demonstration Program".
This program will be designed to
accelerate the development and use of EVs; and structured to
evaluate the performance of EVs in field operation, including
fleet operation, and evaluate the necessary supporting
infrastructure.

The Act authorizes $50 million over a 10-year period for this
program, subject to appropriation. DOE is authorized to fund
up to ten proposals, on a 50: 50 cost-share basis with the
applicant, with no proposal receiving over 25% of the total

funds.
2) Infrastructure
The second is entitled "Electric Motor Vehicle Infrastructure
and Support Systems Development Program".
Up to $40 million
is authorized over a 5-year period, subject to appropriation.
Up to 10 proposals can be funded, none to receive over $4
million.
This program is a 50:50 cost-share basis with the applicant for
research, development, demonstration, or commercial application of
an infrastructure and support systems program.
Eligible projects
might address, among other topics, the installation of charging
facilities, rates and cost recovery for electric utilities who
invest in infrastructure capital-related expenditures and for the
development of safety and health procedures and guidelines related
to battery charging, watering, and emissions.
Another section directs the Department of Energy to undertake a
study to determine the means by which electric utilities may invest
in, own, sell, lease, service, or recharge batteries used to power
electric motor vehicles.

Conservation Rebates

This section provides clearer guidelines for the disposition of
conservation improvements and revokes certain disincentives and
penalties for energy efficiency improvements.
BACKGROUND
The Act excludes from taxable income the value of any subsidy
provided by a public utility to a residential customer for the
purchase andjor installation of an energy conservation measure, for
taxable years beginning after 1992. Such an exclusion is phased in
for commercial and industrial customers of public utilities
beginning in 1995. In 1995, 40% of any rebates will be tax free,
rising to 50% in 1996, and 65% in 1997 and thereafter. The customer
may claim the benefit of the exclusion regardless of whether the
customer received the rebate directly, or indirectly through
reduced payments to an energy service company (ESCO) made possible
through a utility rebate to the ESCO. The ESCO may not, however,
claim the exclusion.

With this provision, SMUD's residential customers will no longer
have to report rebates received from our programs as income.

Regional Energy Efficiency centers
These changes will allow utilities to compete for new dollars on a
regional , rather than national scale. Regional center allow for
recognition of utility program externalities like customer lifestyle and climate variances.
BACKGROUND
By mid-1994, the DOE will award grants to establish or enhance one
regional energy efficiency center in each of the 10 regions served
by a DOE regional support office which includes California.
The
Federal funding can be no more than 50% of the costs of
establishing, and no more than 25% of the cost of operating the
regional center.
Ten million dollars for each of FY 1994, 1995,
and 1996 is authorized, subject to appropriation. SMUD plans to
seek these funds for the new Customer Education Center.
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On October 24 1992, The Energy Policy Act was signed into law (PL
102-486), ending t\vo years of effort by the Administration and
Congress
to
secure
the
enactment
of
comprehensive
energy
legislation.
In this paper, staff summariz~s the provisions that have the
greatest impact to the Sacramento Municipal Utility District.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
A. Energy Efficiency. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
B. Alternative Fuels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

c.

Alternative Fuels- Non-Federal Programs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

D. Availability and Use of Replacement Fuels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
E. Electric Vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
F. Revenue Provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
G. Energy and Environment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
H. Renewable Energy Provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
I. Integrated Resource Planning . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

J. PUHCA Reform and Transmission Access . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
K. Nuclear Energy Provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
L. Hydroelectric Provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20

A. ENERGY EFFICIENCY
Building Codes
The Federal Energy Act 1992 (Act) requires each state to review and
update the provisions in its commercial building efficiency code to
meet or exceed the requirements of American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating, and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 90.1-1989.
States are also required to review the provisions of residential
building efficiency codes and make a determination as to whether it
is appropriate to revise the codes to meet or exceed the Council of
American Building Officials 1992 Model Energy Code. If the State
makes a determination that it is not appropriate to revise this
code a statement for such a determination must be submitted to the
Department of Energy (DOE) and made available to the public.
The Act directs the Secretary of DOE to create a technical
assistance program to help state officials and others involved with
building codes update and enforce its provisions.
Some incentive
funds from DOE will be provided for states to use in improving and
implementing their revised codes. Improvements in the codes should
be of benefit to SMUD' s energy efficiency efforts. SMUD will
participate in the California updating process.
Home Energy Rating Systems
The Act directs the Secretary of DOE to issue voluntary guidelines
by mid-1994 to help states and localities rate the energy
efficiency of residential buildings.
These "home energy rating
systems" are to provide consumers vJ i th better information on the
energy efficiency of a prospective home.
The District along with
other utilities in California have been working for some time on a
rating system for the state.
Regional Building Energy Efficiency Centers
By mid-1994, the DOE will award grants to establish or enhance one
regional energy efficiency center in each of the 10 regions served
by a DOE regional support office which includes California.
The
Federal funding can be no more than 50% of the costs of
establishing, and no more than 25% of the cost of operating the
regional center.
Ten million dollars for each of FY 1994, 1995,
and 1996 is authorized, subject to appropriation. SMUD plans to
seek these funds for the new Customer Education Center.

J

Public Housing
The Act requires the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) to develop and 3dopt energy efficiency standards for new
public assisted housing and ensure that they are at least
equivalent to the 1992 model energy code. The requirement that
standards meet specific energy efficiency guidelines will be
beneficial to District customers.
The Act also requires the Secretary of HUD to recommend methods for
making manufactured housing more energy efficient and to test the
energy performance of such housing. It also gives states the power
to set their own
insulation and efficiency standards for
manufactured housing if HUD fails to set new federal standards
within 1993.
States are currently preempted from setting these
standards.
This could be an
important provision because
manufactured housing is such a difficult sector to impact with
energy efficiency.
Energy Efficiency Mortgages

The Act requires the Secretary of HUD to establish an energy
efficiency mortgage pilot program in five states to promote the
purchase of energy efficient residential buildings and installation
of cost effective improvements in existing residential buildings.
By March 1993, this pilot program is to be set-up and within two
years of beg inning the pi lot, the program is to be expanded
nationwide.
If California is selected as one of the pilot states
this will be helpful in meeting district energy efficiency goals.
Energy Efficiency standards

The Act establishes new, mandatory federal efficiency standards for
a number of products.
Commercial and industrial electric motors,
ranging from 1 to 200 horsepower,
certain fluorescent and
incandescent reflector lamps, commercial heating systems and air
conditioning, and certain commercial water heaters and hot water
storage tanks are all covered. It also authorizes DOE to establish
testing requirements and then efficiency standards for small
electric motors (under 1 horsepower).
The new Federal standards
will allow SMUD to raise its efficiency standards for rebate
eligibility, which should further reduce the rate of growth of the
District's peak load.
The standards will apply only to equipment manufactured after
January 1, 1994, so it will be several years before the changes are
realized.
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Appliance standards
The Act requires DOE to report to Congress ._.,. i thin 18 months, in
consultation with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA),
utilities, and appliance manufacturers, on the potential for the
development
and
commercialization
of
appliances
which
are
substantially more efficient than required by federal or state law.
A study is to be commissioned on the merits of helping
manufacturers develop high efficiency appliances and equipment that
go beyond minimum government standards, as well as a second report
on programs aimed at phasing out older, less efficient appliances.
This supports our efforts to "push" manufacturers in the direction
of producing higher efficiency appliances.
The Act requires DOE to prescribe labeling rules for products
covered by the federal efficiency standards, indicating the energy
efficiency on a permanent nameplate and in new equipment catalogs,
and other markings as necessary to facilitate enforcement of the
standards. This authorizes the Federal government to help industry
develop a voluntary efficiency labeling program for various
measures, and to establish a mandatory program if the private
sector fails to establish a voluntary one within several years.
This is something SMUD strongly favors as it would help customers
when purchasing energy efficiency equipment.
B. ALTERNATIVE FUELS - GENERAL

The Act establishes a Federal commitment to the use of dedicated
and hybrid alternative fueled vehicles, which are clearly defined
to include electric vehicles.
It requires the Federal government
to acquire light duty alternative fueled vehicles in specific
numbers for FY 93-95, and as minimum percentages of total fleet
purchases thereafter (25% in FY 96, increasing to 75% in FY 99).
Such fleet purchase requirements send an important signal to
developers and manufacturers of electric vehicles. There is a
potential market for their products, if the purchase price is
competitive.
The
mandated
purchases
must
be
from
original
equipment
manufacturers (OEMs); if not available from OEMs, conversions may
be purchased, but only if the OEM's warranty continues to apply to
the converted vehicle.
This Federal fleet mandate requires that,
except to the extent inconsistent with the General Agreement on
Tariffs and Trade, the vehicles acquired must be manufactured in
the U.S. or Canada.
These criteria are beneficial to the goals
that have been established by SMUD' s electric vehicle program,
particularly the District's goal of promoting and attracting local
manufacturers of electric vehicles.
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C. ALTERNATIVE FUELS - NON-FEDERAL PROGRAMS

Rulemaking Process
By April 1994, the Federal Trade Commission will begin a rulemaking
process to establish uniform labeling requirements for alternative
fuels and alternative fueled vehicles. The uniform labeling is to
"reasonably enable 11 the consumer to make choices and comparisons
based on costs and benefits of various vehicle types.
State Program

The Act establishes a federal assistance program, subject to
appropriation,
to
assist
states
with
the
acquisition and
encouragement of alternative fueled
vehicles.
One form of
assistance will be grants ( 8 0% federal, 2 0% state) for state
purchase of such vehicles. To be eligible for assistance, a state
will have to prepare a plan for ensuring that substantial numbers
of alternative fueled vehicles are introduced into the state by the
year 2000.
Each state plan is to describe how the federal, state, and local
governmental entities will coordinate their efforts. Some of the
provisions that each state must examine include tax incentives,
preferential parking, public education, and ways to allow and
encourage utilities to invest as equity participants in the
alternative fueled vehicle programs. California and the PUC have
already begun addressing these issues. SMUD has been, and will
continue, working with state government to develop a comprehensive
incentive program.
Regional Transit authorities, such as the Sacramento Regional
Transit, are eligible to enter into a cooperative agreement or
joint venture with any government or private entity to demonstrate
the feasibility of commercial application of alternative fueled
urban buses and other vehicles used for mass transit. A 20% local
match would be required.
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D. AVAILABILITY AND USE OF REPLACEMENT FUELS, ALTERNATIVE FUELS,
AND ALTERNATIVE FUELED PRIVATE VEHICLES

Purchase Requirements
Beginning in 1996, any company that provides alternative fuels will
be required to purchase increasingly higher percentages of new
alternative fueled light duty vehicles for their fleets. However,
electric utilities that wish to comply by purchasing electric
vehicles have the option of notifying the DOE of that choice by
January 1, 1996. Having so notified the DOE, the electric utility
is not required to meet the purchase mandate until 1998.
A credit system is established that will allow SMUD to get one
credit for each electric vehicle acquired prior to the required
compliance date, for each year prior to the required date. Whether
a conversion qualifies for credit will have to be addressed in
subsequent rule making. Such credits for early or surplus purchases
may be applied to the first year of required compliance or may be
freely transferred to others who are subject to fleet requirements.
Reporting requirements
Beginning October 1, 1994, SMUD will be required to report annually
to the DOE the amount of electricity that was supplied in the
previous calendar year for use as an alternative fuel for vehicles,
as well as the amount the District plans to supply the following
year. Additionally, the District will have to provide information
necessary to determine the greenhouse gas emissions (C02) from the
replacement fuels used, taking into account the entire fuel cycle.
Steps will need to be taken prior to October 1, 1993, to compile
this information,
including metering of charging units and
development of a model of the District's generation mix to
determine C02 emissions.
State Fleets
Beginning in 1995, state fleets will be required to purchase
increasingly higher percentages of alternative fueled light duty
vehicles (10% in 1995, increasing to 75% in 1999).
At a later
date, DOE will deciqe whether to impose percentage purchase
requirements on municipal and all other fleets, beginning with
model year 1999. Any such Federally-mandated purchase requirements
help promote the commercialization of electric vehicles by ensuring
a certain market share for the manufacturers, though other
alternative fueled vehicles are likely to get the largest market
share prior to 1998.
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E. ELECTRIC MOTOR VEHICLES

The Act authorizes funding for two major programs, electric
vehicles and the infrastructure to support those vehicles. SMUD
will work to get both programs funded in 1993.
1) Electric Vehicles
The first is entitled "Electric Motor Vehicle Commercial
Demonstration Program".
This program ~tJill be designed to
accelerate the development and use of EVs; and structured to
evaluate the performance of EVs in field operation, including
fleet operation,
and evaluate the necessary supporting
infrastructure.
The Act authorizes $50 million over a 10-year period for this
program, subject to appropriation. DOE is authorized to fund
up to ten proposals, on a 50:50 cost-share basis with the
applicant, with no proposal receiving over 25% of the total
funds.
2) Infrastructure
The second is entitled "Electric Motor Vehicle Infrastructure
and Support Systems Development Program".
Up to $40 million
is authorized over a 5-year period, subject to appropriation.
Up to 10 proposals can be funded, none to receive over $4
million.
This program is a 50:50 cost-share basis with the applicant for
research, development, demonstration, or commercial application of
an infrastructure and support systems program.
Eligible projects
might address, among other topics, the installation of charging
facilities, rates and cost recovery for electric utilities who
invest in infrastructure capital-related expenditures and for the
development of safety and health procedures and guidelines related
to battery charging, watering, and emissions.
Another section directs the Department of Energy to undertake a
study to determine the means by which electric utilities may invest
in, own, sell, lease, service, or recharge batteries used to power
electric motor vehicles.
Electric Motor
Development

Vehicle

and

Associated

Equipment

Research

and

By April of 1993, DOE is to prepare a comprehensive five-year
research and development program for electric vehicles,
in
consultation with other agencies, utilities, and automakers, to
promote the commercialization of electric Vehicles.
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The Act authorizes the programs, on a 50:50 cost-sharing basis, in
areas such as hybrid po'.:er trains, light-v;eight vehicle bodies,
advanced batteries, fuel cells, and photovoltaics. The cost-sharing
may be in the form or c3.sh, personnel, services, equipment, and
other resources. A total of $483 nillion over 6 years is authorized
for this program. (Of the $60.3 million authorized for FY 93,
Congress appropriated $59.8 million). SMUD plans to work with the
Electric
Transportation
Coalition
for
maximum
authorized
appropriation in subsequent years.

F. REVENUE PROVISIONS
The amendments made to the Internal Revenue Code
areas of SMUD's activities.

impact several

Employer-provided transportation benefits
The amount that an employer can subsidize employee transit passes,
not taxable to the employee as income, has been increased from $21
SMUD currently offers $2 0 as a transit pass
to $60 a month.
subsidy.
In addition, an employer can now subsidize an employee in a vanpool
up to $60 a month. The employee does not have to pay taxes on this
amount. Prior to this Act, SMUD employees in vanpools were paying
income tax on $41 a month, the imputed value of SMUD's non-cash
vanpool subsidy. SMUD employees no longer have to pay income tax on
this amount.
For employees vanpooling or carpooling, an employer can exclude up
to $155 per month from the employee's taxable income for parking on
or near the business premises of the employer or a $155 per month
subsidy for the use of a park & ride lot. Since SMUD does not
charge for parking, this section does not apply to SMUD employees.

Electric Vehicle (EV)

income tax credit

Individuals and businesses are eligible for a tax credit equal to
10% of the cost of any qualified EV, not to exceed $4, 000 per
vehicle.
To qualify, the vehicle must be powered primarily by an
electric motor, must be primarily for use on public roadways, and
must have at least 4 wheels.

This tax credit is available tor vehicles purchased after June 30,
1993 and prior to December 31, 200~. The 10% credit is reduced by
25% in 2002; 50% in 2003; 75t in 2004.
Note: This tax credit for EVs is more generous than the $2,000
maximum tax deduction created for other alternative fueled
vehicles.
Tax deduction for recharging property
Businesses that invest
after June 30, 1993 and
for up to $100, 000 tax
property must be located
recharged.

in electric vehicle recharging stations
prior to December 31, 2004, are eligible
deduct ion.
To qua 1 i fy, the recharging
at the point where the motor vehicles are

conservation Rebates
The Act excludes from taxable income the value of any subsidy
provided by a public utility to a residential customer for the
purchase andjor installation of an energy conservation measure, for
taxable years beginning after 1992. Such an exclusion is phased in
for commercial and industrial customers of public utilities
beginning in 1995.
In 1995, 40% of any rebates will be tax free,
rising to 50% in 1996, and 65% in 1997 and thereafter. The customer
may claim the benefit of the exclusion regardless of whether the
customer received the rebate directly, or indirectly through
reduced payments to an energy service company (ESCO) made possible
through a utility rebate to the ESCO.
The ESCO may not, however,
claim the exclusion.
With this provision, SMUD's residential customers will no longer
have to report rebates received from our programs as income.

G. ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT
The Act directs the Department of Energy (DOE) to conduct a five
year research program on energy efficient natural gas and electric
heating and cooling technologies for residential and commercial
buildings.
DOE is to look for cost effective technologies to
improve energy efficiency and increase the use of renewable energy
in the buildings, industrial, and utility sectors.
The bill
authorizes $178 million for these efforts in fiscal year 1993 and
$275 million in fiscal 1994.
The Act also establishes several research programs designed to
foster the development of advanced materials and manufacturing
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techniques related to increased energy etficiency.
The Act
represents the first t1r.1e sucn c~ lJroacl range of ciUthorities for
research and developnent has been collected in one !Jlace.
Electric Magnetic Fields
The Act authorizes $65 nillion for a
research and public
dissemination program addressing Electric and Magnetic Fields
(EMF). Not later than September 30, 1997, an Interagency Committee
to be appointed by the President is to submit a final report
stating the committee•s findings and conclusions on the extent to
which exposure to EMF produced by the generation, transmission, or
use of electric energy affects human health, as well as remedial
actions, if any, that may be needed to minimize any such health
effects. SMUD will continue to monitor the studies and actions.
H. RENEWABLE ENERGY
The Act includes several provisions to encourage the development of
renewable energy.
If funded, these provisions will provide for a
limited number of renewable energy projects, with cost sharing by
Federal agencies.
Although the amount of funding authorized is
less than that required to implement an aggressive program to
commercialize renewable energy technologies, it does encourage work
on a variety of project types, and represents an increase in the
level of effort focused on renewable energy technologies. It also
provides for federal funding of commercial installations.
Provisions of the Act that should be expanded to effectively
improve the
utilization of
renewable
resources
and
energy
efficiency include the establishment of an Advisory Committee on
Demonstration and Commercial Application of Renewable Energy and
Energy Efficiency Technologies, a five year plan to encourage the
use of renewable resources and the establishment of a three year
Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency Management Plan.
The
Advisory Committee, and the plans it oversees, could mandate the
fundamental change we need.
SMUD vlill make every effort to participate as a member of the
Advisory Committee.
Our position as a Public Power Agency allows
a unique v ie~r:po i nt.
Our extensive exper Lence vJ i th renewable
resources and energy efficiency qualifies SMUD as a utility that
can advise on the utilization of these important resources, and
encourage their proper use.
Federal Funding For Renewable Energy Projects
The Act includes demonstration and commercial application projects
in a variety of areas.
It expands the Federal programs to include
commercial applications.
This important step to fund commercial
11

applications will help to bring renewable technologies into use.
This will be accomplished by Federal funding of early commercial
adoption of these advanced resources.
The following general
resource types are specifically addressed by the Act:
Electric~! Generation
Thermal Energy Production
Increasing the Efficiency of Energy Use

Specific technologies included for project consideration include:
Biomass Liquid Fuels
Solar Thermal
Geothermal Energy
Bio Fuels
Solar Hot Water
Superconductivity
Biomass Gasification
Photovoltaic
Factory Made Housing
Biomass Combustion
stationary Fuel Cells
Ethanol
Transportation Fuel Cells
Advanced District Cooling Hazardous Material Reduction
Subject to appropriations, the Feder a 1 budget is authorized to
contain $50 Million for funding of projects in 1994.
This
funding, if appropriated, would be dispensed on a competitive
basis. It is expected to be matched on a one-for-one basis by nonFederal participants in the projects. This amounts to $100 Million
total for all projects in 1994.
This $100 Million would be
sufficient to accomplish two projects on the scale of the Solar Two
Project or the Santa Clara Demonstration Fuel Cell Project. This
is clearly not a great deal of funding for renewable programs.
Candidate SMUD programs that might compete for funds include:
folsom Composter Fuel Cell Project,
Solar Dish Stirling Generation Units,
Biomass Gasification,
Solar Hydrogen Fuel Cell Bus,
Photovoltaic Generation Facilities,
Kalina Cycle Geothermal Pilot Plant,
sacramento Ethanol Plant,
Advanced Wind Energy Demonstrations,
Solar Hot Water Heating,
Sacramento Landfill Fuel Cell,

$ 3,250,000
$
750,000
$ 1,750,000
$ 5,300,000
$ 6,570,000
$ 1,250,000

$ 4,250,000

Renewable Energy Production Payments To Public Power Agencies
The Act includes provisions to pay any public power agency, such as
SMUD, 1.5 cents per kWh generated using solar, wind, biomass, or
geothermal energy.
The generating facilities must be placed in
service after October of 1993. Geothermal facilities must not be
of the dry steam type.
Burning of municipal solid v:aste does not
qualify.
Examples of SMUD facilities that would qualify include:

Solano Wind Project
Folsom Composter Project
Dairy Energy Recovery Project
Rooftop Photovoltaics
Commercial Customer Photovoltaic
Substation Photovoltaics
SMUD owned Solar Dish Stirling Units
SMUD Biomass Gasifier
Michigan-california Lumber Woodwaste Plant (if renewable resources
used)
SMUD owned portion of Kalina cycle pilot geothermal plant
Solar Two (if SMUD ownership is established)
The payments continue for ten years after initial operation, not to
exceed t\venty years after October of 1993.
The funding has not
been appropriated, so SMUD must work diligently to be sure that
adequate appropriations are made by Congress to fund this important
production payment.
One megawatt of photovol taic, with a 17%
capacity factor, would provide annual production payments of over
$20,000.
The 50 MW Solano Wind Project, at a capacity factor of
30%, would provide annual production payments of almost $2 Million.
The production payments vJill be adjusted annually to account for
inflation.
Renewable Hydrogen Energy
The Act includes the requirement for a five year program on
renewable hydrogen energy systems.
At least one program will
develop a hydrogen storage system suitable for electric motor
vehicles powered by fuel cells.
This provision is totally
consistent with the SMUD solar hydrogen fuel cell bus program.
SMUD will work to secure Federal funding for the solar fuel cell
bus as part of this program.
Renewable Energy Advancement Awards
The provision for Renewable Energy Advancement Awards has been
included in the Act. The $50,000 of annual awards are intended to
encourage additional work to advance renewable energy technology
utilization.
Study of Tax And Rate Treatment
The Act provides for a study of the tax and rate treatment of
renewable resources and energy efficiency to determine if these
resources are improperly handicapped by tax or rate treatment.
This report will be accomplished in cooperation with the States and
will determine if corrective action is necessary at the State or
National level.
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Rice Milling Energy By-Products Study
The Act provides for a study
byproducts from rice milling.

to

f ac i l ita te

the

marketing

of

International Competitiveness and Renewable Technology Exports
The Act includes several sections to encourage the export of
renewable technologies and energy efficiency technologies to
foreign countries.
It establishes interagency working groups and
a data base.
It assigns two agents of the Foreign Commercial
Service to the Pacific Rim and the Caribbean.
It encourages
American built product export and provides support to exporting
corporations. It authorizes over $100 Million annually for foreign
projects.
It authorizes $10 Million annually for technology
transfer for exports. It provides for export technology training.
It is designed to improve our balance of trade by encouraging
export of renewable energy and energy efficiency technologies.
Alcohol Production Provisions

The Act provides for several initiatives to encourage the
production of renewable alcohol.
Ethanol and methanol are
addressed separately.
The Act intends to increase production and
lower costs. The Sacramento Ethanol Plant may qualify for funding
or other support under these provisions.
Advanced Fossil Programs

The Act provides for a five year program to develop fuel cells as
well as a five year program to develop advanced high efficiency
turbines.
These programs do not support renewable energy, since
they specifically mandate fossil fuel sources.
The SMUD Advanced
& Renewable Technology Development Program includes similar fuel
cell and advanced turbine projects.
Some Federal funding or
support of our projects may result from these provisions.
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I. INTEGRATED RESOURCE PLANNING

The Act requires certQin utilities to employ integrated resource
planning (IRP). SMUD is attected by t~o of the provisions of the
Act:
1) Consumer-owned utilities with annual retail sales in excess
of 500 million kWh are required to consider integrated
resource planning by an amenc!nent to the Public Utility
Regulatory Policies Act (PURPA). The law requires that SMUD
consider and decide through public hearings whether to
implement integrated resource planning. IRP can be rejected or
accepted if public participation in the decision-making
process is permitted. The Act requires that public hearings be
held within two years of its enactment (October 5, 1992). In
these hearings, PURPA provides that intervenors providing
substantive input to the adopted findings may be compensated.
2) In addition, preference customers of the Western Area Power
Administration (WAPA) are required, through their contracts,
to develop integrated resource plans. Each customer would be
required to implement IRP within three years after enactment
of this Act (January 1993). Decision-making concerning the
demand and supply options is retained by the utility, but the
process is subject to review by WAPA. If a customer does not
adopt IRP, WAPA is directed to impose substantial rate
penalties or reduce power allocations.
In SMUD's case, the PURPA amendment provides a way to consider, and
then reject IRP, if the public participation requirement is met.
However, the law pertaining to FJAPA customers vJOuld impose a
"substantial" (from 10 to 30%) penalty on our ~vAPA pov1er allocation
if our planning process was found not to follow IRP principles.
Integrated resource planning is defined, under PURPA, to be"··· a
planning and selection process for new energy resources that
evaluates the full range of alternatives, including new generating
capacity, power purchases, energy conservation and efficiency,
cogeneration and district heating and cooling applications, and
renewable energy resources, in order to provide adequate and
reliable service to its electric customers at the lowest system
cost. The process shall take into account necessary features for
system operation, such as diversity, reliability, dispatchability,
and other factors of risk; shall take into account the ability to
verify energy savings achieved through energy conservation and
efficiency and the projected durability of such savings measured
over time; and shall treat demand and supply resources on a
consistent and integrated basis."
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SMUD would have to have approvQl for an IRP ~ithin the three-year
time period established in the Act. The criteria for approval of
this plan would be:
that we have
practicable energy
options available.
1.

identified and accurately compared all
efficiency and energy supply resource
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2. Included a 2-year action plan and a 5-year action plan
which describe specific actions the customer will take to
implement its integrated resource plan.
3. Designated 'least cost options' to be utilized by the
customer for the purpose of providing reliable electric
service to its retail consumers and explained the reason why
such options were selected.
4. To the extent practicable, minimized adverse environmental
effects of new resource acquisitions.
5. In preparation and development of the plan (and each
revision or amendment of the plan) has provided for full
public participation, including participation by governing
boards.
6. Included load forecasting.
7. Provided methods of validating predicted performance in
order to determine whether objectives in the plan are being
met.
8. Met such
require."

other

criteria

as

the

Administrator

shall

Generally,
our resource plans have contained much of the
information required by these criteria. We need to develop 2- and
5-year action plans and provide for performance measurements
until now left to the budgeting process or to management in
general. Public hearings, like those conducted during the
development of the General Manager's Recommendations would be
sufficient to meet the public participation requirement.
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J. TRANSMISSION PROVISIONS
The Act intends to 1ncrease compet:i tion in the ':Jholesale power
market and enhance transmission access. However, uncertainty over
transmission
access
and
pricing
and
state
and
federal
jurisdictional conflicts on those issues need to be resolved before
utilities will have the incentives to build new lines to provide
transmission capacity that would allow the more competitive
generation market envisioned by Congress and the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC).
Public Utility Holding company Act Reform (PUHCA)
The Act removes obstacles to wholesale power competition from the
Public Utility Holding Company Act (PUHCA) by creating a new class
of independent power producecs called Exempt Wholesale Generators
(EWGs) which will operate outside of PUHCA restrictions. To qualify
as an EWGs, the independent: must file an application with FERC.
The entrance of EWGs will affect the wholesale power market and
therefore, indirectly, SMUD.
In an attempt to complete passage of the Energy Bill before the
102nd Congress adjourned; jurisdictional issues between state and
federal regulatory authority concerning ':Jhich regulates energy
sales were left unclear.
Transmission Access
The Act provides FERC with broad authority to mandate transmission
access, and thus has the potential to open up the interstate
transmission grid to the new class of EWGs as well as others
engaged in wholesale power transactions.
Any electric utility or
wholesale electric energy generator, may apply to FERC for an order
requiring a utility to transmit such energy, including enlargement
of relevant facilities.
However, such orders are subject to both
environmental review and regulatory review at the state level.
Once again raising the issue of ambiguity regarding state and
federal jurisdiction, this time relating to transmission access.
The predicate for an application for a mandatory transmission order
is refusal of a request that the utility wheel on a voluntary
basis.
Utilities must provide a detailed explanation of any such
refusal within 60 days of such a request.
FERC is to promulgate
rules within 1 year of the enactment date requiring annual
information
filings
by
transmitting
utilities
concerning
potentially available transmission capacity and known constraints.
It is important to note that the Act authorizes, but does not
require FERC to order wheeling in response to an application. FERC
could not order wheeling if to do so would impair the transmitting
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uti 1 i ty' s reliability cJ! secJi ce. The Jl.ct preserves existing state
authority regarding ret::Ji
·.:neeling.
fERC is prohibited from
ordering ~:.rhee ling to end users or .:heeling to .::1n entity other than
a municipality.
The Act opts for full costing of transmission service and express
concern for native load ratepayers, \vhile leaving resolution of
what constitutes full cost in a particular case to specific FERC
proceedings. FERC is to establish rates for mandated transmission
which permit recovery of all costs incurred in connection with the
transmission services including an appropriate share of legitimate,
verifiable and economic costs, any incremental costs taking into
account any benefits to the transmission system and costs of
facilities construction. Rates must not assign transmission costs
to the utility's existing wholesale, retail and transmission
customers.
FERC' s authority to order transmission services applies to any
electric utility (including consumer-owned electric utilities),
federal
power marketing agency
(including Bonneville Power
Administration),
or
qualifying
cogenerator
with
wholesale
transmission facilities.
Regional Transmission Groups

By voluntarily participating in regional transmission groups
utilities hope to develop non-regulatory solutions to issues
involving regional transmission planning and the terms and
conditions for wheeling power.
SMUD is participating in the
negotiation of bylaws for a proposed local regional transmission
group,
the
Western
Association
For
Transmission
Systems
Coordination. Major participating utilities include Los Angeles
Department of Water and Power, Southern California Edison, and
Pacific Gas and Electric.
Because competing industry groups failed to craft compromise
language before the legislative deadline, no regional transmission
group language was included in the National Energy Policy Act of
1992. However, Senator Malcolm Wallop (R-WY) read the text of the
consensus agreement into the Congressional Record thereby laying
the groundwork for future legislative or administrative action to
implement the proposal.
In an attempt to pursue the proposal administratively, FERC issued
a Notice of Request for Public Comments on Regional Transmission
Group Proposal
(Docket No. RM93-3-000).
SMUD continues to
participate in the Western Association for Transmission Systems
Coordination and submit comments to FERC on regional transmission
planning issues.
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The most challenging long-term implementation issue of the new law
may be how the tederal mandate to provide transmission service,
and, if necessary, to build capacity to :-:1eet that service, will
coexist with the exclusive state authority to certify and site
transmission facilities.
K. NUCLEAR PROVISIONS
Decontamination and Decommissioning
Enrichment Facilities

of

Existing

DOE

Uranium

The Act includes language to help finance the cleanup of
contaminated uranium enrichment facilities, dividing the costs
between the
federal
government
and domestic
nuclear power
utilities.
Contributions to a cleanup fund from both sources would total
$480 million a year (indexed to inflation) for 15 years. The
federal government will be responsible for 70 percent of the costs,
which will be paid for through annual appropriations. Nuclear
utilities will assume roughly the remaining 30 percent. More
specifically, the utilities' liability is placed at $150 million
annually, indexed to inflation. The fees on individual nuclear
utilities will be based on the amount of enriched uranium they have
purchased from the federal government over the years.
SMUD did purchase enrichment services from the Department of Energy
for Rancho Seco. The Edison Electric Institute estimates that the
District is liable for approximately $1.1 million per year for a
total assessment of $16.4 million.
State Authority to Regulate Radiation Below Level of NRC Regulatory
concern
Gives the states the authority to regulate waste that the NRC may
designate as Below Regulatory Concern (BRC).
This section of the
Act also revokes previous NRC Policy Statements on BRC.
Impacts include the potential for states to regulate items such as
smoke detectors, thorium lamp mantles, etc., and the possibility
that
states
could
impose
radiological
safety
criteria
on
decommissioning projects.
For example, if the state imposes
release criteria (i.e., lowering the activity limits for release of
the Rancho Seco site after final decommissioning) that is more
restrictive than current NRC limits, the quantity and associated
costs for disposal of waste will significantly impact the costs for
the DECON phase of the decommissioning project.
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Nuclear Waste

Dis~o~al

Requires the EnvironmentQl Protection Agency (EPA) to promulgate
rules covering public health and safety standards for potential
releases from the high level ~aste repository at Yucca Mountain.
EPA must base their nod if ied rules on studies by the National
Academy of Sciences (NAS). The Act also directs the NRC to modify
its rules based on the same study.
The Act directs the NAS to
complete its study by 12/31/93 and for EPA to issue its rules one
year thereafter and the NRC to modify its rules one year after EPA.
The Act also authorizes the DOE to have post closure oversight of
the Yucca Mountain site.
Office of the Nuclear Waste Negotiator
Extends the term of the Nuclear Waste Negotiator from 5 years to 7
years.
Nuclear Waste Management Plan
Directs the DOE to prepare a report on the adequacy of current
waste management programs to handle potential volumes of waste from
the construction of new nuclear plants. The DOE is to consult with
the NRC and EPA.
The report is due in one year.
Employee Protection for Nuclear Whistle Blowers
Bars the NRC and DOE from delaying a whistle blower investigation
while a Labor Department investigation is underway.
L. HYDROELECTRIC PROVISIONS
Most of the Hydroelectric provisions do not affect SMUD directly,
but an overview is provided below.
The Act is intended to preserve the environment for future
generations. It gives the federal land-management agencies new and
independent authority to require right-of-way permits for new and
existing hydro projects, prohibits using federal "eminent domain"
to condemn park land controlled by state or local government,
prohibits using streams protected by the State of California, and
requires that the potential licensee fund studies by state and
federal resource agencies.
The provisions reduce FERC' s pov/ers and increase federal land
management agencies and local control over hydroelectric licensing
to preserve the environment from certain hydro development.
SMUD anticipates resolving these issues during the consultation and
public review process to the satisfaction of the local interests
and the environmental community.
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The Honorable Herschel Rosenthal
Chairman
California Senate Committee
on Energy and Public Utilities
Room 2035, State Capital
Sacramento, CA 95814

February 23, 1993

Dear Senator Rosenthal:

On behalf of Proven Alternatives and the National Association of Energy Service
Companies (NAESCO), I would like to thank you for the opportunity to provide
testimony to the Senate Committee on Energy and Public Utilities concerning The
National Energy Policy Act of 1992. The impact this Act will have on California and the
opportunities it creates for the state are significant to all California energy consumers.
Your committee should pride itself on your role in maintaining California's
visionary policy that seeks to meet the energy demands of our citizens and business while
protecting our environment. We are gratified by the Acts aim to promote greater energy
efficiency in all sectors of the U.S. economy. Our experience suggests that this reliance
is well founded and will provide California energy consumers with important economic
advantages over worldwide competitors for its goods and services.

Very truly Yours,
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Richard J. Miller
Proven Alternatives, Inc.
Founder

Before the Senate Committee
on Energy and Public Utilities
of the State of California

Testimony of the National Association of Energy Service Companies
Relating to
the National Energy Policy Act of 1992

February 23, 1993
Sacramento, California

Richard J. Miller
Proven Alternatives, Inc.
1740 Army Street
San Francisco, CA 94124
(415) 285-0800
on behalf of the
National Association of Energy Service Companies (NAESCO)
1440 New York Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20005
(202) 371-7000

Before the Senate Committee
on Energy and Public Utilities
of the State of California

Testimony of the National Association of Energy Service Companies
Concerning
the Energy Act of 1992

I. Background

My name is Richard J. Miller, and I am a Founder of Proven Alternatives, Inc., a
125 person nationwide provider of energy efficiency services to electric and gas utilities
and in facilities of industrial and commercial energy users. We are headquartered in San
Francisco, CA, with additional offices in Portland, OR, Seattle, W A, Boston, MA,
Philadelphia, PA, Washington, D.C., Honolulu, HI, and Milwaukee, WI.
I am pleased to provide this testimony on behalf of the National Association of
Energy Service Companies (NAESCO). NAESCO is a non-profit association whose
members are involved in all aspects of the energy efficiency service industry including
developing, constructing, owning, financing, and managing energy efficiency and
demand side management programs(DSM). NAESCO member companies provide DSM
services to end users under contracts with utilities to deliver negawatts, or saved units of
energy measured and maintained over a long period of time. NAESCO members provide
energy efficiency services which constitute a firm and reliable resource capable of
meeting long-term energy needs. Our members represent an aggregate annual investment
of in excess of $100 million per year and growing.A Between 1986 and 1992 NAESCO
estimates that approximately $600 million was invested by energy service companies
(ESCOs) largely outside of utility sponsored programs. In addition, our members consist
not only of ESCOs but also related trade ally groups such as utilities, vendors and
manufacturers.
NAESCO and certain of its individual member companies were very active
players in the energy debate which culminated in the National Energy Policy Act of 1992

signed by President Bush on October 24, 1992. As you are undoubtedly aware the Act
adopted broad changes to our country's federal energy policy .
This committee

asked for testimony related to the Act's impact on California

and what opportunities it creates for the state. I will address my comments primarily to
the impact the Act will have on California's energy efficiency plan, its development of
energy efficient technologies and the companies such as Proven Alternatives that provide
these services.
First, let me say that a very important implication for the state is that this Act as
designed will create thousands of jobs with the growth of ESCOs themselves, their
subcontractors, manufacturers and countless other firms involved directly and indirectly
in our energy efficiency projects. We have found that approximately one-third of the
money invested in our projects goes toward labor costs. This would mean that of the
estimated $600 million of installed projects to date, ESCOs alone have generated $200
million in direct labor employment.
Subsequent to the Act's enactment, the consensus among the utilities, regulators,
policy groups and environmentalists has been that energy efficiency is the clear winner.
This landmark federal legislation increases efficient use of energy by improving
conservation/energy efficiency in homes, offices, Federal Buildings, appliances, energy
consuming industries and the manner in which electric and gas utilities procure resources.

• Title 1:

Energy Efficiency Buildings; requires states to establish

minimum commercial building energy codes, based on current
voluntary ones, new standard for HUD facilities and construction of
new energy efficiency lighting design centers in each of the 10
Federal regions.
California has long been a leader in establishing building energy standards. These
have contributed significantly to the efficiency gains recorded to date in the state and in
established comprehensive energy efficiency demonstration centers in both Northern and
Southern California.

Regarding utility energy efficiency, the Act urges utilities to understand
Integrated Resource Planning which aligns energy efficiency programs to be at least as
profitable as new energy supply options. We urge the energy leadership of the state to
continue to support IRP and earnings incentives for all California utilities and to continue
to support the establishment of regulatory and legislative policies which promote DSM as
a long-term sustainable resource.
Industrial energy efficiency study grants will likely to be available to California to
encourage the state and utilities to assess industrial energy efficiency opportunities and to
finance cost effective efficiency programs. California's ESCOs have and will continue to
create jobs, while providing an extremely valuable service to the energy efficiency
industries and to the many DSM programs funded by rate payers through utility
companies in California and across the country.
The advantages to both customer and utility rate payers are several:
• Eliminate risk of sub optional and/or deteriorating energy savings by having our
payment tied to achieved

savings~

• Provides a single-source responsiblity for implementation and delivery of
energy savings;
• Provides comprehensive design of energy efficiency services to eliminate or
"cream-skimming", and single fuel is provided as thermal and electrical
measures are both evaluated and implemented;
• Provides cost effective measurement and verifications of savings;
• Provides private sector financing as a new source for customers and rate payers.
In addition to Title I, Energy Efficiency, several other Titles within the Act are
related to the development of a more .energy efficient future. Provisions such as;

• Title ill: Electricity Regulation, which in part provides for mandatory
wheeling - any electric utility or generator may have access to

to allow them to sell

to
customers of California utilities
to choose in pursuant of the lowest
The challenge to the utilities is that
they must assure their
providers of energy.
the utility, only through
they

competitive

and industrial users, that they are the least cost
efficiency represents the lowest cost energy supply for
their investments in Demand Side Management, will
a world of trans-state, trans-region and trans-national energy

supply options. Again, we urge the Senate to continue the support for current and future
regulations designed to reward utility investment in DSM by their California utility
companies.
• Title XVI: Global Climate Change. This is the "sleeper" provision in
the Energy Policy Act of 1992.
greenhouse gas emissions by

2005~

It calls for the stabilization of
achieving a 20% reduction from

1988 levels in C02 by 2005 and a 30% decrease over 1988 levels by
2010.
Implication for California - Again this will require California utilities to actively seek
all cost effective energy efficiency - a strategy already articulated in California's
Electricity Report for 1992 (ER-92) and the resource acquisition plans of many California
utilities.

Toward this end, accurate measurement and verifiable energy efficiency

measures reduce pollutions form electric generating sources in proportions that can be
measured precisely. Under the Clean Air Act of 1990, the Environmental Protection
Agency is preparing a conservation verification protocol in consultation with NAESCO.
This protocol will establish which utility investments in efficiency, will qualify for sulfur
dioxide and carbon dioxide reduction credits. This measurement and verifications
protocol is a very important regulatory link between efficiency and cleaner California air.
Additionally, these reductions will greatly assist our nations position during the world
environmental treaty negotiations for emissions reductions· per the Rio accords. We
support the efforts within the CPUC Monitoring and Evaluations proceedings to create
measurement standards which appropriately measure and monitor consumption
reductions and we hope that efforts like these will be part of any global climate policy
implementation.

• Title XXI: Energy Research and Development. Provides for Research
and Development for technologies to improve energy efficiency and
increase renewable energy use in buildings, industries and utilities,
including technologies for natural gas, electric heating and cooling and
biofuels energy systems.

The Act places increased emphasis on

activities to move technology toward commercialization. One focus is
increased natural gas utilization and renewable energy resource
strategies such as distributed generation having production of
electricity, hotwater and cooling/heating systems onsite.
Implications for California - The state through visionary leadership and the good work
of the California Energy Commission and others have long promoted such development
of technology by California companies. Many companies in the state have developed and
are developing state-of-the-art energy efficiency technologies and new renewable power
production systems that offer tremendous potential for export of California goods and
services worldwide. This in an area where the California Executive and Legislative
branches can work hand-in-hand with our congressional delegation to participate in
continued R & D support.
In summary, we urge the Executive and Legislative branches of California to
continue its support of its stated objectives of maximizing energy efficiency. The fruits
of your persistence toward this goal will create thousands of jobs, contribute hundreds of
millions of dollars to the California gross domestic product, while providing California
energy consumers with significant competitive advantages in an ever increasing
competitive global economy.
Thank you for the opportunity to address this very distinguished senate
committee.
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The National Energy Policy Act of 1992 (EPACT) has been described
as "the most comprehensive energy bill to win ..::ongressional
approval in more than a decade." 1

While this Act is silent on

some key areas of energy policy, it takes numerous steps to
promote energy efficiency and to change federal and state
regulatory processes.

California is well-positioned to take advantage of the Act to
help reduce our energy costs, obtain federal tax relief, and
develop national leadership in new areas.

But to realize these opportunities, the California Energy
Commission (CEC) and the California Public Utilities Commission
(CPUC) will have to maintain and strengthen their commitment to
promoting energy efficiency and renewable energy sources through

s. Daniels and L. Harvey, "Comprehensive National Energy
Policy Act Conference Report".
Environmental and Energy study
Institute, "Special Report", Washington, DC, 1 October, 1992.

a combination of minimum efficiency standards, economic incentives,
and thoughtful regulation.

We have a unique opportunity to do this in 1993.

Unlike in the

past, there is a high level of consensus between environmentalists,
utilities, and industry on the direction of energy policy in
California.

Virtually all interests support current policy

directions to expand utility-sponsored efficiency programs.

Most

parties support the utilities' needs to obtain performance-based
returns on investment for these programs.

This Thursday, the CPUC

will be conducting a hearing on these issues, with strong support
for energy efficiency programs in the testimony of all major
parties.

The legislature must support this direction.

The EPACT reinforces California's utility energy policy by reducing
or eliminating federal taxes on utility rebates to their customers.
(Title XIX, §136)

This will amount to a tax cut of some $100

million per year for California businesses and consumers at today's
program levels, and more if programs expand as we expect.

NRDC is

proud of its role in helping deliver these well-deserved tax
benefits to California's economy.

The Energy Policy Act promotes two key energy planning and
implementation activities that have been leadership areas in
California:

building efficiency standards and energy planning.

The California Energy Commission has been the agency with prime
responsibility in these areas.

California is off to a good start in meeting EPACT's requirements.
But the law will likely require the CEC to develop new building
code revisions by about 1995 (Title I, §304).

California must

either adopt federal model standards, or develop its own code with
at least equal stringency.

If we wish to retain control of our

standards and respond to the needs of the states' businesses and of
its environment, the CEC will have to work actively to develop
these new standards for California.

EPACT encourages states to require "integrated resource planning"
(IRP} for all utilities (§111 and §115).

It explicitly requires

IRP for customers of the Western Area Power Administration, which
includes many California utilities.

Considerable technical work

will be needed to meet these requirements.

This work will require

active staff involvement by the CEC, which, although it has taken
some of the necessary steps, still has not developed a
comprehensive IRP methodology.

Compliance with federal policy

directions on IRP will allow California utilities to expand their
programs in the most cost-effective way, increasing California's
competitiveness and reducing our energy costs compared to where we
are going right now.

NRDC wishes to highlight the Act's strong stand against "retail
wheeling", which involves efforts by some energy-intensive
customers to escape part of the cost of providing reliable
systemwide electricity service.

Section 722 of EPACT prohibits

federal support for this practice.

Some parties are now urging the

states, including California, to rush in where Congress declined to
tread.

If these appeals reach this Committee, we hope you will

respond just as emphatically as Congress did.

The Energy Policy Act covers 379 pages, so it contains a vast
number of provisions that will effect California.

Some of these

are:
•

The Act includes tax reforms that will reduce the cost to

Californians of new renewable energy systems.
in particular)

(Title XII and §1212

California leads the nation in the development of

renewable energy, and can obtain significant dollar benefits if we
continue to purchase new renewable energy supplies.
•

By April 1994, the Act requires the Secretary of Energy to

make grants, "to establish or enhance one regional building energy
efficiency center . . . in each of the ten regions served by a
Department of Energy regional support office".
of a grant .

.

"The federal share

. shall be no more than 50% of the cost of

establishing, and no more than 25% of the cost of operating the
regional center".

To administer the fund and the center, we need

to set up a consortium "that may include non-profit institutions,
state and local governments, universities, and utilities."
I, §103)

(Title

A 20-member task force, appointed by the Secretary, will

oversee this program.

California utilities are moving in this

direction anyway; EPACT provides an opportunity to obtain federal
funding.

The CEC could coordinate these activities to assure that

California gets one of the ten centers, and to help make it as
useful a project as possible.

•

Low income weatherization.

EPACT includes a number of

measures designed to increase the quality of low income
weatherization services, including encouragement of more
partnerships with utilities and technical transfer grants to train
personnel and improve performance.

(Title I, §142)

California

utilities are already spending tens of millions of dollars on low
income weatherization; federal support could enhance and expand
these programs.
•

Energy efficient mortgages.

By April 1993, the Secretary of

Housing and Urban Development must establish an energy efficient
mortgage pilot program in five states "to promote the purchase
existing energy-efficient residential buildings and the
installation of cost-effective improvements in existing residential
buildings." (Title I, §106)

California has already laid the

foundation for such an effort, thanks in part to efforts by this
committee.

The CEC should work with other participants to make

California one of the five states.
•

Electric and alternative fueled vehicles.

The Act authorizes

the appropriation of up to $90 million to conduct an electric motor
vehicle commercial demonstration program and to support
infrastructure development for these vehicles.
626}

(Title VI, §§611-

Many California utilities are working hard to promote

electric vehicles as a clean air solution:
enhance these programs.

federal support can

Title III establishes minimum requirements

for alternative fueled vehicles in state fleets, reinforcing
directions in which the CEC is moving.

Renewable energy.

The Act sets up host of new renewable

initiatives, including a renewable energy technology
trans

program operated by the federal Department of Energy and

the Agency for International Development.

The Act authorizes $600

million to be spent over the next 6 fiscal years.

It also sets up

a five-year program to further the commercialization of new
technologies ($50 million authorization for FY 1994) and a
renewable energy export technology training program (authorization
of $18 million over three fiscal years).
and 1211).

(Title XII, §§1202, 1203,

California is far and away the nation's leader in

renewable energy, and the CEC should work to help our state obtain
a fair share of this funding.

In summary, by bolstering the policy efforts in which
California has been a leader for the past decade and a half, EPACT
provides this state with the opportunity to obtain federal support,
both in the form of tax relief and federal programs, commensurate
with our efforts.

But expanded efforts by the CEC and the CPUC

will be necessary to meet the requirements and seize the
opportunities of the Act.

Indeed, those opportunities are so numerous that you may want to
consider setting up an informal steering committee, to coordinate
efforts by public and private parties who share the goal of
ensuring that Californians get their fair share of EPACT benefits.
We'll be glad to volunteer our services.

